Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


Old Business #12

Board of Commissioners
March 26, 2015
7:00 P.M.

The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in an Official Meeting on March 26, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.

Commissioners Present: Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair
David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio

Staff Present: Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney

Staff Absent: Steve Rapson, County Administrator

Call to Order

Chairman Oddo called the March 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.

Invocation by Commissioner Brown

Commissioner Brown offered the Invocation.

Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Oddo led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Acceptance of Agenda

Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published and to table New Business Iltems 16 and 17 to the

April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners regularly scheduled meeting. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.
No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.



fjones

Typewritten Text

Old Business #12





Minutes

March 27, 2015
Page Number 2

PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:

1.

Recognition of Fayette County's E-911 Communication Director, Cheryl Rogers, for her thirty-six
years of service in public safety and for earning the E-911 Director of the Year Award for the State of
Georgia.

Chairman Charles Oddo, the Board of Commissioners, and Assistant Communications Director Peggy
Glaze recognized Communications Director Cheryl Rogers for her thirty-six years of service in public safety
and for earning the E-911 Director of the Year Award for the State of Georgia. A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Recognition in honor of Christian City's 50th anniversary.

Commissioner Barlow and the Board honored Christian City's 50" anniversary. Special recognition was
given to Ms. Rose Marie Harper who was the first female Fayette County Commissioner, who served as
Chair to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, and who is the founder of Christian City. Ms. Rose
Marie Harper, Christian City Chairman of the Board Michael Johnston and Chief Operating Officer Phil
Kouns thanked the Board for the recognition spoke about the ongoing work of Christian City. A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Proclamation of Friday, March 27, 2015, as "Advo-Kids Casa Day."

Commissioner Coston and the Board proclaimed Friday, March 27, 2015 as “Advo-Kids Casa Day” in
Fayette County. Representatives of Advo-Kids Casa spoke about the work of Advo-Kids Casa. A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Proclamation of April 2015 as "Safe Digging Month in Fayette County."

Commissioner Brown and the Board proclaimed April 2015 as “Safe Digging Month in Fayette County.” A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

PUBLIC HEARING:

Community Development Director Pete Frisina read the Introduction to Public Hearings rules into the record, and he
introduced the first item of Public Hearing. A copy of the Introduction to Public Hearings, identified as “Attachment
5,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

5.

Public Hearing concerning staff’'s recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer
and Wine License (License #C14-000473) from Tushar Patel and Yijay H. Parikh to Kalpeshbhai
Patel, doing business as Fayetteville Chevron Food Mart, LLC., which is located at 1488 Highway 92
North, Fayetteville, Georgia.

Mr. Frisina stated that staff had reviewed the request to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer, and
Wine License from Tushar Patel and Yijay H. Parikh to Kalpeshbhai Patel, and he said the review
concluded that everything was “okay.”

No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.





Minutes

March 26, 2015
Page Number 3

Commissioner Brown moved to approve staff's recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol,
Beer and Wine License (License #C14-000473) from Tushar Patel and Yijay H. Parikh to Kalpeshbhai
Patel, doing business as Fayetteville Chevron Food Mart, LLC., which is located at 1488 Highway 92 North,
Fayetteville, Georgia. Commissioner Coston seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion
passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.

Public Hearing of Petition No. 1243-15, Fland Land, LLC., Owner, Donna Black, Agent, request to
rezone 132.14 acres from R-70 to C-S to develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation
Subdivision, with said property being located in Land Lot(s) 49, 79 and 80 of the 7th District and
fronting on Lees Lake Road and Coastline Road. Staff recommends approval with one (1) condition.

Community Development Director Pete Frisina introduced Public Hearing #6. He reported that earlier in the
afternoon that it came to staff's attention that there was a material error in the yield plan associated with the
request. He said the error was not caught by staff but it impacts the rezoning and impacts the material
provided to the Board of Commissioners. Mr. Frisina stated that the Planning Commission was also
unaware of the material error and recommended that the petition be returned to the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Ognio moved to send Petition No. 1243-15 back to the Planning Commission.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously. A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Public Hearing of Petition No. RP-055-15, Carter Rocky Fork, LLC., Owner, and Donna Black, Agent,
request to approve of the Revision of the Recorded Final Plat for Rock Fork Subdivision to change
Lot 15 from a building lot to a common area for a centralized mail kiosk and open space, with said
property being located in Land Lot(s) 140 & 149 of the 5 District and fronting on Rocky Fork
Boulevard.

Community Development Director Pete Frisina introduced Petition No. RP-055-15. Agent Donna Black
briefed the Board on this request. Ms. Black explained that this request would allow for a centralized mail
kiosk as required by the post office.

No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve Petition No. RP-055-15, Carter Rocky Fork, LLC., Owner, and
Donna Black, Agent, request to approve of the Revision of the Recorded Final Plat for Rock Fork
Subdivision to change Lot 15 from a building lot to a common area for a centralized mail kiosk and open
space, with said property being located in Land Lot(s) 140 & 149 of the 5 District and fronting on Rocky
Fork Boulevard. Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed
unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.

Public Hearing on Ordinance 2015-05 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as amended, specifically Section 110-3 Definitions,
Section 110-25 A-R, Agricultural-Residential District, and Section 110-169 Conditional Use Approval.





Minutes

March 26, 2015
Page Number 4

Community Development Director Pete Frisina briefed the Board on Ordinance 2015-05. He reminded the
Board that this issue was first brought to the Board on April 24, 2014 when a citizen requested the ability to
host weddings on A-R property. Mr. Frisina further reminded the Board that it had directed the Planning
Commission to look into the request and to return to the Board with recommendations. He said the
Planning Commission and staff have been reviewing this issue and that this issue is growing in popularity.
Mr. Frisina stated that the proposed ordinance would amend the current Zoning Ordinance that would allow
Wedding and Event Facilities in Agricultural-Residential (A-R) Zoning and would provide conditional uses
applied to those who want these events on their property. Mr. Frisina then elaborated on the proposed
conditions for having wedding and event facilities on A-R zoned properties.

Commissioner Brown asked if an event sketch was required for each event. Mr. Frisina replied that the
requestor would only have to submit one event sketch, but if there were future changes then the County
would request that the requestor would notify the County.

Commissioner Ognio said staff and the Planning Commission did a good job with this request.

Larry Mapp: Mr. Larry Mapp, representing the North Fayette Community Association, spoke in favor of
Ordinance 2015-05. He told the Board that he was impressed with the details of the proposed ordinance.
He said he was a detailed oriented person and it appeared this ordinance covered all the bases.

No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.

Commissioner Brown moved to adopt Ordinance 2015-05 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as amended, specifically Section 110-3 Definitions,
Section 110-25 A-R, Agricultural-Residential District, and Section 110-169 Conditional Use Approval.
Commissioner Coston seconded the motion.

Chairman Oddo said he had been watching the issue develop all along and he stated that the citizens, Mr.
Frisina, staff, and Commissioner Ognio had worked hard on the proposed ordinances. He said the
ordinance was really well done.

The motion to adopt Ordinance 2015-05 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as amended, specifically Section 110-3 Definitions, Section 110-25 A-R,
Agricultural-Residential District, and Section 110-169 Conditional Use Approval passed unanimously.
Copies of the request and Ordinance 2015-05, identified as “Attachment 9,” follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.

Public Hearing on Ordinance 2015-06 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, As Amended, Specifically Article VII. Zoning Board of
Appeals and Article IX. Policies, Procedures, and Standards Governing Amendments.

Community Development Director Pete Frisina briefed the Board on Ordinance 2015-06. He stated that the
proposed ordinance was developed based on the Special Called Meeting held on August 19, 2014 when
County Attorney Dennis Davenport spoke to the Board about procedures specifically pertaining to
rezonings, the Planning Commission, and the Board of Commissioners. He said the proposed ordinance
made changes recommended by Mr. Davenport at that meeting, and he briefly explained the changes to
the Commissioners. Mr. Frisina then answered questions from the Board.





Minutes

March 26, 2015
Page Number 5

10.

No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.

Commissioner Ognio moved to adopt Ordinance 2015-06 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County
Code of Ordinances Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, As Amended, Specifically Article VII. Zoning Board of
Appeals and Article IX. Policies, Procedures, and Standards Governing Amendments. Commissioner
Coston seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously. Copies of the
request and Ordinance 2015-06, identified as “Attachment 10,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.

Public Hearing on the proposed issuance of a permit for an Inert Landfill Facility located at 221 First
Manassas Mile Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214.

Environmental Management Director Vanessa Birrell briefed the Board on the proposed issuance of a
permit for an Inert Landfill Facility located at 221 First Manassas Mile Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214.
She said the public hearing was required by the Environmental Protection Division (EPD) for the permitting
process, and she reminded the Board that this subject had come to its attention two times in the previous
three years. Mrs. Birrell stated that the county’s older inert landfill was closed and this effort was to open a
new inert landfill. She stated that the inert landfill would be filled in three phases over the next seventy
years; making it a great asset for Fayette County.

Commissioner Brown asked what goes into an inert landfill. Mrs. Birrell replied that the Public Works
Department and the Water System places building materials that they cannot recycle into the inert landfill.
Commissioner Brown asked if concrete was being recycled, and Mrs. Birrell replied that certain concrete
was being recycled for certain purposes.

No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to the proposed issuance of a permit for an Inert Landfill Facility.

Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the proposed issuance of a permit for an Inert Landfill Facility
located at 221 First Manassas Mile Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214. Commissioner Barlow seconded
the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 11,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion. No
discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.

1.

12.

Approval of a request from Mr. Morris Lewis, owner and developer of Trustin Lake Subdivision, to
approve the change of a road name from Edna Ruth Lane to Trustin Lake Drive. A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 12,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Approval of the March 10, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.





Minutes

March 26, 2015
Page Number 6

OLD BUSINESS:

13.

Discussion and consideration of staff's recommendation of a revised conceptual design and cost
estimate for the Justice Center Park. This request was last discussed at the March 10, 2015 Board
of Commissioners meeting.

Public Works Director Phil Mallon reminded the Board that this issue was returning to the Board based on
direction given by the Board at the March 10, 2015 meeting, and he quickly briefed the Board on the
revised conceptual design and cost estimate for the Justice Center Park before he turned the briefing over
to Commissioner Brown.

Commissioner Brown also briefed the Board saying the scaled-down version of the Justice Center Park was
not what was conceived by the Justice Center Park by any measure. He said what was left did not meet
minimum expectations and leaving the pavilion out of the park essentially left the heart out of the park.
Commissioner Brown suggested that a natural path was not appropriate for the park since it would not allow
easy travel for senior citizens or parents pushing children in strollers. Commissioner Brown then spoke
about the needs associated with the Heritage Park Fountain and the preliminary efforts the Public Arts
Committee has taken to consider renovating the fountain. Commissioner Brown suggested that the money
meant for the Justice Center Park could be applied to the money for the existing fountain. He said fixing
the fountain would fix a legitimate safety hazard. He also suggested that the Board would want to consider
not getting a Request for Proposals (RFP) from local artists who may want to fix the fountain since the
process could defeat the stated overall goal.

Commissioner Coston asked Commissioner Brown if the fountain would be operational or would it be a
sculpture. Commissioner Brown replied that it would be a functional fountain. He said there was some
discussion about using the water component in conjunction with some type of sculpture.

Chairman Oddo asked what would come of the traditional use of the Christmas tree at Heritage Park.
Commissioner Brown suggested that the Christmas tree could be placed at the Historic County Courthouse
or in the open space next to the fountain at Heritage Park.

Mayor Greg Clifton: City of Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton discussed how the City of Fayetteville
anticipated using Heritage Park and the property at the Historic County Courthouse for city events such as
the Lighting of the Christmas tree. He said the current plan was to hold the Christmas festivities on the
southwest corner of the Historic County Courthouse. Discussion followed.

Commissioner Brown moved to take the budget for the Justice Center Park, Line Item #5110H, to be
committed to the Heritage Park Fountain, and to shelve the plans for the Justice Center Park.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.

Chairman Oddo asked for the motion to be amended so that it would include that the Board would be kept
regularly updated of the Public Art Committee’s meetings. Commissioner Brown stated that the minutes of
the Public Art Committee Minutes could be distributed to the Board, and that other material could be
supplied at the request of the Board of Commissioners.





Minutes
March 26, 2015
Page Number 7

Commissioner Brown amended his motion to take the budget for the Justice Center Park, identified as Line
ltem #5110H, and commit its funds to the Heritage Park Fountain, to shelve the plans for the Justice Center
Park, and to keep the Board regularly informed of any Committee activities via the minutes and other
requested communication. Commissioner Barlow seconded the amended motion. No discussion followed.
The motion passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 13,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.

NEW BUSINESS:

14, Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of 467 Veterans Parkway and the rezoning of
said property from R-70 (Single Family Residential) to R-70 (Single Family Residential.)

Community Development Director Pete Frisina briefed the Board on the City of Fayetteville's annexation of
467 Veterans Parkway, and he answered questions from the Board. Commissioner Ognio asked why the
city wanted the property, but Mr. Frisina stated he could only speculate on that answer. He speculated that
this smaller property prevents the larger property from being annexed. Commissioner Ognio asked what
would keep the area R-70.

Commissioner Brown said he was concerned about having an “avalanche of PCD” in the area and he
suggested other uses for the area. He wanted to make sure the area was “not on the verge of falling off the
cliff.”

Commissioner Brown moved to not pose an objection to the City of Fayetteville's annexation of 467
Veterans Parkway and the rezoning of said property from R-70 (Single Family Residential) to R-70 (Single
Family Residential). Commissioner Coston seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion
passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 14,” follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.

15. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of two separate parcels located at and near
475 Veterans Parkway and the rezoning of said property from R-70 (Single Family Residential) to
PCD (Planned Community Development).

Community Development Director Pete Frisina briefed the Board on the City of Fayetteville’s annexation of
two separate parcels located at and near 475 Veterans Parkway, and he answered questions from the
Board. He stated that the city’s proposed zoning would raise the intensity and density of what is currently
allowable with the County’s R-70 zoning. He said the city’s proposed zoning would give flexibility for mixed
uses such as multi-family, mixed in commercial use, and small-scale commercial use. He said the
proposed city zoning would also allow for two hotels, and it would provide for a tunnel under Veterans
Parkway. Mr. Frisina stated that, in his opinion, this proposed annexation would form a core of housing that
would support the nearby school and studio. Mr. Frisina recommended that the Board not object to the
proposed annexation even though it raises the intensity and land use density.

Commissioner Brown suggested that the County include in its verbiage to the City of Fayetteville a request
for immediate action on the tunnel beneath Veterans Parkway.





Minutes

March 26, 2015
Page Number 8

16.

17.

Commissioner Ognio said he had a lot of concerns with this request and that it had virtually no citizen input.
He said he did not want to see the land developed that way, and he was concerned that if the City allowed
a lot of businesses in the area that it would hurt the businesses currently in downtown Fayetteville along
State Route 85. Commissioner Brown agreed with Commissioner Ognio’s concerns, and he asked for the
city to avoid creating a big retail area in the annexed property.

Mayor Greg Clifton: City of Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton spoke to the Board about this annexation
request and answered questions and concerns from the Board.

Commissioner Brown moved to send correspondence to the City of Fayetteville stating the County does not
oppose the annexation of two separate parcels located at and near 475 Veterans Parkway and the rezoning
of said property from R-70 to PCD, and to ask the city to take considerations to put some restraints allowing
the expeditious implementation of the multiuse path tunnel under Veterans Parkway and to include
language in the county’s response related to maximum size of the box in conjunction with retail.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 4-1 with
Commissioner Ognio voting in opposition. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 15,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request for the Board of Commissioners to approve all
policy and procedure changes by official votes during Board of Commissioner's meetings.

New Business #16 was tabled to the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting during the Acceptance
of the Agenda. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 16,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.

Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request to revise the County Administrator's spending
limit to $50,000.00, with said revision to include the sum total of any multi-year contracts,
contingencies and possible options that create a scenario where more than $50,000.00 could be
spent on a particular purchase or multi-year contractual arrangement.

New Business #17 was tabled to the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting during the Acceptance
of the Agenda. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 17,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Bob Sinclair: Mr. Sinclair, representing St. Gabriel Catholic Church, reminded the Board that the church had sent a
letter to each Commissioner stating its position regarding the road project to reconfigure the intersection at State
Route 92 and Antioch Road. He asked if the Commissioners had received the letter, and each Commissioner
replied they had received the church’s letter. Mr. Sinclair asked if the letter could be entered into the public record.
Chairman Oddo replied that the letter had been forwarded to the State of Georgia. The Board informed Mr. Sinclair
that Public Works Director Phil Mallon could provide information on how to contact the Georgia Department of
Transportation, and it stated that the Georgia Department of Transportation would hold a public hearing where it
could include the letter in their record.





Minutes
March 26, 2015
Page Number 9

Emory McHugh: Mr. McHugh spoke for approximately 25 minutes. Mr. McHugh focused on Commissioner Brown’s
“admission that he had made mistakes and that he wanted to correct some of the erosion of internal controls.” He
stated that the Tea Party has undermined the control structure of the Fayette County government and how the
control structure of Fayette County resembles DeKalb and Gwinnett Counties. Mr. McHugh then gave several
examples of how he believes the control structure of Fayette County has been compromised. During his comments,
Chairman Oddo asked Mr. McHugh to refrain from specifically naming staff members. Mr. McHugh also spoke
about the internal controls regarding placement on the Public Facilities Authority, the purchasing policies, and the
2000 Public Facilities bonds to pay for renovations to the old jail. He spoke about what he anticipates could be
staff's wording as to why the “Operating Transfers Out” category exceeded the “Adopted Budget” by $8 million. He
pointed out that the County capitalized meters in the Water Enterprise Fund even though they did not meet its own
definition of Capital Assets, and he suggested that the County did so in order to artificially meet the rate covenants
on the revenue bonds. Mr. McHugh stated that the County has utilized Internal Service Funds that do not follow the
generally accepted accounting principles, and he said the County is disguising deficit funding of vehicles and
equipment through the Vehicle and Equipment Replacement fund. Mr. McHugh also gave several other examples of
what he believes are the result of a lack of internal controls in Fayette County government. Mr. McHugh closed his
comments speaking about why he does not remain at Commissioners’ meetings after giving public comment,
suggesting that Commissioner Coston obtain a copy of the study prepared by the Eaves Consulting Group as it
relates to completing Kenwood Park, and venting about a recent Open Records Request and the responses he had
received related to it. Mr. McHugh left the room after giving his public comments.

Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner suggested that Mr. McHugh take all of his concerns to the Attorney General. He said if
Mr. McHugh was willing to make accusations then he should have facts to back them up.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:

There was no Administrator’s Report.

ATTORNEY'’S REPORTS:

There was no Attorney’s Report.

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:

Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked everyone for “hanging in there with us.” He stated that
Wednesday, March 25, 2015 was Medal of Honor Day throughout the United States, and that he had spent time
reading about the soldiers, their feats, and the physical harm they endured. He said he could not say enough about
what they have done, and he thought the nation was beginning to embrace how valuable veterans are.
Commissioner Barlow stated that there are 22,000 veterans who live in Fayette and Coweta Counties, and how
some of the veterans need support. He said he wanted to recognize the Medal of Honor winners.

Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown stated that on Saturday, March 28, 2015, the “Suds on the Square”
event would take place at the Historic County Courthouse. He said all the local craft beer manufactures would be
there along with food trucks and live music. He said the event was sponsored by the Kiwanis Club and the
proceeds would go to charity. Commissioner Brown replied to some of Mr. McHugh’s comments by saying it would
be incredible if the Tea Party had as much control as Mr. McHugh gives them, and that he was fascinated with the
Tea Party conspiracy theory. He stated that he does have concerns with internal controls but that Mr. McHugh has
so distorted the concerns that he is not even in the same universe. He asked that no one take anything that Mr.





Minutes
March 26, 2015
Page Number 10

McHugh said in relation to the actual factual arguments that can be made. Commissioner Brown stated that Mr.
McHugh brings up Stormwater Maintenance all the time. He said the Public Meeting Room legally holds about 291
people and that there were a series of three town hall meetings that brought in about 1,200 people who spoke about
stormwater matters. He said the people asked for a Stormwater SPLOST, the Board listened to their voices, and the
SPLOST ultimately failed. Commissioner Brown stated that Pinewood Studios settled on Sandy Creek Road and it
would be there if there was no West Fayetteville Bypass. Commissioner Brown replied to Mr. McHugh’s comments
about former County Attorney Scott Bennett and former County Administrator Jack Krakeel. Commissioner Brown
stated that if anyone read the minutes they would see that he did not approve of the SCADA system mentioned by
Mr. McHugh, and he replied to the Mr. McHugh’s comments about the Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) consulting
package. He asked Chief Deputy Clerk Tameca White and County Clerk Floyd Jones and other staff to not “sweat”
Mr. McHugh’s comments saying that the Commissioners often get criticized and that he was sad that Mr. McHugh
started firing arrows into the staff gallery.

Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio replied to Mr. McHugh'’s comments saying for a man to blame the Tea
Party for all the problems was interesting. He pointed out that even though Mr. McHugh has problems with the
County’s transparency that there are few other boards that would give Mr. McHugh the amount of time that Fayette
County gives for him to make his public comments. Commissioner Ognio said he did not understand where Mr.
McHugh was coming from, but he agreed that he still did not like the “Stormwater Tax.” Commissioner Ognio stated
that the problem was that there are stormwater infrastructures that were not maintained in the past necessitating the
“stormwater tax.” Commissioner Ognio agreed that there are always ways to improve transparency, but that the
current Board is much more transparent than previous boards. He said he was open to suggestions on how to make
the County more transparent. Commissioner Ognio then thanked the County’s Emergency Management Services
(EMS) who assisted his cousin who, despite their best efforts, passed away from an aneurism. He said his cousin
was already brain dead when help arrived, but he thanked EMS personnel for doing all they could do.

Commissioner Coston: Commissioner Coston expressed sympathy for Commissioner Ognio and said she would
pray for his family. She noted that this meeting had gone long so she had no report to give.

Chairman Oddo: Chairman Oddo stated that the Fayette Senior Services would hold its first annual Spring Fling on
March 28, 2015, and he encouraged everyone to attend. He expressed sympathy for Commissioner Ognio’s family.
Chairman Oddo also spoke about the recent passing of former Fayette County Commissioner and Chairman George
Patton and of the impact he made for Fayette County. Chairman Oddo also noted that Mr. Matt Bergen'’s father
recently passed away, and that Mr. Bergen works for the Fayette County Water System. He said Mr. Bergen was at
the meeting for the “Safe Digging” Proclamation. Chairman Oddo closed stating there would be a Georgia
Department of Transportation public meeting on April 28, 2015 from 4:00 p.m. until 7:00 p.m., and that information
about the meeting would be posted to the County’s website.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

There was no Executive Session.





Minutes
March 26, 2015
Page Number 11

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the March 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting. Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.

The March 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 9:38 p.m.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk Charles W. Oddo, Chairman

The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 23rd day of April 2015. Referenced attachments are available upon request at the County
Clerk’s Office.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk










Consent

Agenda #10

2015 RETREAT MINUTES
Friday, April 3, 2015
New Hope Baptist Church
South Peachtree City Campus

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:

STAFF PRESENT:

STAFF ABSENT:

Charles W. Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair
David Barlow

Steve Brown

Randy Ognio

Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney
Mary Parrott, Chief Financial Officer
Ted Burgess, Purchasing Director
Various Department Heads

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk

Breakfast (7:30am — 8:20am) — 50 minutes

Opening prayer was offered by Pastor Joe Pritchett of New Hope Baptist Church.

General Introductions were given beginning at 8:27 a.m. Chief Deputy Clerk Tameca White was
commended for putting the retreat material together. The Commissioners were introduced to the

new staff in attendance.

FY2015 FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Overview/Forecast (8:30am-10:00am)

1. Governmental Funds:
a. General Fund

i. Property Tax

ii. LOST/TAVT/Auto
E-911 Operations Fund
Fire Fund
EMS Fund
Surcharge Funds

i. Jail Surcharge
it. Victim’s Assistance

LIRSV



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #10





Minutes- Commissioners Retreat
April 3, 2015
Page Number 2

Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott and County Administrator Steve Rapson updated the
Board on Fayette County’s Governmental Funds by giving a general description of the
Governmental Funds including revenue sources, expenses, a General Fund Classification
Breakdown, Financial Projections, and the General Fund’s Balance Trends for the last five
years. Discussion was held on the E-911 Special Revenue Fund, the EMS Special Revenue
Fund, and the Count Jail Surcharge Fund. This total discussion lasted for approximately one
hour and fifteen minutes. The Board was receptive and pleased with the forecasted financial
results.

2. Proprietary Funds/CIP:
a. Water System Fund
b. Solid Waste Fund
c. Stormwater Fund
3. Internal Revenue Funds:
a. Workers Compensation
b. Employee insurance
4. Tax Digest/Millage Rate History
5. Capital/CIP/SPLOST Projects

Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott, County Administrator Steve Rapson, and Chief Tax
Assessor Joel Benton updated the Board on Fayette County’s Proprietary Funds. This discussion
included an update on the Internal Services Funds Statistics, the Tax Digest / Millage Rates
Statistics, and the County’s Capital/CIP/ and SPLOST Projects. The Board was receptive to
staff’s approach of reclassifying the CIP projects as part of the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget. Details
will be provided during future budget workshops.

A copy of the Financial Overview presentation material, identified as “Attachment 1,” follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

Break (10:00am — 10:20am) — 20 minutes
The Board took a break beginning at 10:00 a.m. and lasting until 10:30 a.m.

6. Fayette County Water System- Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) & Update 2015

Water System Director Lee Pope briefed the Board on the Water System’s Capital Improvement
Plan (CIP) and Update 2015. This discussion lasted for approximately one and a half hours. The
revised Bond CIP and Fiscal Year 2015 CIP will be incorporated with a future agenda request
and into the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget.

A copy of the Fayette County Water System- Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) presentation
material, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Lunch (11:30pm - 1:00pm) — 1 hour 30 minutes

The Board and staff took a lunch break for approximately one and a half hours.





Minutes- Commissioners Retreat
April 3, 2015
Page Number 3

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION/DISCUSSION

Defined Contribution Plan Revision (10:30am-11:30pm) — one hour
The Board returned to Retreat at approximately 1:00 p.m.

County Administrator Steve Rapson briefed the Board on a proposed Defined Contribution Plan
Revision to increase employees Defined Contribution (DC) match from 2.5% to4.0% to mirror
matches provided to the County’s elected officials and Constitutional Officers. Mr. Rapson
mentioned the proposed revision could be implemented on July 1 through a retirement plan
modification. The discussion lasted for approximately six minutes.

The Board provided direction to lower the elected officials and Constitutional Officers Optional
Defined Contribution Plan Match in order to bring equivalence between the Defined Contribution
plan matches.

A copy of the Defined Contribution Plan Revision presentation material, identified as “Attachment
3,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Future Consideration & Direction (1:15pm-3:00pm) — 15 minutes/per

1. Stormwater Billing Collection

Environmental Management Director Vanessa Birrell spoke to the Board about Stormwater
Billing Collection. She said Fayette County is unique since it sends a stand-alone bill to
customers. She suggested that the process for ultimately issuing bills involved extensive work
for the department’s staff, and she suggested that the work actually involved other County
departments and staff. Mrs. Birrell provided examples of how stormwater billing is overly
complicated especially with a shortage of staff. County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that
the County has a different Stormwater billing process than does the City of Peachtree City and he
gave a brief review of why the department was running behind. Public Works Director Phil
Mallon affirmed that the billing process is too complicated, that it does not utilize staff
effectively, and it frustrates citizens who want an explanation of their bill. Mrs. Birrell stated
that there are two types of accounts: non-payers collectible and non-payers non-collectible.
Staff recommended five solutions that would improve Stormwater Billing Collection; one of the
solutions being placement of the stormwater utility fee on the 2016 annual property tax bill. The
matter was discussed for approximately 40 minutes. Commissioner Coston came to the Retreat
during this discussion at 1:12 p.m.

The Board provided direction to have staff approach the Tax Commissioner to determine if the
Stormwater Utility Fee can be placed on the annual property tax bill. Once staff has determined
the logistics, a formal agenda item will be prepared for Board consideration and approval.

A copy of the Stormwater Billing presentation material, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.





Minutes- Commissioners Retreat
April 3, 2015
Page Number 4

2. Marshal/Code Enforcement Reorganization

Chief Marshal Harold Myers briefed the Board on the need to reorganize the Marshal’s
Department and the Code Enforcement Department. He suggested that the County should
consolidate both departments back into the Marshal’s Department. This discussion lasted for
approximately 15 minutes.

The Board was in favor of consolidating the Marshal’s Department and the Code Enforcement
Department as part of the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget process.

A copy of the Marshal’s Office presentation material, identified as “Attachment 5,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.

3. Fire Department — Part-time Firefighter Program

Fire Chief David Scarbrough asked the Board to consider converting six full-time positions to
create eighteen part-time positions through the attrition process. He suggested this effort would
help to create efficiency, would help full-time staff plan for time off, and would allow flexibility
to schedule vacation, cover sick time and workers compensation, and reduce overtime. Chief
Scarbrough discussed both the pros and cons with the proposed part-time program. The
discussion lasted for approximately 15 minutes.

The Board was in favor of implementing six full-time positions into eighteen part-time positions
during the budget process.

A copy of the Fire Department’s presentation material, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

4. Tyrone Partnership Opportunities Update
a. Code Enforcement
b. SR 74 Corridor Study Project

County Administrator Steve Rapson and staff briefed the Board on the Town of Tyrone’s
proposed partnership opportunities pertaining to Code Enforcement and the State Route 74
Corridor Study Project. The Board expressed concerns about overextending the Marshal’s
Department with regard to the Code Enforcement proposal, and it expressed concern over the
City of Fairburn’s commitment to the State Route 74 Corridor Study Project. The discussion for
both of the Town of Tyrone’s Partnership Opportunities lasted for an aggregate of approximately
40 minutes.

The Board was receptive to consider a Code Enforcement Opportunity Intergovernmental
Agreement with the Town of Tyrone on a future agenda for a formal decision.





Minutes- Commissioners Retreat
April 3, 2015
Page Number 5

The Board agreed to proceed with submitting the study application to the Atlanta Regional
Commission for potential funding, and requested staff to receive commitment for the study from
the City of Fairburn and the South Fulton CID. Once staff has a commitment from the Atlanta
Regional Commission and all parties involved, a future agenda will be prepared for Board
consideration and approval.

The Board took a break for about 30 minutes.

A copy of the Tyrone Partnership presentation material, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

5. Signature Capital Project overview
a. Links Master Plan
Old Fayette County Courthouse Restoration Project
Kenwood Park Master Plan Amendment
Lake Peachtree Dredging Project
Whitewater Creek Project

SRS T

Environmental Management Director Vanessa Birrell and Ms. Pam Young, Director of Southern
Conservation Trust, spoke to the Board about the Whitewater Creek Project. Mrs. Birrell and
Mrs. Young also answered questions from the Board about the Whitewater Creek Project. Mrs.
Birrell pointed out that this initiative would take a long time to implement, that there was a need
to get easements for the project, and that connectivity would need to be studied. The
conversation lasted for approximately 31 minutes.

The Board requested staff to prepare a resolution in support of the Whitewater Creek Project and
for the resolution to be brought to a future Board of Commissioners meeting for consideration
and approval. The Board further requested staff to study the related golf cart connectivity for
properties at and south of the Starr’s Mill school complex.

A copy of the Whitewater Creek presentation material, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Building and Grounds Director Carlos Christian briefed the Board on the Links Master Plan that
includes constructing various training facilities for the Sheriff’s Office, Fire and EMS facilities, a
Public Works Storage/Shop Area; frisbee, golf and walking trails, and greenspace and future
development facilities. Staff then answered questions from the Board on the proposed uses. The
discussion on the Links Master Plan took approximately 35 minutes.

The Board requested staff to measure the decimals anticipated with a shooting range, to have the
Sheriff’s Office provide further information in regard to its request for training facilities, and
then to have a public meeting in order to provide the citizens with a chance to learn and to be
heard concerning the proposed plans.

A copy of The Links Master Plan presentation material, identified as “Attachment 9,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.





Minutes- Commissioners Retreat
April 3, 2015
Page Number 6

Building and Grounds Director Carlos Christian briefed the Board on the Old Fayette County
Courthouse Restoration Project, and he answered questions from the Board. The discussion on
the Courthouse Restoration Project lasted for approximately ten minutes.

The Board requested staff to reevaluate using copper for the renovation project. The Board
further agreed to continue with the repair of the historical bench at the Historical Courthouse.
The Board requested for the signage at the Historic County Courthouse to be changed so that it
no longer indicates that it houses the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce.

A copy of the Old Fayette County Courthouse Restoration presentation material, identified as
“Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Building and Grounds Director Carlos Christian briefed the Board on the Kenwood Park Master
Plan, and he informed the Board of current and proposed enhancement projects for the park. Mr.
Christian answered questions from the Board on the projects at Kenwood Park. It was pointed
out that several of the potential projects would require Board approval or direction. This
conversation lasted for approximately 50 minutes.

The Board requested staff to place the proposed Phase II enhancements projects for Kenwood
Park on the Recreation Commission’s Agenda for consideration and approval.

A copy of the Kenwood Park Master Plan presentation material, identified as “Attachment 11,”
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Water System Director Lee Pope briefed the Board on the Lake Peachtree Dredging Project and
answered questions from the Board. It was pointed out that the completion date for the dredging
project was in mid-June, and it was suggested that the City of Peachtree City be informed of the
progress. The discussion lasted for approximately three minutes.

The Board was receptive to the progress and direction on the Lake Peachtree Dredging Project.

A copy of the Lake Peachtree Dredging Project presentation material, identified as “Attachment
12,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

6. Recreation Commission By-Laws Amendment

County Attorney Dennis Davenport briefed the Board on changes to the Recreation Commission
By-Laws, and he stated that the changes would be placed on a future agenda. The conversation
for this topic lasted less than one minute.

The Board requested that the changes for the Recreation Commission By-Laws be placed on an
Agenda for consideration and approval.

A copy of the Recreation Commission By-Laws Amendment presentation material, identified as
“Attachment 13, follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.





Minutes- Commissioners Retreat
April 3, 2015
Page Number 7

7. Administration Policy Amendment - 100.19 Board Appointments

County Administrator Steve Rapson quickly briefed the Board on the policy amendment for
Board Appointments. It was agreed that the policy be amended, that Selection Committee
meetings would be publically advertised, and that the Selection Committee would provide the
action agenda and minutes of each meeting. This conversation lasted for approximately two
minutes.

A copy of the Administration Policy for Board Appointments presentation material, identified as
“Attachment 14,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

8. Open Meetings/Records/Parliamentary Procedures Overview

County Attorney Dennis Davenport provided an overview on Open Meetings/Records and
Parliamentary Procedures, and he answered questions from the Board. The discussion lasted for
approximately 22 minutes.

The Board requested the County Attorney to rewrite Parliamentary Procedures and to place them
on a future Agenda for consideration and approval.

A copy of the Open Meetings / Records / Parliamentary Procedures Overview presentation
materials, identified as “Attachment 15” follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof

Chairman & Commissioner Topics (3:15pm-Done) — 20 minutes/per
Barlow: Two year terms for Chairman of the Board of Commissioners.

Commissioner Barlow suggested that Chairmen should have two-year terms. County Attorney
Dennis Davenport stated that this initiative could be accomplished in one of two ways. He said the
first way was to have an agreement among the Commissioners, such as a policy, that would allow
for the Chairman to serve two-year terms. Mr. Davenport stated that the policy would not be
airtight, so he suggested that if this recommendation wanted to be stronger then it would need to be
taken to the state legislature. The discussion lasted for approximately two minutes.

The Board tentatively decided this recommendation could be considered as an informal policy.

A copy of the Two-year terms presentation material, identified as “Attachment 16,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Brown: Process for presentation and materials on agenda items.

Commissioner Brown discussed the process for presentation and materials on agenda items. He
asked if documents could be placed on the dais after the Agenda is formally published. He
suggested that flexibility should be given, and he suggested that this matter should be consistently
enforced. Discussion followed for approximately 37 minutes.





Minutes- Commissioners Retreat
April 3, 2015
Page Number 8

The Board agreed that Agenda items provided by any Commissioner- including PowerPoints- needs
to be submitted by the established Agenda deadline. The Board further agreed to allow additional
material to be placed on the dais after the Agenda has been published, but that material provided
after the publication of the Agenda would not be placed on the screens during a Commission
meeting.

A copy of the process for presentation and materials on the agenda items presentation material,
identified as “Attachment 17,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Ognio: Update and Discussion on the new ethics ordinance.

Commissioner Ognio asked for an update on the new ethics ordinance. County Attorney Dennis
Davenport stated that a new draft ethics ordinance had been written and he agreed to circulate the
draft ordinance to the Board for an upcoming Board of Commissioners meeting.

Ognio: Discuss the "IN GOD WE TRUST'" timeline to get this displayed.

Commissioner Ognio stated he would like to see action on the “In God We Trust” motto being
displayed in the Public Meeting Room. Commissioner Brown said the Public Art Committee was
willing to take a look at the matter. County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that staff came up
with several scenarios but the Board did not like the suggestions.

The Board requested the Public Arts Committee give its suggestion at a Board of Commissioners
meeting sometime around May.

A copy of the discussion on the new ethic ordinance and the “IN GOD WE TRUST” presentation
material, identified as “Attachment 18,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

ADJOURNMENT:

No further business came before the Board. The Board adjourned the April 3 2015 Retreat at
approximately 6:15 p.m.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk Charles W. Oddo, Chairman

The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of
Fayette County, Georgia, held on the 23rd day of April 2014.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk










Consent Agenda #11

Board of Commissioners
April 9, 2015
7:00 P.M.

The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in an Official Meeting on April 9, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.

Commissioners Present: Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair
David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio

Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney

Call to Order

Chairman Oddo called the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.

Invocation by Commissioner Barlow

Commissioner Barlow asked Major Kenneth Koon, who is assigned to the 4™ Brigade 94™ Training Division, in the
Army National Guard, to offer the Invocation. Commissioner Barlow stated that he met Major Coon through his
involvement with the Mclntosh Trail Community Service Board, and he stated that Major Koon is tasked with helping
to prevent soldiers’ suicides. Major Koon offered the Invocation.

Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Oddo led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Acceptance of Agenda

Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the Agenda. Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion. No discussion
followed. The motion passed unanimously.



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #11





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 2

PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:

1. Recognition of Andrew Fleming, a local 8-year-old, who will host an event to Fight Hunger on Global
Youth Service Day 2015.

Chairman Oddo and the Board recognized Mr. Andrew Fleming and his work in hosting an event to Fight
Hunger on Global Youth Service Day 2015. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

2, Recognition of Fayette County's Master Gardener Extension Volunteers' work in 2014.
Chairman Oddo and the Board recognized Fayette County’s Master Gardener Extension Volunteers.
Extension Services Director Kim Toal and Ms. Sandra Edwards of Extension Services briefly spoke on the

Master Gardener’s contributions. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.

3. Proclamation of Earth Day and Fayette County's Earth Day Celebration on April 18, 2015.
Commissioner Barlow and the Board proclaimed Earth Day and Fayette County’s Earth Day Celebration on
April 18, 2015. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made an

official part hereof.

PUBLIC HEARING:

There were no Public Hearing items on the Agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Commissioner Brown asked to remove Consent Agenda item #6.

Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda items #4 and #5. Commissioners Barlow and Coston
seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.

4, Approval of a request from Clerk of Court Sheila Studdard for an additional $32,300.00, for jury
scripts, with said funding to be utilized from the fund balance. A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 4,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

5. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, in the amount of $123.56, as recommended by the Tax
Assessor's Office. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.





Minutes

April 9, 2015
Page Number 3

6.

Approval of the March 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.

Commissioner Brown stated that he would like to have some adjustments to the minutes under the
Commissioners Comments portion of the minutes.

Commissioner Brown moved to table the approval of the March 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting
Minutes until the April 23, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting. Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS:

1.

Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request for the Board of Commissioners to approve all
policy and procedure changes by official votes during Board of Commissioner's meetings. This
item was tabled at the March 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.

Commissioner Barlow moved to deny Commissioner Brown’s request. Commissioner Ognio seconded the
motion.

Commissioner Brown read the following letter (provided in italics) into the record:

When | emailed this agenda request on accountability and transparency for county policies and procedures
back on March 6, the only piece of back-up information that | asked staff to place in the packet was a copy
of 2013 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes. Unfortunately, the retreat minutes were excluded from
our meeting packets, and | am a little frustrated because of that.

The April 5, 2013 Retreat minutes clearly state, “Administrator Rapson suggested that these types of
policy and procedure amendments would not have to come to the Board in the future, and he
recommended that these types of changes could be implemented when both the County
Administrator and the Human Resources Director agree on a policy change. He suggested that the
practice would be that the proposed changes would be emailed to the Board, and if any one
Commissioner had a problem with the proposed changes then the issue would be placed on the
next available agenda for consideration.”

This is an important statement that gives the citizens the context of the vote taken at the meeting following
on April 25, 2013 which was nothing more than a consent agenda item. You can see why | wanted the
retreat minutes included.

With great hesitation, | agreed to the new scheme of allowing the staff to make adjustments to policy and
procedures given the accountability requirements provided by the County Administrator.

This new arrangement caused problems almost immediately and | began complaining to the County
Administrator and my colleagues on the Board, but the issues were never resolved. | also let Commissioner
Coston know my concerns after she was elected.

The Board of Commissioners is ultimately responsible for the policies and procedures as well as keeping
county staff accountable. The Board was truly working in the dark, as | had been four years in office and
never had a copy of the county’s Policy and Procedures Manual.





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 4

The Board was not voluntarily given copies of proposed policy and procedure changes as promised. On
two occasions, | asked for copies of changes that were referenced in a weekly County Administrator email.
One was red-lined and | was told there was not a red-lined version of the second one.

We were promised if “one Commissioner had a problem with the proposed changes then the issue
would be placed on the next available meeting agenda for consideration.” On several occasions, |
asked for changes to be placed on a meeting agenda, but was told by the County Administrator that the
items would intentionally be kept off a public agenda because he had three commissioners behind the
scenes telling him he could leave it off. Obviously, this is not what we agreed to and the backdoor polling
gave me great heartburn.

Sometimes, actions were taken where there was no policy or procedure allowing the act. Granting across-
the-board additional paid holiday time-off for employees has always been the domain of the Board of
Commissioners.

When the County Administrator began granting additional paid holiday time-off without an official vote from
the Board of Commissioners and without budgeted approval, two of us on the Board began complaining
bitterly. Again, the response back from the County Administrator was he had determinations from three
Commissioners behind the scenes saying he did not have to put the matter on an agenda and the
additional paid holiday time continued for two years.

In late 2014, after much badgering, the County Administrator gave me a draft policy on additional paid
holiday time that essentially said that he could do whatever he wanted to do. | rejected the draft and |
asked that additional paid holiday time be on public meeting agenda.

Fees for entering the parks at our lakes, again, always the domain of the Board of Commissioners, were
changed without a public vote. | do not like the plan that was put forth.

The backdoor polling needs to be stopped once and for all and the Board of Commissioners should always
vote on, via their fiduciary responsibility to the taxpayers, paid holiday time, park fees and other financial
matters in a reqularly scheduled public meeting.

The county’s auditors, Nichols, Cauley and Associates, made it clear in the December 23, 2014 advisory
letter that internal accounting control objectives are vitally important. The auditors say, “It is generally
recognized that the Chairman, Commissioners, County Administrator, and department heads have
the primary responsibility of creating, implementing and policing the system of internal control.”
The auditors go on to say, “Since the majority of Commissioners are not experienced in the day to
day operations of a county, it is management’s responsibility to recommend specific internal
controls or procedures for their review and approval.” Again, this is the experts saying the Board
needs to be in control of policies and procedures.

In conclusion, we need to ask ourselves why would we would engage in a process that keeps vital
document changes from public exposure. What do we have to hide? The Policies and Procedures Manual
is subject to the Open Records Act, so why behave in a manner that keeps the citizens in the dark on
changes?

The effort required to put such changes on an agenda is minuscule.





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 5

I have already publicly apologized in the newspaper for my approving the slanted process in the first place,
and | apologize now. | am truly disappointed at how promises were not kept on accountability.

The staff must provide accountability to the citizens and the Board of Commissioners. | support
transparency on changes made to our policies and our budget. And | hope, for the good of the county, we
approve a change back to accountability and transparency. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Commissioner Ognio replied that the Board hired a County Administrator and gave him the tools to do his
job, including the ability to make changes to policies and procedures. He said there was nothing to say the
Board cannot review the policies and procedures since the Board has copies of the policies and
procedures. He said if the Board did not like the policies or procedures then it could make a change. He
added that if the citizens wanted to see the policies and procedures then they are available through the
Open Records process. Commissioner Ognio said the Board was trying to make the policies and
procedures process more efficient, and he recommended that if anyone looked at the last budget they
would find the County is more efficient and is doing a better job for the citizens by saving taxpayers’ dollars
while being more responsible with the dollars. Commissioner Ognio said he understood Commissioner
Brown'’s issues and he has made an offer to meet with Commissioner Brown to review all the policies to
determine if there are changes they might like to see. He said he did not see the need for the County to go
backward to how things were done a couple of years ago. Commissioner Ognio added that he has
received emails on this matter but he had not received one email in support of Commissioner Brown'’s
recommendation so he would vote no.

County Administrator Steve Rapson stated this issue started two years ago during the 2013 Board of
Commissioners Retreat. He agreed with Commissioner Brown’s reading of the April 5, 2013 Retreat
Minutes, but he added that if one read further in the same Retreat minutes there is a statement that
predicated where the authority was delegated. He read the following into the record from the April 5, 2013
Retreat Minutes:

The Board agreed to the proposed policy amendments and directed that the proposals be placed on the
next available agenda for formal consideration. County Administrator Rapson suggested a delegation of
authority to the County Administrator and Human Resources Director and Chief Financial Officer for these
types of policy revisions, and said he would place such an item for the Board’s consideration and approval
at the April 25 meeting.

Mr. Rapson clarified that there was not a delegation of authority at the Retreat meeting as alluded to by
Commissioner Brown, but rather the recommendation was forwarded to the subsequent agenda meeting
held on April 25, 2013. He read that the agenda item read as follows:

Approval of staff's request to delegate the authority to amend Human Resources policies and procedures to
the County Administrator and the Human Resources Director, and to delegate the authority to amend
Finance policies and procedures to the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer.

Mr. Rapson said this was exactly what was talked about at the retreat, and he further pointed out that the
Agenda Request Form included the following phrase:





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 6

Any policy and procedures will be sent via e-mail to all Board of Commissioners for their input prior to being
implemented.

He emphasized that the procedure was approved by Board action and that Commissioner Brown did not
like it at the time or now.

Mr. Rapson explained how the process works today the inference of shady practices implied against him
and also his Human Resources Director and to his Chief Financial Officer that he did not want hanging out
there. Mr. Rapson stressed that the Board unanimously approved these practices at the April 25, 2013
Board of Commissioners meeting. He explained that the Board’s direction gave him and the Human
Resources Director the ability to breathe life into a policy, and similarly, the Board’s direction gives him and
the Chief Financial Officer the ability to breathe life into a policy. Mr. Rapson explained that he has
included another step, since policies are as good as the people who understand and follow the policy. He
explained that as policies are reviewed they are red-lined, agreed upon by either the Chief Financial Officer
or the Human Resources Director, and then discussed with the County Commission Chairman. Mr. Rapson
pointed out that he had actually had a discussion earlier in the day with the Commission Chairman on a
policy and that he had done the same with Commissioner Brown for the two years he was Chairman. Mr.
Rapson continued explaining that any changes suggested by the Chairman are incorporated back into the
document and are provided to his twenty-six department heads that batter the policy around, typically
causing additional changes. He said the changes are then routed back through the process and that it is
not until everyone is in agreement from a department head perspective that those policies are breathed into
life. He stated that once they are breathed into life, the policies are reflected in the weekly update provided
to the Board. Mr. Rapson added that the weekly updates he provides will reflect which policies are under
review and once it is approved the weekly update reflects the approval. Mr. Rapson stated that when the
approval reads that policy changes will be sent via email to the Board that the provision of the weekly
updates is the vehicle of how the Board is notified by email. He said the process is still currently in place
and that he took offense with some of the inferences made that things are intentionally left off or that there
is collusion going on with three commissioners. Mr. Rapson said he does not operate that way, his
department heads do not operate that way, and that the County does not operate that way. Mr. Rapson
stated that he wanted to give a snapshot of how big the environment is that was being talked about stating
there are a total of 106 policies that have been formally adopted. He said the policies are in policy books
that have been provided to each Commissioner. He agreed with Commissioner Brown in that when they
came to the County there was not a policy book that could be referenced. He said the polices were spread
out throughout the County, they were inconsistent, and they contradicted each other internally between
departments and contradicted the law. Mr. Rapson reiterated that when there is talk about approving a
policy, it is not just about him and a department head getting together and approving a policy. He added
that each policy is vetted through legal prior to approval, and that all the personnel policies are vetted
through the legal experts who do nothing but employment law. Mr. Rapson said 106 polices were reviewed
of which seven were brand new policies. Of the seven new policies, five were Information Technology
related policies, one was a weapons policy and the remaining one was a parks policy that resulted from
Board action. He mentioned that one policy was deleted pertaining to Health Benefits that went through the
budget process and was eliminated after the budget process. Mr. Rapson replied that there are 42 other
policies that have been revised. He said there were only two policies that Commissioner Brown had
informed him of that he did not like. The first policy that Commissioner Brown told Mr. Rapson he did not
like was the Board Appointments policy, which ironically enough, Commissioner Brown drafted. The
second policy that Commissioner Brown stated he did not like was allowing employees to leave early. Mr.
Rapson stated that the employees who are leaving early are wage-earning employees, not hourly





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 7

employees, and when employees leave the Department Head already has the authority to ratchet back
wage-based staff. He explained that this measure allows the County to go to “skeleton staffing,” and due to
Commissioner Brown'’s insistence this was put into policy format. Mr. Rapson addressed the park fees
concern saying it pertains to Water System’s parks. Mr. Rapson stated that Commissioner Brown was the
Chairman at the time the policy was approved, and he validated that it was the best approach at the time.
Mr. Rapson stated he did not mind changes to policies or suggestions to change policies, but he wanted to
make sure people understand that there is a logical and rational way to approve policies so that everyone is
aware of the policy and everyone is on the same page with the policy.

Commissioner Brown stated that the Board did not approve the park policies but rather they were
mentioned during Administrator’s Reports during an October 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting. Mr.
Rapson replied that he had mentioned it during the October 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting since
he was taking the policy to the November 23, 2014 Water Committee meeting at which time it was ratified
at the Water Committee meeting. Commissioner Brown pointed out that the policy was not voted on by the
Board of Commissioners. Mr. Rapson replied that he understood what Commissioner Brown was saying,
but that it was a compromise what was reached in Commissioner Brown'’s office. Commissioner Brown
said he did not agree with it and that he had another proposal for the upcoming Board of Commissioners
meeting to change the policy.

Commissioner Brown said he was not accusing anyone of ill intent since he would have to be inside of
someone’s head to know their intent. He said all he was saying was that there needed to be a process that
is accountable. He said there needed to be an oversight process. He stated that a citizen in the audience
would not know that policies and procedures could be changing on an almost daily basis and the citizen
would have no idea since it does not happen in a public forum. He thought that was a problem, and he said
that in many cases he does not know about the changes until after it has passed. He said there is a
difference in how to approach things, and he said his approach is to err on the side of openness and
transparency since everyone will be better off at the end of the day. Commissioner Brown stated that he
has butted heads on this issue for more than a year and a half, and it is not the only thing he has butted
heads on. He repeated that there needed to be more transparency and oversight, and that the citizens
needed to see what is going on in their government.

Commissioner Barlow suggested that the Chairman needed to call the vote. Chairman Oddo replied that
he had a motion to call the vote but that he had not had a chance to say anything. Commissioner Barlow
withdrew his motion.

Commissioner Ognio stated that there was never a whole packet of policies and procedures, but now the
Board has one thanks to Commissioner Brown who was Chairman at the time. He said it was a good thing
now that there is a packet. He indicated that the Board can make changes to the policies if it wants to, but
he added that he thought some of the personnel policies should not be deliberated in public since it could
be bad for moral. He said the County has a Human Resources Department to keep things going right with
personnel with proper policies. He added that the polices are available through the Open Records process,
that the citizens are welcome to look at the polices, and he was unsure how to be more transparent on
these matters. Commissioner Ognio again offered to sit down with any Commissioner and go over the
policies to determine what changes might be made.

Mr. Rapson stated that there is a copy of the Policies and Procedures Manual available in the County
Clerk’s Office available for review just like there is for budget document.





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 8

Commissioner Ognio stated he was still not in favor of Commissioner Brown’s recommendation.

Chairman Oddo stated that for the past two years he has been under the impression that if there were
questions or issues that could easily be brought forward that he had never had a problem. He stated that
Mr. Rapson has mentioned from time to time that it takes three Commissioners to pass something, but he
has not seen a time where he has not asked all five Commissioners for their opinions. He said he did not
think it could get better than that. Chairman Oddo stated he had not seen Mr. Rapson take sides in any
issue even though he has not always agreed with the Board’s decision. Chairman Oddo agreed that three
Commissioners can make a final decision and that while the vote often is better than only three
Commissioners agreeing, it does only take three to agree and there is nothing wrong with saying that.
Chairman Oddo stated that there were suggestions of impropriety made no matter how it was phrased. He
stated that nothing has changed from the previous two years to this year, and that he has never felt there
was any transparency issue since he has never asked for anything or seen anyone ask for anything that
was not provided immediately. Chairman Oddo agreed with Commissioner Ognio that if there are concerns
with policies then the Commissioners can go through them similarly to how they review ordinances and
other issues, and that the Board can change them if necessary. Chairman Oddo stated that this discussion
really was on what degree the Board wants to manage staff. He said the Board had hired a professional
group of people and they are performing admirably. He saw no reason for making the change
recommended by Commissioner Brown since the way the County is functioning right now with the staff that
it has, headed by Mr. Rapson, should make people proud. He repeated that there have not been any
problems with transparency and if there are issues they can be brought up and discussed. He said he
failed to see why the Board would have to take the step recommended by Commissioner Brown and he
said he would vote in favor to deny Commissioner Brown’s recommendation.

Chairman Oddo opened the discussion to the members of the public.

Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner stated that two weeks ago a gentleman came to the Board meeting and bad-
mouth personnel in the County for an extended length of time. He thought that it was unbecoming for
people to stand in a public meeting and bad-mouth employees of the County, but if they wanted to get onto
the elected officers of the County then he was all for it. Mr. Gardner said he was not up to date on the
policies and he did not plan to do research on it, but he thought all five Commissioners should be
responsible for anything in the procedures. He thought that it was not right to poll only three
Commissioners while ignoring the other two since all five Commissioners are responsible for anything as
far as procedures are concerned. He also asked the Board to back the employees as they follow the
procedures that are set up.

Alice Jones: Mrs. Jones said she wanted to say, admirably, that she had the opportunity for the first time in
her 17 years of living in Fayette County to go through the budget. She said she is a budget person and
knows budgets, and she found it was very thorough, very detailed, and very professionally organized. She
added that she saw some things she was going to get with Mr. Rapson about, but it took about four days to
go through the budget. She said she called Chief Deputy County Clerk Tameca White to talk about
something that was out of order, and she admired what the County has done. She said it was the first time
she has requested a budget and received the entire package. She said she appreciated that. Mrs. Jones
stated that as far as three votes or five votes, in any democracy majority vote rules and there should not be
any griping over the process. She said she has been attending Commissioners meetings ever since Harold
Bost and Greg Dunn were Commissioners, and there have been three-two votes for whatever reason. She
said people have to learn to appreciate the process and learn to work together.





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 9

Angela Bean: Ms. Bean said she appreciated each of the Commissioners and that she respected their
opinions, but she supported Commissioner Brown on transparency, accountability, and public oversight.
She said if the Commissioners vote to deny Commissioner Brown’s recommendation, then she would take
that into consideration as a citizen. She said there should be complete transparency and accountability
when there is a policy change since she did not know how citizens would know if there are changes, and
she did not know how to even request Open Records. She stated that having a Policy and Procedures
Manual in the County Clerk’s Office was a good thing and that all citizens should get a copy of the manual.
She hoped that the Commissioners would recognize that the citizens need to be made aware of major
policy changes so that the people can have input on the changes. She thought it was important for the
Commissioners to know when a policy is changed so that the Commissioners can let the people know. She
thought transparency and accountability were a good thing to have.

Darwin Edwards: Mr. Edwards said he agreed with Ms. Bean and he saw it as a good thing to have more
transparency and accountability for the citizens. He said that it was his approach that the more
transparency and accountability the better.

Danette Corcorum: Ms. Corcorum said she was curious if the Commissioners decided on a policy and
procedure and, if the policies and procedures are approved before the Commissioners or public is aware,
what kind of voice do the people have to change the policies and procedures. She asked if the people do
not get any input in the process then how does the process work.

Commissioner Brown clarified that he has no problems with 3-2 votes in public meetings and that he will
take his lumps with the best of them. He said he did not want a vote for a polling that does not allow him to
have the public option for the 3-2 vote, and that is what he objects to. He said he just wanted to have the 3-
2 votes in a public meeting.

Commissioner Ognio clarified that the policies and procedures are internal policies on how the County
operates and they are not ordinances or similar documents. He said he thought the citizens need to know
that prior to the current Board and Administrator there was no Policies and Procedures manual so the
policies could have been changed without anyone knowing. He thought the very fact that there is a manual
that is available to the citizens speaks to transparency and he hoped the citizens would see that.

Chairman Oddo reiterated that these are internal policies, and when a County Administrator is hired his
obligation is to run the County in the most efficient way possible. Chairman Oddo said when he ran for
election he said he would treat the position similar to a business. He said in private business the Board of
Directors will give their direction to the President or, in this case the County Administrator, and it is the
President’s job to carry out the wishes. He said if the President, or County Administrator, does not do his
job properly then the consequences are on him and he will be replaced. Chairman Oddo stated that the
County has not had that issue with the County Administrator. Chairman Oddo added that anything that is
desired is available. Chairman Oddo agreed that everybody has the right to know what is going on at the
County, but he added that some things are just daily routines that have to be performed in order for the
County to function. He said there is nothing ominous about them but rather they are rather “vanilla” parts of
the job. Chairman Oddo stated that the County Administrator has never asked only three Commissioners
what they would like to see, but rather has asked every single one what they think about whatever he is
working on. He said he wanted that point to be made clear. Chairman Oddo stated that this discussion
involved transparency and that he has never seen transparency like there is in Fayette County. He added
that while things can always be made better, Fayette County is running a very tight ship right now. He said





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 10

the County needs to recognize that and be proud of that.

Commissioner Brown said there were fundamental differences on how it is perceived how government
functions. He stated that government is not a business and in certain ways it should not be run like a
business since it should be open and accountable to the citizens since it is the citizens’ government. He
said the citizens pay the freight and they should know what is going on. Commissioner Brown stated that
he was not saying the County Administrator was showing favoritism when he asks if items can be put on an
Agenda or not, but rather, he stated that the question should not be asked of the Commissioners outside of
a public forum. He said if a Commissioner, as an elected representative of the people of Fayette County,
wants to put something on the Agenda it should go on an Agenda since an elected representative of the
people asked for something to go on the Agenda. He said that is the way it has been traditionally done,
and there should not be a dual system where, in some cases, if three people decide they do not want an
item on the Agenda that it does not go on the Agenda. Commissioner Brown closed his remarks clarifying
he did not say the County Administrator was showing favoritism, but rather that there was a fundamental
disagreement on how the process should work. Chairman Oddo replied that they would agree to disagree.

The motion to deny Commissioner Brown’s request passed 4-1 with Commissioner Brown voting in
opposition. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.

8. Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request to revise the County Administrator's spending
limit to $50,000.00, with said revision to include the sum total of any multi-year contracts,
contingencies and possible options that create a scenario where more than $50,000.00 could be
spent on a particular purchase or multi-year contractual arrangement. This item was tabled at the
March 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.

Commissioner Ognio moved to deny Commissioner Brown'’s request to revise the County Administrator's
spending limit to $50,000.00, with said revision to include the sum total of any multi-year contracts,
contingencies and possible options that create a scenario where more than $50,000.00 could be spent on a
particular purchase or multi-year contractual arrangement. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.

Commissioner Brown read the following letter (provided in italics) into the record:

The recent Board of Commissioners Retreat solidified my position on demanding, for the sake of honest
and transparent government, that we revise the spending limit conditions of the County Administrator.

Over a quarter of a million dollars’ worth of new recreational amenities were on the verge of being
implemented without a vote of the Recreation Commission or the Board of Commissioners and the new
projects do not appear on any recreational plan in existence.

We were also shown a schematic drawing on a Public Safety Training Center facility that was moving
forward without a vote of approval from the Board of Commissioners.

I also felt it ironic that a vote was being called for at the retreat on these and other items when the Board
had not been given a single page of the meeting packet until the start of the retreat. This was from the
same people who complained they did not have time to read some AJC articles | put on the dais and did





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 11

not want me to give the opportunity to do a Powerpoint presentation on an agenda item; thus, tabling my
agenda item.

I am hoping that we can pull this current Board off the ledge because the same things we complained about
with the previous Boards of Commissioners are happening now.

With a previous Board, | personally complained that they were voting on things that were not on the
agenda. At this point, | can say at least they voted on it in a public meeting. This Board has items that are
not made public to our citizens and are not voted on by the Board. In some cases, certain Commissioners
are not aware of the new projects until they are about to be implemented.

What started with good intentions has turned into a disastrous scenario where objectivity and accountability
cannot be guaranteed. | have been complaining about this for 1 %2 years, once | began seeing what |
thought was abuse of the process. | have tried to bring change in-house and have been consistently
rebuffed. | informed Commissioner Coston of the situation after her election.

In addition to new unapproved projects, multi-year contracts and contracts with contingencies where the
sum total of the deals were well over $200,000 were not coming to Board of Commissioners.

Our own purchasing policy (250.01) says we are to partner with stakeholders, defined as “including the
Board of Commissioners, the County Administrator and the taxpayers” and the government must
meet the “business transparency they require.”

A Commissioner like me has to find out about a new, unapproved project in the government back channel,
so how in the world is this transparent to the taxpayers?

We also find ourselves in a situation where the County Administrator has a hand in creating the bid
requests and he also makes the final decision on purchases between $50,000 and $200,000. There is no
oversight accountability in the system as, many times, the Commissioners do not even know the purchases
were made, especially if they are new and unbudgeted.

The county’s auditors, Nichols, Cauley and Associates (December 23, 2014 advisory letter), highlight
“Segregation of Duties” and write, “No one individual should be permitted to originate and complete all
phases of a transaction. All handling of County assets, recording of transactions, and supervisory
responsibilities, to the extent practicable, should be segregated.”

Basic accounting tells you there is inherent danger in having an individual conceive an idea, meet with
product or service providers, craft bid requests and have final approval on bids without some kind of
oversight or transparency. In the past, the oversight has been the Board of Commissioners and the
taxpayers, in public meetings, but not anymore.

I have complained about the lack of oversight and transparency and the response is always a question,
“Are you saying you don't trust me?” from the County Administrator. My response has always been | don’t
trust anyone in government which is why we are supposed to have oversight and accountability measures





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 12

in place. No one in county government is above a standard of accountability.

The previous County Administrator, along with the previous Human Resources Director, created their own
top-tier early retirement package and did not disclose they were taking the plan themselves. He also
erased his hard drive before he left in addition to other things. A lot of people trusted him.

In the meeting packet, | included an article on rising young GOP star Rep. Aaron Schock. He recently
resigned in disgrace because there was weak oversight on mileage reimbursements and he decided to take
advantage of the gap in accountability. A reporter, not the government, uncovered the fraud after Rep.
Schock had made some other blunders, or else fraud would have continued in perpetuity.

Also in the packet are articles on DeKalb Commissioner Elaine Boyer and Gwinnett Commissioner Shirley
Lasseter, both long-time representatives of the people, both respected and trusted and both doing time in
federal prison. | knew both of them personally. They had supporters who thought they could do no wrong.
People in governments are convicted of wrong-doing all the time. Accountability measures are an absolute
necessity. It is one of the chief duties of the Board of Commissioners.

I hope we will do the right thing and demand transparency and accountability. And if we fail, let the citizen
voters bring their resentment to the polls.

Commissioner Ognio stated that the Commissioners gets weekly reports from the County Administrator that
has charts that lists budgeted items, such as how much was budgeted for Kenwood Park, tells how much
has been spent at Kenwood Park including the percentage spent, and a description of what has been done
or is being worked on. He said the report goes into detail telling about the Public Safety Facility and how
much was budgeted. Commissioner Ognio stated that the key concept is that the projects are budgeted,
and that the authority is given through the budget. Commissioner Ognio added that the County
Administrator and the Commission Chairman have to sign off on expenditures, and that the expenditures
are vetted by the Finance Department, the Purchasing Department, and often has to go through the bid
process if it is for a certain amount of money. He stated that there are a lot of checks and balances in
place. Commissioner Ognio rhetorically asked if the reduction in the County Administrator’s ability would
stop him from committing fraud, and he answered his own rhetorical question by saying it would not. He
also stated that if he was on the Board of a business and this kind of authority was given to the business
administrator, and if the business received the same results that have been achieved by the County’s
current Administrator there would not be this kind of discussion since the results are outstanding.
Commissioner Ognio conceded that there is always the worry of corruption or transparency, but these
records are open and the citizens are always able to request them. He said it was amazing if you look at
the detail supplied weekly to the Board. He said the amount of communication that the County
Administrator does with the Board is amazing and that he has never been on a Board with this kind of
communication. He said he was thankful to have the person the County has in the position of County
Administrator. Commissioner Ognio said he understood Commissioner Brown'’s concerns about the
possibilities, but he said in business there has to be a level of trust or else it makes everyone’s job so much
harder. He added that if there is no trust in the County Administrator then the lack of trust rolls down to the
people working for the Administrator causing nothing to be done. Commissioner Ognio pointed out that
there has been an amazing amount of stuff done for the County, and he said if a person looked at the
accomplishments that have been made over issues that have been neglected while still “being on the
positive side” then he did not know what more could be asked. Commissioner Ognio said he hoped the
citizens see it that way. Commissioner Ognio continued saying that he had received emails on this





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 13

recommendation and each email asked him to not approve the Commissioner Brown’s recommendation.
He closed saying if anyone wanted to work on transparency then the County Administrator would help work
on that matter. He agreed that material was brought to the Board at the Retreat concerning Kenwood Park
and the Training Facility that most of the Commissioners had not seen. He said staff was working on those
issues, but that was recorded in the County Administrator's weekly report. Commissioner Ognio said the
Training Facility will come to the Board for a vote, and that there is money in the Kenwood budget that staff
showed the Board at Retreat. He said when the Commissioners left the Retreat the Board was under the
impression that the recommendations would come to the Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting.

Commissioner Coston commented on Kenwood Park saying after she was elected she met with Mrs. Anita
Godbee, Director of Parks and Recreation, who gave a tour of Kenwood Park. Commissioner Coston said
Kenwood Park was an issue that she heard about from a number of constituents since the park had been
neglected and that there were a number of things that had to be addressed. She said she had a tour of the
park and found a big cement wall with nothing on it and erosion problems and other issues that had to be
dealt with at the park. Commissioner Coston said she had a conversation with the County Administrator
who stated there are funds available for the park. She said they agreed to address some of the low
hanging fruit that could be dealt with quickly like the signage and landscaping and other issues. She said
other issues that need to be addressed are the pavilion since it is the most used pavilion in the entire
county; requiring the need for an additional pavilion or gazebo. Commissioner Coston said staff put
together a list of maintenance items and of enhancements, and that the list was provided at the Retreat.
She stated that after the Retreat she looked at the Kenwood Master Plan and that a number of items shown
as enhancements were in the Master Plan’s Phase Il. Commissioner Coston stated that the County was
very transparent with regard to Kenwood Park, that the County is continuing to talk to the citizens on the
north side of Fayette County to learn what they want in the park, and to make sure Kenwood Park is on par
with all the parks in Fayette County.

Commissioner Brown said this was a fundamental disagreement on how to handle government. He said he
would err on the side of too much information, transparency, and too much openness. He said it was the
citizens’ tax dollars and the citizens need to know what is going on with their tax dollars. Commissioner
Brown stated that, as a compromise, he had asked for a report to be generated and presented at one Board
meeting a month that showed all the expenditures made between $50,000 and $200,000, and that he was
told “no.” He asked why the information would not be provided since it would only be about fifteen
expenses per month, and he asked why they would not be put on a report so people could see where their
money is going. Commissioner Brown said he had one other problem that really got him started on this
issue; namely, contracts for services. He said his interpretation was that if there is a $150,000 contract that
is for three years then it is no longer a contract below $200,000. He said he and Mr. Rapson have butted
heads on this matter and that they would agree to disagree.

County Administrator Steve Rapson said he wanted to correct a couple of things before the vote was taken,
and Chairman Oddo agreed to let Mr. Rapson speak. Mr. Rapson agreed this issue was about
transparency, but that staff was a little frustrated about how transparent it can possibly be with the Board.
He stated that Commissioner Brown made statements, such as there are new recreational amenities that
the Board has never received or approved, that are not true. Mr. Rapson stated that if the Commissioners
looked at Kenwood Park’s Phase Il and at the amenities submitted at the Retreat then they would see every
single amenity that was presented at the Retreat is listed Kenwood Park’s Phase Il. Mr. Rapson stated
that as a compromise reached at the Retreat, staff agreed to take the issues to the Recreation Commission
and to wipe Phase Il and Phase Il completely off the board and to have a reduced Phase Il. Mr. Rapson





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 14

said he wanted to talk about fiscal policies and procedures since there seemed to be an underlining thread
that somehow contracts are not being vetted, that they are not being properly worked through the process,
or that there is somehow a different process based on who is approving contracts, and he said those
concepts were an extreme misinterpretation of what is happening. He said if there is a purchase that
someone wants to make in the County today that is over $500 then there has to be three documented
verbal quotes or three written quotes. He said if there is a purchase above $5,000 then those purchases
must go through the Purchasing Department. He said if the purchase is between $5,000 to $50,000 then
there must be three verbal quotes and three written quotes unless there is a state contract being applies.
Mr. Rapson stated that if the purchase is above $50,000 to $200,000 it requires a minimal of three quotes
unless there is a prevailing state contract. Mr. Rapson then read the Purchasing Policy Section H:
Contracts. It reads as follows:

The Purchasing Department will obtain approval of the Board of Commissioners prior to
executing contracts in the following situation:

. If the total price of the contract is over $200,000
. If funds to pay the contractor are not budgeted

Mr. Rapson emphasized that if the contract is over $200,000 or if the funds are not budgeted then the
contract comes before the Board of Commissioners. He said if the County has a $10,000 contract for
services that is not budgeted then it goes before the Board. He stated that Mrs. Jones spoke about her
review of the budget and was sure she saw all of the line items for the contracts, and he said when a
contract is approved, whether the approval comes from the County Administrator or the Board of
Commissioners, then the contract is driven back to a line item in the budget; which is what the County and
staff does. Mr. Rapson continued reading the Purchasing Policy which states: The Chairman or County
Administrator is authorized to sign properly procured contracts that are less than $200,000 and budgeted,
without obtaining prior Board approval. All purchases follow above guidelines regardless of approval
authority. Mr. Rapson emphasized that the contracts must be budgeted and cannot be entered into without
Board approval. Mr. Rapson told the Board that it is important to understand how checks are processed
that are over $5,000. He said those checks come to his desk after his Finance staff, Budget staff, and
Purchasing staff have gone over the checks. He said staff vets the checks and then he reviews the checks.
Mr. Rapson stated that once the checks have been vetted they are sent to the Commission Chairman who
then needs to sign the documents. Mr. Rapson reminded Commissioner Brown that for the past two years,
when he was Chairman, he would have seen any contract over $50,000 since they required the Chairman'’s
signature. Mr. Rapson said Commissioner Brown mentioned he was unaware of the Public Training
Facility, so he reminded the Board that the County has a rolling five-year Capital Plan that the Board
approves every single year. He said the first year is incorporated into the operating budget and the
remaining four years are approved, meaning the Board is approving a rolling five-year capital budget. Mr.
Rapson stated that with the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the Board approved a line item that was called the
Public Safety Training Facility. He said the first year was budgeted for $300,000 with $500,000 budgeted
for the second year and $600,000 budgeted for the third year. Mr. Rapson stated that with the Board’s
approval of the budget in July 2014, staff met with the Sheriff's Department and the Fire Department and
they worked toward having a presentation at the Retreat. He said the County is doing the design for the
facility, but he added that this is a big-ticket item that may be well above what was budgeted, so then the
issue would go to the Board for clarification. He wondered how anyone could say they were unaware this
budgeted project existed. Similarly, Mr. Rapson said there was$350,000 budgeted for Kenwood Park last
year followed by another approval of $250,000 this year. Mr. Rapson stated that staff has a sense of





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 15

direction based on the Kenwood Site Master Plan that was developed. He said the Board at the time had
directed him to wait until it was determined who the Commissioner for District Five would be. He said
Commissioner Board had further directed him to work with Commissioner Coston and the residents in the
area and to come back with a plan. Mr. Rapson agreed with Commissioner Brown’s point at the Retreat
where he said the aggregate cost of the proposed amenities could cost approximately $300,000, and he
emphasized that since the Board had delegated authority up to $200,000 to the County Administrator and
since the Board had approved the capital budget for $300,000 then he could have just approved the
amenities. He stated that the reason a County Administrator would not make the approval is that is how to
lose such authority. He said a County Administrator has to exercise sound judgment regarding what to put
in front of a Board. He said he knew Kenwood Park was a sensitive topic and that was why it was brought
up at Retreat. Mr. Rapson said that not only does he exercise judgment but that he has a Chief Financial
Officer and a Purchasing Director and there are a bunch of folks standing behind him making sure he is
approaching things correctly. Mr. Rapson stated that when Commissioner Brown speaks about
accountability and complaining for a 1 %2 years that he simply did not see that. He said he does not ignore
Board members or an email or a phone call. He said he is very responsive to what Commissioners want.
He said he does not always have to like what Commissioners have to say, but that he always listens and
embraces what is said. He said he certainly does not poll three Commissioners and ignore the other
remaining Commissioners. Mr. Rapson reminded the Board that Commissioner Brown brought up the need
for segregation of duties, and he said he agreed with Commissioner Brown. He said that he is not typically
a part of a Selection Team unless it is over $200,000 because he signs and approves the budgets. He said
if he did something like that he would lose his Certified Public Accountant (CPA) license since it is a bad
segregation of duty. He said he is rarely on a Selection Team and if he is it is way over the $200,000
threshold. Mr. Rapson said one thing that has been accomplished with this level of authority is that it allows
the Purchasing Department to be focused on the twenty percent of the bids and Requests for Proposals
that the County does where the big procurements are instead of focusing on eighty percent of what the
County does where there are not the big procurements. He said in the past administration the large
procurements were reviewed by consultants, but now his staff has become very knowledgeable with
regards to how water plants operate, how bids are done for roads, and how things are done for right-of-way.
He said it has made the Purchasing Department more knowledgeable and that the Purchasing staff stands
a little taller as they walk around. Mr. Rapson said he was concerned that there was a lingering sense of
something being shady or not being done appropriately. He said he was okay if someone did not like him
or his work and he could handle that, but for him to be able to be shady it would require the County
Attorney, the Chief Financial Officer, the Purchasing Director, and Department Heads to be in sync to do
something shady while hoping that the Commission Chairman would not notice it while signing the checks.
He thought it was ludicrous to think he or staff would do something like that and it was a little offensive.

Commissioner Brown replied that if he thought the County Administrator was doing anything shady, that
anyone who knows him knows that he would come right out and say it. He said that he had never said the
County Administrator was shady, but that he was worried about accountability and that a system has to be
in place. Commissioner Brown stated that the policy read: For recommendations over $50,000 and up to
$200,000 the Director of Purchasing will present recommendations to the County Administrator for a final
decision. Commissioner Brown stated that the policy reads that the County Administrator does have the
final decision.

Mr. Rapson said he did not disagree with policy Commissioner Brown read, and he said that is the reason
he is not a part of the procurement process since the procurement process is handled by the department
heads or the selection team that the Purchasing Director puts together for that purpose. He said he is





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 16

rarely in the room for those discussions and that the only time procurements are handled by one person is if
it is a commodity purchase.

Commissioner Brown replied that there is a fundamental disconnect on how they are looking at things. He
wanted the Board and the County Administrator to get behind presenting a monthly report on contracts
between $50,000 and $200,000 a year. He said it would create good and honest government.

Chairman Oddo asked members of the public if they wanted to speak on the matter but no citizen spoke.

Chairman Oddo said he had comments but they may not be in any general order. He said one thing the
County Administrator pointed out that he has done since being Chairman is handle the signing of checks at
least once or twice a week. He said he looks at each check and looks at the supporting material. He sees
that the responsible parties have signed the invoices, and he sees Chief Financial Officer’s signature and
County Administrator’s signature. He stated that once he has the ability to look at the material then he
signs the checks. He said the system is working the way it is supposed to work. Chairman Oddo said
there is a back and forth on transparency, but that he is provided a weekly update. He said he brought his
update with him to the dais, and he asked staff if previous administrations gave weekly updates like the
current County Administrator does. Several Board members and staff answered “no” to Chairman Oddo’s
question. Chairman Oddo stated that the weekly updates provide transparency and that the
Commissioners know what is going on. He said the work is massive and that is why the County has hired
professional people to do the work, although it is the Board of Commissioners responsibility to keep up with
the work and come to the public if need be. Chairman Oddo stated that the information provided to the
Board provides the tools for the Board to do its work. Chairman Oddo then asked, rhetorically, how
lowering the County Administrator’s spending limit to $50,000 would get rid of collusion. He stated that if
the Board is trying to achieve a result then the recommendation by Commissioner Brown would not achieve
the result since collusion can be done with a $50,000 limit or a $200,000 limit. Chairman Oddo asked why
there is a need for the recommendation especially since there is transparency. He said although this is his
first experience with government and he has a wonderful taste in his mouth for government because what
the County Administrator has done is kept the Board “in the loop” on everything. He said the Board has a
responsibility to stay on top of things, but that the County Administrator is doing all he can do. Chairman
Oddo agreed with Commissioner Ognio saying this discussion would not be taking place in private industry,
and he said if the County was a business and it had been turned around to the degree that the County has
been turned around, there would not be the current discussion but rather how much of a bonus to give to
the County Administrator and his staff. He said the County is not doing that because this is government but
he did not want to leave the impression that there is anything going on that is untoward in Fayette County.
He said the government is as open as it can get, and he said he took a bit of offense at the implied
suggestion that there is something untoward in Fayette County’s operations. Chairman Oddo stated that if
the Board has questions it can ask them but that he does not see the problems.

Commissioner Brown stated that he did not say something was not above board and that he did not imply
that. He stated that what he said was that we are all fallible human beings and you see things happening in
government all the time. He said a lot of the people were very trusted people and that is the reason why
there is oversight built into government policies and procedures. He said the weekly update provided to the
Board is only transparent to the extent that the citizens can see it and it is not transmitted to the citizens
since it is an internal document. Commissioner Brown said he made the suggestion to put the County
Administrator’s updates in the Agenda package so the citizens can look at it, and he was told “no.” He said
that answer was “reverse transparency.” Commissioner Brown said he remembered there was a time when





Minutes

April 9, 2015
Page Number 17

a citizen named Randy Ognio went to the public comment podium around the year 2012 and complained
about one of expenses that the Board was going to vote on. It was a piece of Caterpillar equipment that the
Board was about to vote on and Mr. Ognio stated that there was a better and cheaper way to meet the
need and in so doing he saved the County a fortune because he saw the Board was committing a grievous
error. Commissioner Brown said that was what he was proposing so that the citizens could percolate on
these types of things while giving them exposure to what the County is doing. He said if the citizens see
something then the Board needs to listen to them since there is a bright group of people in Fayette County
who come up with fabulous ideas.

Mr. Rapson stated that one of the points Commissioner Brown brought up was about multi-year contracts.
He said they had talked about that issue. He stated that there is no $150,000 three-year contract, but there
are some $100,000 that would breach the $200,000 authority. He said he had conceded the concern to
Commissioner Brown and that those multi-year contracts come before the Board. He agreed that he did
not think it was appropriate to put the weekly Administrator's update on the Agenda since it is an internal
document, and he pointed out that Commissioner Brown can forward the Administrator’'s update to whoever
he wants to. He said the document is not private or personal, but it is a form of communication and that
where he has worked before that is exactly how the elected officials used that document. Mr. Rapson said
he tells staff that emails can end up in the newspaper so he cautions them not to hit “send” unless they are
sure of what they have written. He added that Commissioner Brown can send his emails to whoever he
wants and he can drill down the information as much as he wants, and Mr. Rapson said that he can tell who
reads the reports because those who read the reports usually call him.

Commissioner Brown said he would vote with his colleagues since, while he does not support the motion,
by doing so it would allow him to bring the issue up at a later date.

Commissioner Coston moved to call the question. The motion passed unanimously.

Chairman Oddo stated that the Board would take a vote on the motion and restated the motion into the
record.

The motion to deny Commissioner Brown's request to revise the County Administrator's spending limit to
$50,000.00, with said revision to include the sum total of any multi-year contracts, contingencies and
possible options that create a scenario where more than $50,000.00 could be spent on a particular
purchase or multi-year contractual arrangement passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

NEW BUSINESS:

9.

Consideration of Commissioner Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2015-04- A
Resolution on Fayette County Development Authority Tax Abatement Policy.

Commissioner Brown moved to adopt Resolution 2015-04 as written. Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion.

Commissioner Ognio said he agreed with the Resolution and he agreed that the Fayette County
Development Authority has moved forward in establishing policies that are meeting the requirements. He
said the current Development Authority is a breath of fresh air as far as meeting the needs the Board of





Minutes

April 9, 2015
Page Number 18

10.

Commissioners has. He did not want anyone to construe that the Board of Commissioners approved the
resolution because there is something it does not like about the Fayette County Development Authority. He
said this resolution would confirm what the Fayette County Board of Commissioners felt the Development
Authority ought to be.

Commissioner Brown recognized that Chairman Darryl Hicks and staff from the Fayette County
Development Authority were in the audience. He thought they were doing a fabulous job and that the
County had appointed the right people into the right positions, and that the right people were hired. He
commended the Fayette County Development Authority for their work and their recently enacted policies.
He further commended the Development Authority for stepping up their communication with the Board of
Commissioners. He agreed with Commissioner Ognio that the Development Authority was doing a good
job, but he thought it was important for the County and the cities to make a statement on what is expected.

Commissioner Coston said she met with Development Authority staff after she was elected, and she said
they have put together a nice document on new project procedures. She did not see where the resolution
was necessary, but she thought they were doing an excellent job and they were looking out for Fayette
County.

Chairman Oddo briefly spoke about the recent history the Board of Commissioners has had with the
Fayette County Development Authority in 2014 concerning Pinewood Studios. He said the appropriate time
for the resolution was a year ago, but that the current members of the Fayette County Development
Authority were doing a very good job.

The motion to adopt Resolution 2015-04 passed unanimously. Copies of the request and Resolution 2015-
04, identified as “Attachment 8,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

Consideration of Chairman Oddo's recommendation to disband the Justice Center Park Committee.

Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the recommendation to disband the Justice Center Park
Committee. Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.

Commissioner Brown thanked the members of the Justice Center Park Committee for their service.

The motion to approve the recommendation to disband the Justice Center Park passed unanimously. A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 9,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Gary McBride: Mr. McBride stated that the Board had been given a picture of the proposed East Fayetteville
Bypass and a petition signed by one hundred percent of the homeowners on the road. He said that the people were
looking for the Board’s help and support in putting a cul-de-sac at the intersection of County Line Road and the
proposed East Fayetteville Bypass. Mr. McBride said the homeowners felt their request would increase safety,
would cost less money, and would help with Emergency Services. He said when the Georgia Department of

Transportation (GDOT) was originally involved with the East Fayetteville Bypass; GDOT'’s representative suggested
the cul-de-sac was a good idea so long as it had the local people’s support. He emphasized that one hundred
percent of the people were in support.





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 19

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:

Response to Gary McBride: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that he had spoken to Mr. McBride earlier,
that he had the information Mr. McBride provided, and the Public Works Director Phil Mallon would be in contact with
Mr. McBride concerning the East Fayetteville Bypass.

Selection Committee Established for the Ethics Board: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that there was
one alternate position available on the Ethics Board and he asked for a Selection Committee to be formed for that
vacancy. Commissioners Coston and Brown were appointed to the Ethics Board’s Selection Committee.

Selection Committee Established for the Hospital Authority: Count Administrator Steve Rapson stated that there
was one position available on the Hospital Authority and asked for a Selection Committee to be formed for that
vacancy. Commissioners Barlow and Ognio were appointed to the Hospital Authority’s Selection Committee.

ACCG Grant Program: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that this is the time of the year to for the
ACCG Grant Program- Civic Affairs Internship Program to begin and that the State Court has expressed interest in
obtaining an intern. He reminded the Board that other departments applied for interns as well since last year the
County had three or four interns provided through this program.

ACCG Training- Savannah: County Administrator Steve Rapson reminded the Board that it would be at the ACCG
Training Event in Savannah from April 17-20, 2015.

ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:

Notice of Executive Session: County Attorney Dennis Davenport stated that he had two items for Executive
Session. The first item involved Pending Litigation and the second item was a review of the March 10, 2015
Executive Session Minutes.

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:

Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown stated that the Kiwanis Beer Festival, which was held at the Historic
County Courthouse over the weekend, worked out well. He said so many people came that some had to be turned
away. He said all the artisan craft beer makers showed up and said they would come back. He said another similar
event would happen in the fall and he said all the proceeds go to local charities. He said Fayette County Kiwanis
sponsored the event, and he thanked Fayetteville Main Street for the use of the Historic Courthouse Grounds.
Commissioner Brown stated that he understood that there were fundamental differences in the way things are
viewed or interpreted, but he did not mean to insinuate that anyone was doing anything wrong. He hoped no one
would have hard feelings about what he said, but that he wanted to bring some things forward that had “been in his
craw” for some time.

Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio wondered if everyone was as “enthused” as he was about the
upcoming tax day. He stated that the lighting at the Historic County Courthouse was improved and that it the work at
the Historic Courthouse was starting to look good. He thought it would be great to have a good looking Fayette





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 20

County Historic Courthouse.

Commissioner Coston: Commissioner Coston stated that she thought the County Administrator, the Department
Heads, and staff do a tremendous job. She wanted to make sure that the people understood that the Board
supports them in their hard work and she thanked them for the work they do. Commissioner Coston announced that
AVPride would present a 5k / one-mile run at Heritage Christian Church. She said the run would be held on
Saturday, April 11 beginning at 4:30 p.m.

Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked everyone for coming to the Board meeting. He further
quoted John 8:32 and asked the people to call him if they have questions. He said the success of the County is due
to County Administrator Steve Rapson and the staff he has put together. Commissioner Barlow stated that he has
attended the Department Head meetings and that the synergy and connectivity is felt in the room. He said that was
not the case in the first several months he was here, and that it is due to the leadership Mr. Rapson has given to his
staff. Commissioner Barlow then spoke about his recent adoption of a puppy and the fun challenge it has presented.
He closed speaking about how his shoes can outshine Councilman Paul Oddo’s shoes.

Chairman Oddo: Chairman Oddo mentioned that Commissioner Ognio had stolen his thunder with his comments
about tax day and the Historic County Courthouse. Chairman Oddo mentioned that the fountain had some repairs
so someone could maybe sit on it without the granite falling off. He also reminded everyone that the Georgia
Department of Transportation would be at Harps Crossing Baptist Church from 4 p.m. until 7 p.m. to get input from
the public at the intersection of Antioch Road and State Route 92.

EXECUTIVE SESSION.:

Pending Litigation and Review of the March 10, 2015 Executive Session: Commissioner Brown moved to enter
into Executive Session. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed
unanimously.

The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:07 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 10:02 p.m.

Return to Official Session and Authorization to Sign the Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio
moved to exit Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit. Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously. A copy of the Executive
Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Settlement between Russell Prince and Fayette County, et al.: County Attorney Dennis Davenport said it had
been brought to his attention of a potential to settle ongoing litigation. He said the case involved is Prince vs.
Fayette County, et al., and that it is an employment issue with a current employee. He said it was believed that the
parties had come to some terms and conditions that both sides could agree on. He said the proposed terms for
settlement were that when employment action was taken against Mr. Prince, during that time to the present day,
what Mr. Prince feels he belongs in paygrade Grade 19 Step 16. Mr. Davenport stated that Mr. Prince is currently in
paygrade Grade 19 Step 13. He explained that there is a differential of about $5,000.00 Mr. Prince would have been
paid had he been placed in the higher paygrade. Mr. Davenport stated that the first component of the settlement is
the $5,000.00 payment amount. Mr. Davenport stated that the second settiement is that Mr. Prince be moved from
Grade 19 Step 13 to Grade 19 Step 16, and that the movement was consistent with County policy. Mr. Davenport
stated that in exchange for those two items, Mr. Prince would dismiss the pending lawsuit with prejudice and he will
also agree to sign a release on behalf of and in favor of Fayette County for all claims that he could have had,





Minutes
April 9, 2015
Page Number 21

currently has, or does have up to the date of signing the release which will be in the very near future, should the
Board give considerable favor.

Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the settlement as outlined by the County Attorney. Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.

Approval of the March 10, 2015 Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the March
10, 2015 Executive Session Minutes. Commissioner Coston seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The
motion passed unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting. Commissioners Ognio
and Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.

The April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 10:05 p.m.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk Charles W. Oddo, Chairman

The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 23rd day of April 2015. Referenced attachments are available upon request at the County
Clerk’s Office.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk










FOUNDED
MAY 15, 1821

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair
David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio

*
STAFF

Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk

*

MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214

*

MEETING TIMES
2" and 4" Thursday each month 7:00 pm

*

COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex
Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210

*

WEB SITE
www.fayettecountyga.gov

*

E-MAIL
administration@fayettecountyga.gov

Agenda

Board of Commissioners
April 23, 2015
7:00 P.M.

Call to Order
Invocation by Chairman Oddo
Pledge of Allegiance

Acceptance of Agenda

PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:

1.

Proclamation of the month of April as "National Alcohol Awareness Month"
in Fayette County.

Proclamation of May 4, 2015 as "Water Professionals Appreciation Day."

Presentation of award to Firefighter/EMT Joshua Frasier for "Firefighter of
the Year."

PUBLIC HEARING:

4.

Public Hearing on staff's recommendation to transfer an existing 2014
Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine License from Msuleman Gillani to Mansoor
Bhamani, doing business as One Stop Amoco/BP, which is located at 2950
SR 138, Fayetteville, Georgia.

Public Hearing of Petition No. 1243-15, Fland Land, LLC, Owner, Donna
Black, Agent, request to rezone 132.14 acres from R-70 to C-S to develop a
Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision, with said property
being located in Land Lots 49, 79 & 80 of the 7th District, and fronting on
Lees Lake Road and Coastline Road, with one (1) recommended condition.

CONSENT AGENDA:

6.

Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for
authorization for file a grant application with the Criminal Justice
Coordination Council, on behalf of the Fayette County Board of
Commissioners, in the amount of $76,432.00, and authorization for the
Chairman to execute said application.

Approval of Resolution 2015-05 adopting the "Fayette County 2014 Annual
Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2014), including Comprehensive
Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and
Short-Term Work Program (FY2015-FY2019"), and authorization to transmit
the resolution to the Atlanta Regional Commission.





Agenda

April 23,2015
Page Number 2

8.

Approval of staff's recommendation to add Stillbrook Estates Phase Il to Fayette County's Street Light
Program.

9. Approval of staff's recommendation to add the Rocky Fork subdivision to Fayette County's Street Light
Program.

10. Approval of the April 3, 2015 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes.

1. Approval of the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.

OLD BUSINESS:

12. Consideration of the March 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. These minutes were
tabled at the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.

NEW BUSINESS:

13. Consideration of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2015-07 Floodplain Management, by deleting Article IV,
pertaining to "Floodplain Management," from Chapter 104, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new
Article IV in Chapter 104.

14. Consideration of staff's request to award Preliminary Engineering Services for the Redwine Road Multi-Use
Path (RFP # 930-P) to Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc., with a maximum allowable cost of $113,980.48,
and authorization for the Chairman to sign all relevant documents associated with this request.

15. Consideration of Commissioner Brown's proposal to allow employees of local corporations to use Lake
Mclntosh Park.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

ADMINISTRATOR'’S REPORTS:

ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:

EXECUTIVE SESSION.:

ADJOURNMENT:







Public Hearing #4

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Code Enforcement Presenter(s): Pete Frisina / Hank Derbyshire
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: |Public Hearing

Wording for the Agenda:

Public Hearing on staff's recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine License from Msuleman Gillani to
Mansoor Bhamani, doing business as One Stop Amoco/BP, which is located at 2950 SR 138, Fayetteville, Georgia.

Background/History/Details:

The Applicant has met all requirements as required in the County Code, and the applicant has been approved by the Code Enforcement
Section. The 2015 license is in good standing as it was issued on December 11, 2014,

There are no outstanding violations.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of staff's recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine License(License #C14-000488)from
Msuleman Gillani to Mansoor Bhamani, doing business as One Stop Amoco/BP, which is located at 2950 SR 138, Fayetteville, Georgia.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal
Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval No
Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #4










		Code Enforcement- One Stop Amoco Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- One Stop Amoco Backup








Proclamation/Recognition #1

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Charles W. Oddo
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request:  |Proclamation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:

Background/History/Details:

Proclamation of the month of April as "National Alcohol Awareness Month" in Fayette County.

Fayette County.

and teenagers.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Fayette FACTOR and AVPride have asked Fayette County to recognize the month of April as "National Alcohol Awareness Month" in

This proclamation is intended to bring awareness to the dangers associated with alcoholism among the youth and in families with children

This proclamation is also seen as a support of the "social hosting" ordinance passed by Fayette County in 2014.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Proclamation of the month of April as "National Alcohol Awareness Month" in Fayette County.

Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

No

Yes

If so, when?

Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

Reviewed by Legal

County Clerk's Approval Yes




fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #1





FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

NATIONAL ALCOHOL AWARENESS MONTH

WHEREAS, alcohol is a primary factor in the four leading causes of death for young persons in the United
Stated ages 10-21; and

WHEREAS, alcohol is the most commonly used addictive substance in the United States; and

WHEREAS, young people who begin drinking before age 15 are four times more likely to develop alcohol
dependence than those who begin drinking at age 21; and

WHEREAS, more than 7 million children live in a household where at least one parent is dependent on or
has abused alcohol; and

WHEREAS, the typical American will see 100,000 beer commercials before he or she turns 18; and
WHEREAS, onein every 12 adults (17.6 million people) suffers from alcohol abuse or dependence; and

WHEREAS, more than half of all adults in the U.S. have a family history of alcoholism or problem
drinking; and

WHEREAS, 100,000 persons die each year from alcohol-related causes: drinking and driving crashes, other
accidents, falls, fires, alcohol-related homicides and suicides; and

WHEREAS, alcohol-related problems cost America $224 billion ($746 per person) in lost productivity,
absenteeism, healthcare costs, crime and family-related problems

NOW THEREFORE, WE THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS do hereby proclaim April 23, 2015

NATIONAL ALCOHOL AWARENESS MONTH

and in so doing we urge all citizens to be in support of putting a stop to underage drinking by supporting the
Social Host ordinance in Fayette County and education themselves about the importance of ending alcohol
abuse.

So proclaimed this 23" day of April 2015,

CHARLES W. ODDO, Chairman






		Commissioners- Alcohol Awareness Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Alcohol Awareness Backup








New Business #15

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): County Manager Steve Rapson
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:
Consideration of Commissioner Brown's proposal to allow employees of local corporations to use Lake Mcintosh Park.

Background/History/Details:

Staff identified several potential issues with issuing a restrictive week-day only/specific hour type pass. The potential issues include
identification of industries as opposed to businesses, enforcement-related conflict due to specific hours, late lunches; 2nd shifts, etc., and
handling requests from other businesses throughout the county with fewer employees and requests for different lunch hours.

In an effort to address the concerns expressed by the local Peachtree City businesses, the Water Committee approved the following
measures that were implemented in December:

1. Entry fees were lowered to $5.00 at both Lake Mclntosh and Lake Horton; and
2. Annual passes ($50.00 windshield sticker) are available for purchase by anyone - so far we have issued 14 annual passes.

The Marshal's Officers are already observing increased participation in the parks since these changes were implemented.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to lower the entry fees to $5.00 at both Lake McIntosh and Lake Horton; and
implement an annual pass $50.00.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:
Non-County residents employed locally used to pay $10 per day and now they can purchase an annual pass of $50 per year, which
equates to a previous five (5) park visit under the old fee structure. The annual pass approach offers the benefit of park access, at a
reasonable price, without impacting our existing enforcement efforts.




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #15





Floyd Jones

From: Steve Brown

Sent: Wednesday, April 08, 2015 5:15 PM

To: Floyd Jones

Cc: Steve Rapson

Subject: Fw: Agenda item for April 23, 2015 BOC meeting
Attachments: 10-23-2014ActionAgenda.pdf

Floyd,

Please put this email in the packet for my April 23, 2015 agenda item on Lake Mclntosh Park.
Many thanks.

Steve Brown

Commissioner

Fayette County Board of Commissioners
140 Stonewall Avenue, Suite 100
Fayetteville, GA 30214

cell: 404.798.0587
www.fayettecountyga.gov

From: Steve Rapson

Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2015 1:49 PM

To: Steve Brown; Commissioners Group

Cc: epoole@fayettega.org; Anita Godbee; Lee Pope; Harold G. Myers
Subject: RE: Agenda item for April 23, 2015 BOC meeting

Honorable Commissioner Brown,

This was noted during the Board of Commissioner meeting on October 23, 2014. Minutes
attached and below.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:

Fluoride: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that fluoride is regulated through the State
of Georgia and therefore, its removal would have to come from the State of Georgia. He said
there was a way to petition for the item to be put on the ballot. Floating Docks and Parking at
County Lakes: County Administrator Steve Rapson replied to Mr. Gardner’s concerns about the
floating docks and parking at county lakes. He said Lakes McIntosh and Horton are drinking
water reservoirs, so there has to be approval from the Environmental Protection Division before
the docks can be installed. He further added that Mr. Gardner would be glad to know that the
County had recently amended its policy so that parking fees would be lowered to $5.00 a visit,
and it implements a $50.00 annual pass.





Steven Rapson

Fayette County

County Manager

srapson @fayettecountyga.gov
770.305.5100

From: Steve Rapson

Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2015 1:05 PM

To: Steve Brown; Commissioners Group

Cc: epoole@fayettega.org; Anita Godbee; Lee Pope; Harold G. Myers
Subject: RE: Agenda item for April 23, 2015 BOC meeting

Honorable Commissioner Brown,

This was discussed and approved at the Water Committee on November 12, 2014. Minutes
attached and below.

Water Committee November 12, 2014

ITI. PARKING FEES AT PARKS, PROCESS UPDATE.

Mr. Rapson reported that we currently charge $10.00 per visit and there is an electronic machine there that
enables that to happen. He said that we did an analysis that showed it was costing about as much time and effort
to keep that going and we have had a lot of suggestions from residents who use the parking fee, maybe we can
do something different. He said that he and staff have analyzed this over the last month and a half and they are
proposing to change the process to go back to manual envelopes, kind of what you see in the City of Atlanta
where you have an envelope and you put your car number in and you put it in a slot. This will make it a lot less
staff intensive in regards to managing the electronic machines; and lower the fee from $10.00 to $5.00 at all the
parks. Also, have a $50.00 annual pass. If you are a frequent flyer at the parks, you can get an annual pass, put a
sticker on your car and that will be good for a year; as opposed to paying $5.00, basically if you go more than
ten times you will get a pass. He said that we are getting ready to implement that, we are looking forward to
implementing that December 1. He said that we wanted to give the Water Committee an update. It has been
$10.00 for a while.

Mr. Rapson commented that part of it is how do you regulate who is there and who is not. What we are doing
now is based on the Fayette County tag, but there are obviously people who have businesses outside of Fayette
County and maybe they are getting their tag for their personal registered at their business in Coweta. When they
show up and they have a Coweta tag, they have to pay the fine. This will enable them to get an annual pass for
that vehicle, or they can get their car registered. He said there are also some concerns for some of the
businesses; they talked to Emily Poole and folks have a lunch break; they want to go over and eat at the
pavilion. Mr. Rapson went on to say that you have to keep in mind that our Marshals are not patrolling those
parks. There is active patrolling for whether they are parking there and they are outside the county when they
are driving through the lot, but short of that, we are not out patrolling the parks every five minutes looking for
people. This will make it a way that the businesses can buy the annual passes, or the resident could buy the
annual pass, and the six or seven people that have issued the concern to him that he has personally talked to
have seemed pleased that they could get a pass for $50.00 a year.

Commissioner Brown commented that there are some local companies that have an activity at their business;
one day they will do a picnic at the lake or something like that as a lunch thing. Just to get people out of the

2





office or out of the plant. They have expressed a real interest to him about having something where we could
allow that. We meet them halfway, that is probably the best way that he could figure out how to do it.

Steven Rapson

Fayette County

County Manager

srapson @fayettecountyga.gov
770.305.5100

From: Steve Brown

Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2015 12:06 PM

To: Steve Rapson; Commissioners Group

Cc: epoole@fayettega.org; Anita Godbee; Lee Pope; Harold G. Myers
Subject: Re: Agenda item for April 23, 2015 BOC meeting

| believe the proposal on the April 23 for the local industry is more flexible and work as an economic incentive
for attracting and maintaining local industry.

Please send me the BOC meeting date we approved the $5.00 fee and the $50 sticker. | will that discussion in
my presentation.

Steve Brown

Commissioner

Fayette County Board of Commissioners
140 Stonewall Avenue, Suite 100
Fayetteville, GA 30214

cell: 404.798.0587
www.fayettecountyga.gov

From: Steve Rapson

Sent: Monday, April 6, 2015 1:39 PM

To: Commissioners Group

Cc: epoole@fayettega.org; Anita Godbee; Lee Pope; Harold G. Myers
Subject: RE: Agenda item for April 23, 2015 BOC meeting

Honorable Commissioner Brown,

As you may recall, when this topic came up last October, staff identified several potential issues
with issuing a restrictive week-day only/specific hour type pass.

1.e. Identification of industries as opposed to businesses; enforcement related conflict due to
specific hours, late lunches, 2nd shifts, etc. and handling requests from other businesses
throughout the county with fewer employees and requests for different lunch hours.

In an effort to address the concerns expressed by the local PTC businesses the following
measures were implemented and have been in place since December:

1. Entry fees were lowered to $5.00 at both Lake McIntosh and Lake Horton; and
3





2. Annual passes ($50.00 windshield sticker) are available for purchase by anyone — so far
we have issued 14 annual passes.

The Marshall Officers are already observing increased participation in the parks since these
changes were implemented. The concern expressed by staff of having a restrictive week-day
only/specific hour type pass is that it could appear that the county is using favoritism towards
the business community versus other people i.e., walkers, boaters and people fishing. The
majority of people who use the parks do so on the weekends for recreational activities and the
yearly pass addresses all the concerns noted above.

While the proposed Monday through Friday 8 to 5 (or 10 to 3) pass would benefit one segment
of the population — keep in mind these employees used to pay $10/day and now they can
purchase an annual pass of $50/year which equates to a previous 5 park visit under the old fee
structure. The annual pass approach offers the benefit of park access, at a reasonable price,
without impacting our existing enforcement efforts.

Steven Rapson

Fayette County

County Manager

srapson @ fayettecountyga.gov
770.305.5100

From: Steve Brown

Sent: Saturday, April 4, 2015 11:32 PM

To: Floyd Jones

Cc: Steve Rapson; Charles Oddo; Steve Brown; epoole@fayettega.org
Subject: Agenda item for April 23, 2015 BOC meeting

Consider proposal to allow employees of local corporations to use Lake McIntosh Park
Description:

Several local businesses in Peachtree City’s industrial area have expressed their desire to county government
officials and the Fayette County Development Authority staff to allow their employees to use the park at the
new Lake McIntosh water reservoir for lunch breaks and activities. The one hindrance the businesses have is if
employees are not a county residents, they must pay a $10 fee to use the park.

Commissioner Steve Brown has been working with the local businesses on a way to allow more flexibility for
park usage, but still maintain the exclusivity for the Fayette citizens at the park. Local citizens would have
priority on the most sought after times on the weekends.

The use of the park is seen as another way to retain and recruit good paying jobs in the county.

The plan allows the local businesses to purchase numbered park decals for automobiles from the county to
distribute to their employees. Entry with the new decals would only be valid Monday through Friday, leaving
the busy weekend hours to local citizens and out-of-county users paying the $10 fee.

4





The new program would be a win-win for the county and the local businesses. By allowing corporate
employees to have lunch and other activities at the park on weekdays, the county has more eyes in the park
during low usage hours which helps prevent vandalism and the businesses have an amenity that promotes
employee recruitment and retention.

The local businesses would be responsible for the purchase, distribution and tracking of the decals for their
employees and the Fayette County Marshal’s officers are in charge of enforcement at the park.

Newly designed decals would be purchased by the businesses from the county every three years to insure
holders of the decals are current employees of the local businesses.

Steve Brown

Commissioner

Fayette County Board of Commissioners
140 Stonewall Avenue, Suite 100
Fayetteville, GA 30214

cell: 404.798.0587
www.fayettecountyga.gov






		Commissioners- Lake McIntosh Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Lake McIntosh Backup

		Commissioners- Lake McIntosh Backup-a

		Commissioners- Lake McIntosh Backup-b










New Business #13

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Environmental Management Presenter(s): Vanessa Birrell
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2015-07 Floodplain Management, by deleting Article IV, pertaining to "Floodplain
Management," from Chapter 104, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new Article IV in Chapter 104.

Background/History/Details:

Proposed amendments to Chapter 104, Fayette County Development Regulations Article IV, Floodplain Management include changing
the administrating department from Stormwater to Environmental Management and incorporating required changes made to the
ordinance by both the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District and the Georgian Environmental Protection Division.

Fayette County's Floodplain Management ordinance was significantly revised in 2008 and is one of the model ordinances required by the
state to be adopted by Fayette County and other small, municipal, separate storm sewer systems.

Exhibit A provides a red-line version of the proposed changes. Exhibit B provides the final-form document that incorporates the proposed
changes.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Adoption of Ordinance 2015-07 Floodplain Management, by deleting Article IV, pertaining to "Floodplain Management," from Chapter
104, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new Article IV in Chapter 104.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #13





EXHIBIT A

RED-LINE VERSION
of

ORDINANCE 2015-07





ARTICLE IV. - FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT

Sec. 104-83. - Introduction.

It is hereby determined that:

(1) Flood hazard areas of the county are subject to periodic inundation that may result in loss of life
and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services,
extraordinary public expenditures for flood relief and protection, and impairment of the tax base,
all of which adversely affect public health, safety and general welfare;

(2) Flood hazard areas serve important stormwater management, water quality, stream corridor
and bank protection, wetland preservation and ecological purposes when permanently
protected as undisturbed or minimally disturbed areas;

(3) Effective floodplain management and flood hazard protection activities can:
a. Protect human life and health;
b. Minimize damage to private property;

c. Minimize damage to public facilities and infrastructure such as water and gas mains,
electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets and bridges located in floodplains; and

d. Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects associated with
flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;

(4) Article IX, section Il of the constitution of the state and section 36-1-20(a) of the Official Code of
Georgia Annotated (O.C.G.A. § 36-1-20(a)) delegated the responsibility to local governmental
units to adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of
its citizenry. Therefore, the county does ordain this article and establishes this set of floodplain
management and flood hazard reduction pelicies—provisions for the purpose of regulating the
use of flood hazard areas. It is determined that the regulation of flood hazard areas and the
prevention of flood damage is in the public interest and will minimize threats to public health and
safety, as well as to private and public property;-.

Sec. 104-84. - Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Addition {teja#eﬂsnngubu#dmg) means any walled and roofed expanS|on to the perlmeter or he|gh
of a bU|Id|ng in-whi . wal—Any

Adjacent means those areas located within the defined horizontal distance from the future-conditions
floodplain boundary that are at or lower in elevation than either three feet above the base flood elevation
or one foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher, unless the area is
hydraulically independent (meaning absolutely no connection to the flooding source such as through
pipes, sewer laterals, down drains, foundation drains, ground seepage, overland flow, gated or valved
pipes, excavated and backfilled trenches, etc. with no fill or other manmade barriers creating the

separation).
Appeal means a request for a review of the stormwatermanagement—director'sEnvironmental

Management Director’s interpretation of any provision of this article.

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 1






Area of future-conditions flood hazard means the land area that would be inundated by the one-
percent-annual-chance flood based on future-conditions hydrology (100-year future-conditions flood.)

Area of special flood hazard means the land area subject to a one percent or greater chance of
flooding in any given year. This includes all floodplain and flood_prone areas at or below the base flood
elevation (including—designated as Zones A, A1-30, A-99, AE, AO, AH, and AR on the FHBM-eor
thecommunltvs flood msurance rate map (FIRM))—aM—ﬂeedptam—and—ﬂeedpr{me—areae—at—er—betew—the
. . For
dralnage areas less than 100 acres the area of speC|aI flood hazard shall be dellneated at the dlscretlon

of the stermwater-managementdirectorEnvironmental Management Director.

Accessory structure or facility means a structure that is on the same parcel of property as the
principal structure and the use of which is incidental to the use of the primary structure.

Base flood means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given
year, also known as the 100-year flood.

Base flood elevation means the highest water surface elevation anticipated at any given peint
location during the base flood.

Basement means a-pettionany area of a building having its floor subgrade (i-e-below ground level)
on more-than-one-sideall sides.

Building means any-the same as structure-built-for-suppert-shelier—or-enclosurefor-any-oeceupancy
crlors o,

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate including but not
limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, clearing, grubbing, grading, paving, any
other installation of impervious cover, excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or
materials.

Elevated building means a nenbasement-building without a basement built-to-have-thethat has its
lowest floor ef-the-lowest-enclosed-area—elevatedraised above the ground level by means—offill—solid
foundatlon penmeteewalls Qosts, plllngs columns plers or shear wallsadequatel%anekmed%ea&net

Environmental Management Department means the department so designated by the county board
of commissioners to interpret and implement this article.

Environmental Management Director means the person so appointed by the county board of
commissioners and his or her employees designated to enforce and interpret this article.

Existing construction means any structure where the "start-of-construction" commenced before June
23, 1983 (the effective date of the county's eriginakinitial floodplain management regulation).

Existing manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured home park or subdivision for
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be
affixed (including at a minimum the installation of utilities, the construction of street, and either final site
grading or the pouring of concrete pads) was completed before June 23, 1983 (the effective date of the
county's eriginakinitial floodplain management regulation).

Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision means the preparation of additional
sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be
affixed, including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the
pouring of concrete pads.

FEMA means the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 2






Flood or flooding means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of
normally dry land areas from the overflow of inland waters or the unusual and rapid accumulation or
runoff of surface waters from any source.

Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means an official map of a community, issued by theFederal
Insurance-AdministrationFEMA, delineating the areas of special flood hazard and/or risk premium zones
applicable to the community.

Flood insurance study (FIS) means the official report by the-Federal-lnsurance-AdministratiorRFEMA
evaluating—that provides an examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards, and
containingcorresponding flood profiles and water surface elevations of the base flood.

Floodplain_or flood prone area means any land area susceptible to flooding during the base flood.

Floodproofing means any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or
adjustments to structures which-that reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real
property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and their contents.

Floodway or regulatory floodway means the channel of a stream_ river or other watercourse and the
adjacent areas of-thefloodplain—which—is—necessarythat must be reserved in order to centain—and
discharge the base flood flew-without cumulatively increasing the base-floodwater surface elevation more
than enefoota designated height.

+unctionally-Functionally-dependent use means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose
unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port
facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and
ship repair facilities. It does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities.

Future-conditions flood means a flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in
any given year based on future-conditions hydrology, also known as the 100-year future-conditions flood.

Future-conditions flood elevation means a-floed-standard—equal-to—or-higherthan-the-baseflood
elevation—The{future-conditions—flood—elevation—is—defined—as—the highest water surface elevation

anticipated at any given peint-location during the future-conditions flood.

Future-conditions floodplain means any land area susceptible to flooding by the future-conditions
flood.

Future-conditions hydrology means the flood discharges associated with projected land-use
conditions based on a community's zoning mapmaps, comprehensive land-use plans, and/or watershed
study projections, and without consideration of projected future construction of flood detention structures
or projected future hydraulic modifications within a stream or other waterway, such as bridge and-or
culvert construction, fill, and excavation.

Highest-adjacent grade means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface; prior to
construction;-adjacentnext to the proposed feundation-walls of a buildingstructure.

Historic structure means any structure that is:

(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the U.S.
Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting
the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

(2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the
Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

(3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places and-determined-as—eligible-by states
with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior;

or

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 3






(4) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places and—determined—as—eligible—by

communities with historic preservation programs that have been certified either by:
a. An approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior; or
b. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.

Lowest floor means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including basement. An unfinished
or flood resistant enclosure, used-usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage, inan
area-other-than-a-basement-is not considered a building's lowest floor, provided that such enclosure is
not built so as to render the structure in violation of other provisions of this article.

Manufactured home means a buildingstructure, transportable in one or more sections, built on a
permanent chassis, and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when cennected
attached to the required utilities. The term includes any structure commonly referred to as a "mobile
home" regardless of the date of manufacture. The term also includes parked trailers, travel trailers and
similar transportable structures placed on a site for 180 consecutive days or longer and intended to be
improved property. The term does not include a recreational vehicle.

Mean sea level means the average-height-of-the-sea-for-all-stages—of-the-tidedatum to which base
flood elevations shown on a community’s FIRM are referenced. itis-used-as-areferenceforestablishing

For purposes of this article the term is synonymous with National

various-elevations within-the floodplain.-
Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 and/or the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988.

New construction means any structure (see definition) for which the "start of construction”
commenced on or after June 23, 1983, and includes any subsequent improvements to the structure.

New manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured home park or subdivision for
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be
affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site
grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after June 23, 1983.

Owner means the legal or beneficial owner of a site, including, but not limited to, a mortgagee or
vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other person, firm or corporation in control of
the site.

Permit means the—a building permit, land disturbance permit, certificate of zoning compliance,
subdivision plat or parcel reconfiguration issued and/or approved by the county to the applicant which is
required prior to undertaking any development activity.

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle which is:

(1) Built on a single chassis;

(2) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;
(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by light-duty truck; and,
(4) Designed primarily for use us temporary living quarters for recreational camping, travel, or

seasonal use and not for use as a permanent dwelling.

Repetitive loss means flood-related damage sustained by a structure on two separate occasions
during a 10-year period where the cost of repairs at the time of each such flood event, on the average,
equaled or exceeded 25 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

Site means the parcel of land being developed, or the portion thereof on which the development
project is located.

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 4






Start of construction means the date the permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction,
repair, reconstruction, substantial improvement or other improvement was within 180 days of the permit
date. The actual start means either the first placement of permanent construction of the structure on a
site, such as the pouring of slabs or footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, erany work
beyond the stage of excavation, and-includes;or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation.
A minimum of one inspection approval must be obtained as evidence that work, was commenced or that
work has continued. Permanent construction does not include initial land preparation such as clearing,
grading and filling, rerdees—it-include-the installation of streets and/or walkways:—+er—does—itinclude,
excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations erthe, erection of temporary forms;-rer-does-it

include-the, or installation on the property of buildings—appurienant-to-the-permitted-structureaccessory

structures, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or part of the main structure. {Note—

Accessory-structures-are-not-exemptirom—any-erdinancerequirements-For a substantial improvement,

the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part
of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.

Structure means a walled and roofed building including a gas or liquid storage tank that is principally

above ground or a manufactured homeaga&e#hqwds%erag&tarﬂé

of Iand into @ minimum of two (2) or more Iots

Substantial damage means the damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of
restoring the structure to its before-damaged-condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the market
value of the structure before the damage occurred.

Substantial improvement means any cembination—of —permitted—repaint—reconstruction,
alteration;rehabilitation, addition or imprevements—other improvement to a buildingstructure, taking place
during a ten-year period, in-whichwhere the cumulative cost equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market
value or the structure prior to the improvement. The market value of the building-structure means:

(1) The appraised value of the structure as determined by the county tax assessor prior to the start
of the initial repair or improvement; or

(2) In the case of damage the value of the structure prior to the damage occurnng—th+s—term

This term includes structures which have mourred “substantial damaqe reqardless of the actual repair
work performed hi ' i i

not however molude those |mprovements of a building requrred to comply with eX|st|ng health, sanitary,
or safety code specifications which are solely necessary to ensure safe living conditions, which-that have
been pre-identified by the code enforcement official, and are not solely triggered by an improvement or
repair project.

Substantially improved existing manufactured hera-parthome park or subdivision means the repair,
reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of the streets, utilities and pads equals or exceeds 50
percent of the value of the streets, utilities and pads before the repair, reconstruction or improvement
commenced.

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 5






Variance means a grant of relief from the requirements of this article-that-permits—construction-ina

horwi hibited by thic articlo.

V/olat/on means the fallure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the county
requirements of this article. A structure or other development without

the elevation certificate, other certificates, or other evidence of compliance required in this article is
presumed to be in violation until such time as that-documentation is provided.

Sec. 104-85. - General provisions.

(a)

Purpose and intent. The purpose of this article is to protect, maintain and enhance the public health,
safety, environment and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to flood
conditions in flood hazard areas, as well as to protect the beneficial uses of floodplain areas for
water quality protection, stream bank and stream corridor protection, wetlands preservation and
ecological and environmental protection. This article seeks to meet this purpose through the

following ebjectivesprovisions:

(1) Require that uses vulnerable in floods, including facilities that serve such uses, are protected
against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

(2) Restrict or prohibit uses dangerous to health, safety and property due to flooding or erosion
hazards, or that increase flood heights, velocities, or erosion;

(3) Control filling, grading, dredging and other development that may increase flood damage or
erosion;

(4) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that unnaturally divert floodwaters or which
may increase flood hazards to other lands;

(5) Limit the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers that
accommedation-efaccommodate floodwaters; and

(6) Protect the functions of stormwater management; water quality, stream banks and corridors,
wetlands, and-ecological functions of natural floodplain areas, and dams or impoundments.

Applicability. This article shall be applicable to all areas—of-areas of special flood hazard within-the
county-and all areas "adjacent” to an area of special flood hazard, within the county, as defined
herein. A property shall be subjeot to the terms and condltlons of thls artlole whenever a building

permit; : - Of “ocontoiniionoin
pareela pprova is reqwred and#e#appreveeLby the county or when other development is proposed.

Administration of article. The stermwater-management-directorEnvironmental Management Director

is hereby appointed to administer and implement the provisions of this article.

Compatibility with other regulations. This article is not intended to modify or repeal any other
ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, casement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law.
The requirements of this article are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule,
regulation or order provision of law and where any provision of this article imposes restrictions
different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law,
whichever provision is more restrictive or impese-imposes higher protective standards for human
health or the environment shall control.

Basis for area-establishing areas of special flood hazard-, areas of future-conditions flood hazard
and associated floodplain characteristics - flood area maps and studies. For the purposes of this
articledefining and determining areas of special flood hazard, areas of future-conditions flood hazard,
base flood elevations, floodplains, floodways, future-conditions flood elevations, future-conditions
floodplain, potential flood hazard or risk categories as shown on FIRM maps, and other terms used
in this article, the following documents and sources may be used for such purposes and are adopted
by reference:

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 6






(1) The September 26, 2008, flood insurance study (FIS) on file with the stermwatermanagement
departmentEnvironmental Management Department, with accompanying maps and other

supporting data and any revision thereto-is-hereby-adepted-by-reference.

(2) The Fayette County 2013 Limited Detailed Future Conditions Flood Study on file with the
Environmental Management Department, with accompanying maps and other supporting data.

2)(3) Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the base flood elevation
or delineation of the base or one-percent (100-year) floodplain and flood_prone areas including:

a. Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United Suites Army Corps of Engineers,
the United States Geological Survey or any other local, state or federal agency applicable
to the county; erand

b. Any base flood study authered-conducted by a registered-licensed professional engineer in
the—statethat which has been prepared by—utilizing FEMA-approved methodology and

approved by the stormwater—management—departmentEnvironmental Management
Department.

(4) Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the future-conditions flood
elevation or delineation of the future-conditions floodplain and flood_prone areas include:

+.a. Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army Corps of Engineers,
the United States Geological Survey, or any other local, state or federal agency applicable
to the county; er-and

2:b. Any future-conditions flood study that is_conducted by a licensed professional engineer in
the state that has been prepared utilitizing FEMA-approved methodology and approved by
the Environmental Management Department. Fayette County will only accept independent
studies indicating a 100 year elevation different from the Fayette County 2013 Limited
Detailed Future Conditions Flood Study if a HEC-RAS qualified independent engineer can
demonstrate to Fayette County that results are accurate. This demonstration will include
incorporating agreed upon independent parameters into the Fayette County 2013 Limited
Detailed Future Conditions Flood Study HEC-RAS model in such a manner that there are
no hydraulic jumps. The altered HEC-RAS model must be submitted to Environmental
Management Department in the electronic HEC-RAS file format.:

3)5) The repository for public inspection of the FIS, accompanying maps and other supporting
data is located at the county stermwater-management-departmentEnvironmental Management
Department.

() Warning and disclaimer of liability. The degree of flood protection required by this article is
considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering
considerations. Larger floods can and will occur, flood heights may be increased by manmade or
natural causes. This article does not imply that land outside the areas of special flood hazard or uses
permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. This article shall not create

| liability on the part of the county or by-any officer or employee thereof for any flood damages that
result from reliance on this article or any administrative decision lawfully made thereunder.

Sec. 104-86. - Standards for development.

| (a) Definition-areas-ofspecialtlood-hazardDetermination of floodplain boundaries.

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 7






(1) Studied "A" zones, as identified in the FIS shall be used to establish base flood elevations
whenever available.

(2) For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the future-conditions flood
elevations shall be provided by stormwater—management—deparimentthe Environmental

Management Department. If future-conditions elevation data is not available from the

stormwater-management-departmentEnvironmental Management Department, then it shall he
determined by a registered-licensed professional engineer using a method approved by FEMA

and the stormwatermanagementdepartmentEnvironmental Management Department.

(38) For streams or other drainage basins with drainage areas less than 100 acres, areas of special
flood hazard shall be determined by a registered-licensed professional engineer using a method
approved by the stermwatermanagement-departmentEnvironmental Management Department,
as required by the stermwatermanagementdirectorEnvironmental Management Director.

(4) The area of special flood hazard shall be delineated for all manmade flood hazards (e.g., yard
drains, stormwater management structures, inlets to storm sewer systems, dams or

impoundments, etc.) by a registered-licensed professional engineer.

Definition-Determination of floodway boundaries. The width of a floodway shall be determined from
the FIS, the Fayette County 2013 Future-conditions Flood Study or a-other FEMA-approved flood
study. For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the regulatory floodway shall be
provided by the stormwatermanagement-departmentEnvironmental Management Department. If
floodway data is not available from the stermwater—management—departmentEnvironmental

Management Department, then it shall be determined by a registered-licensed professional engineer

using a method approved by FEMA and the stermwater—management-departmentEnvironmental

Management Department.

General standards.

(1) No development shall be allowed within the-an area of special flood hazard or an area of future-
conditions fleedplain-flood hazard that could result in any of the following:

a. Raising the base flood elevation or future-conditions flood elevation equal to or more than
one 0.01 foot;

b. Reducing the base-flood or future-conditions flood storage capacity;

c. Changing the flow characteristics as to the depth and velocity of the waters of the base
flood or future-conditions flood as they pass both the upstream and the downstream
boundaries of the development area; or

d. Creating hazardous or erosion-producing velocities, or resulting in excessive
sedimentation.

(2) Any development within the-an area of special flood hazard or an area of future-conditions
floodplain—flood hazard allowed under subsection (c)(1) of this section shall also meet the
following conditions:

a. Acceptable means of providing required compensation include lowering of natural ground
elevations within the floodplain, or lowering of adjoining land areas to create additional
floodplain storage. In no case shall any required compensation be provided via bottom
storage or by excavating below the elevation of the top-of-the-natural (pre-development)
stream channel unless such excavation results from the widening or relocation of the
stream channel;

b. Cut areas shall be stabilized and graded to a slope of no less than two percent;

c. Effective transitions shall be provided such that flow velocities occurring on both upstream
and downstream properties are not increased or decreased;

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 8






d. \Verification of no-rise conditions, [0.01 foot or less], flood storage volumes, and flow
characteristics shall he provided via a step-backwater analysis meeting the requirements of
section 104-88(e);

e. Public utilities and facilities, such as water, sanitary sewer, gas, and electrical systems,
shall be located and constructed to minimize or eliminate infiltration or contamination from
floodwaters; and

f.  Any significant physical changes to the base flood floodplain shall he submitted as a
conditional letter of map revision (CLOMR) or conditional letter of map amendment
(CLOMA), whichever is applicable The CLOMR submittal shall be subject to approval by
the stormwater—management-departmentEnvironmental Management Department using
the community eensent-concurrence forms before forwarding the submittal package to
FEMA for final approval The responsibility for forwarding the CLOMR to FEMA and for
obtaining the CLOMR approval shall be the responsibility of the applicant. within-Within six
months of the completion of censtructiondevelopment, the applicant shall submit as-built
surveys and plans for a final letter of map revision (LOMR).

Sec. 104-87. - Provisions for flood damage reduction.

In all areas of special flood hazard and all areas of future-conditions flood hazard, the following provisions

apply:

(@)

General standards.

(1)

New construction ef-principal-buildingsand substantial improvement of structures (residential or
nonresidential), including manufactured homes, shall not be allowed within the limits of the
future-conditions floodplain, unless all requirements of subsection (g) of this section and
sections 104-86(a) and 104-88(e) have been met;

New construction er-and substantial improvements ef-existing-structures-shall be anchored to
prevent flotation, collapse erand lateral movement of the structure;

New construction er~and substantial improvements of-existing-structures—shall he constructed
with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage;

New construction er-and substantial improvements ef-existing-structures-shall be constructed by
methods and practices that minimize flood damage;

Elevated buildings. All new construction and substantial improvements ef-existing—structures
that include any fully enclosed urea-area located below the lowest floor formed by foundation
and other exterior walls shall be designed so-as—to-beas an unfinished and-or flood resistant
enclosure. The enclosure shall be designed to equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls
by allowing for the automatic entry and exit of floodwater.

a. Designs for complying with this requirement must either be certified by a licensed
professional engineer or architect erto meet or exceed the following minimum criteria:

1. Provide a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one
square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;

2. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade; and

Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or
devices provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwater in both directions.

b. So as not to violate the "lowest floor" criteria of this article, the unfinished and flood
resistant enclosure shall solely be used for parking of vehicles, limited storage of

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 9






maintenance equipment used in connection with the premises, or entry to the elevated
area; and

c. The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be partitioned or finished into separate
rooms.

(6) All heating and air conditioning equipment and components (including ductwork), all electrical,
ventilation, plumbing, and other service facilities shall be designed and/or located three feet
above the base flood elevation or one foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,
whichever is higher, so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the
components during conditions of flooding;

(7) Manufactured homes shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, erand lateral movement.
Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to
ground anchors. This standard shall be in addition to and consistent with applicable state
requirements for resisting wind forces;

(8) New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize to eliminate
infiltration of floodwaters into the system;

(9) New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate
infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and discharges from the systems into floodwaters;

(10) On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them;
or contamination from themsuch systems; during flooding;

(11) Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvement to a structure which-that is not compliant
with the provisions of this article, shall be undertaken only if the nonconformity is not furthered,
extended or replaced; and

(12) If the proposed development is located in multiple flood zones or multiple base flood elevations
cross the proposed site, the higher or more restrictive base flood elevation or future condition
elevation and development standards shall take precedence—;

(13) All proposed development shall include adequate drainage and stormwater management

facilities per the requirements of Article XIV, Fayette County Development Regulation to reduce
exposure to flood hazards;

(14) Public utilities, such as gas and electric systems, shall be located and constructed to minimize

or eliminate flood damage or public safety hazards; and

(15) When only a portion of a proposed structure is located within a flood zone or the future-

conditions floodplain, the entire structure shall meet the requirements of this article.

Building standards for structures and buildings within the future-conditions floodplain. The following
provisions, in addition to those in subsection (a) of this section, shall apply:

(1) Residential and nonresidential building structures.

a. New construction of principal-buildings;-including—manufactured-homesany structure shall

not be allowed within the limits of the future-conditions floodplain unless all requirements of
subsection (g) of this section and sections 104-86(c) and 104-88(e) have been met. If all of
the requirements of subsection (g) of this section, and sections 104-86(c) and 104-88(e)
have been met, all new construction shall have the lowest floor, including basement,
elevated no lower than three feet above the base flood elevation or one foot above the
future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher. Should solid foundation perimeter
walls be used to elevate the structure, openings sufficient to automatically equalize the
hydrologic—hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls anrd—tec—facilitate—the—unimpeded
movements—of-floodwaters-shall be provided in accordance with standards of subsection
(a)(5) of this section. A registered-licensed professional engineer or architect shall certify
that the design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of
practice for meeting the provisions above, and shall provide such certification to the

stormwater-managementdepartmentEnvironmental Management Department.

| PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 10






()

(4)

Substantial improvement of any prineipal-structure ermanufactured-home-shall have the
lowest floor, including basement, elevated no lower than three feet above the base flood
elevation or one foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher.
Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings sufficient
to automatically equalize the hydrelogic-hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls and-to
facilitate-the-unimpeded-movements—of-floodwaters-shall be provided in accordance with
standards of subsection (a)(5) of this section. A registered-licensed professional engineer
or architect shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in accordance with
accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and shall provide such
certification to the stormwater—management—departmentEnvironmental Management
Department.

Accessory structures and facilities. Accessory structures and facilities (i.e., barns, sheds,
gazebos, detached garages, parkinglets;—recreational facilities and other similar nonhabitable
structures and facilities) which meet the requirements of Sections 104-86(c), 104-88(e) and
104-87(q) and are permitted to be located within the limits of the future-conditions floodplain
shall be constructed of flood-resistant materials and designed to pass—all-floodwaterprovide
adequate flood openings in accordance with subsection (a)(5)(a) of this section and be

anchored to prevent flotation, collapse erand lateral movement of the structure.

Standards for recreational vehicles. All recreational vehicles placed on sites must either:

a.

Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready for
highway use, (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is licensed, on its wheels
or jacking system, attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security
devices, and has no permanently attached structures or additions); or

Fhe-recreational-vehicle—must-meetMeet all the requirements in subsection (b)(1) of this
section—for—residential-buildings,—substantia-mprevements, including the anchoring and

elevation reqwrements

Standards for manufactured homes.

a.

New manufactured homes shall not be allowed to be placed within the limits of the future-
conditions floodplain unless all requirements of subsection (g) of this section and sections
104-86(e) and 104-88(e) have been met. _If all the requirements of these sections have
been met, all new construction and substantial improvement shall have the lowest floor,
including basement, elevated no lower than three feet above the base flood elevation or
one foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher. Should solid
foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate the structure, openings sufficient to
automatically equalize the hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls shall be provided in
accordance with Section 104-87(5)a.

Manufactured homes placed and/or substantially improved in an existing manufactured
home park or subdivision shall be elevated so that either:

1. The lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated no lower than three feet above
the level of the base flood elevation, or one foot above the future-conditions flood
elevation, whichever is higher; or

2.  The manufactured home chassis is elevated and supported by reinforced piers (or
other foundation elements of at least an equivalent strength) of no less than 36 inches
in height above grade.

All manufactured homes must be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation
system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral movement in accordance with standards of
subsection (a)(7) of this section.

Building standards for structures and buildings authorized adjacent to the future-conditions
floodplain. For purposes of this article, the term "adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain”
includes: all buildings and structures on a property that contains (partially or entirely) an area of

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 11






(d)

special flood hazard; or all buildings and structures on a property that shares a common property line
with another parcel that contains an area of special flood hazard. Residential and nonresidential
buildings and structures adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain shall meet the following:

(1) For new eonstruction-orand substantial improvement ef-construction, the elevation of the lowest
floor, including basement and access to the building, shall be at least three feet above the base
flood elevation or one foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher.
Compliance with the above requwement shaII be detemne&@#eﬁeer—tmedsubmlttal of an as-
built elevation certlflcate

and submltted |mmed|ately upon completlon of
floodproofing or survey work. The elevation certificate shall be prepared by or under the direct
superV|3|on of a reg|stered Iand surveyor or professmnal englneer and certlfled by the same.

a. Buildings and structures authorized adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain may be
exempt from the requirements of this section if the following conditions apply:

1. The building or structure is not within the same sub-basin as the area of special flood
hazard and the drainage divide between the area of special flood hazard and the
building or structure of concern is at least three feet above the base flood elevation or
one foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher; or

2. The area of special flood hazard is a manmade hazard associated with a storm sewer
system (e.g., a yard drain) and the grading within the sub-basin provides
unconstrained, positive drainage away from the building or structure at a minimum
slope of two percent.

b. The stormwater-management-departmentEnvironmental Management Department shall
determine if either of these conditions is applicable to a building-or-structure. Alternatively,

the owner/developer may provide a letter justifying applicability of the exemptions. The
letter shall be prepared by a registered—licensed professional engineer and shall be
reviewed and approved by the stermwater—management—deparimentEnvironmental
Management Department in order for the exemption to be valid. In either case, the
owner/applicant shall be solely responsible for providing any as-built elevation data
necessary to determine applicability of the exemptions. The elevation data shall be
prepared by or under the direct supervision of a registered-licensed land surveyor or
professional engineer and certified by the same.

Building standards for residential single-lot developments on streams without an established base
flood elevations and/orand floodway (A-zones). For a residential single-lot development not part of a
subdivision that has-areascontains an area of special flood hazard, where streams exist but no base
flood data have been provided (A-zones), the stermwatermanagement-department-Environmental
Management Department shall review and reasonably utilize any available scientific or historic flood
elevation data, base flood elevation and floodway data, or future-conditions flood elevation data
available from a federal, state, local or other source, in order to administer the provisions and
standards of this article. If data are not available from any of these sources, the following provisions
shall apply:

(1) No encroachments, including structures or fill material, shall be located within an area equal to
twice the width of the stream or 50 feet from the top of the bank of the stream, whichever is
greater.

(2) In special flood hazard areas without base flood or future-conditions flood elevation data, new
construction and substantial improvements ef-existing-structures-shall have the lowest floor of
the lowest enclosed area (including basement) elevated no less than three feet above the
ground immediately around the building and positive drainage must be provided at a minimum
two percent slope away from the building. Openings-Flood openings sufficient to facilitate the

| PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 12






unimpeded-movementsautomatic equalization of floodwaters-hydrostatic flood forces shall be

provided for flood prone enclosures in accordance with subsection (a)(5) of this section.

Standards for subdivisions.

(1) All subdivision proposals shall identify the areas of special flood hazards and provide base flood
elevation data and future-conditions flood elevation data;

(2) All residential lots in a subdivision proposal shall have sufficient buildable area outside of the
future-conditions floodplain such that encroachments into the future-conditions floodplain for
residential structures will not be required;

(3) All subdivision plans will provide the elevations of proposed structures in accordance with
section 104-88(b);

Floodway encroachments. Located within areas of special flood hazard are areas designated as
floodway. A floodway may be an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of floodwaters, and
debris or erosion potential. in-addition,—floodwaysFloodways must remain free of encroachment in
order to allow for the discharge of the base flood without increased flood heights. Therefore, the
following provisions shall apply:

(1) Encroachments are prohibited, including earthen fill, new construction, substantial
improvements or other development within the regulatory floodway, except for activities
specifically allowed in subsection (g)(2) of this section;

(2) Encroachments for bridges, culverts, roadways and utilities within the regulatory floodway may
be permitted provided it is demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed
in accordance with standard engineering practice—practices that the encroachment shall not
result in any increase to the pre-project base flood elevations, floodway elevations, or floodway

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 13






Sec.

widths during the base flood discharge. A registered—licensed professional engineer must
provide supporting technical data and certification thereof; and

(3) If the applicant proposes to revise the floodway boundaries, no permit authorizing the
encroachment into or an alteration of the floodway shall be issued by the stormwater
management—departmentEnvironmental Management Department until an affirmative
conditional letter of map revision (CLOMR) is issued by FEMA and-or a no-rise certification is

approved by the stormwatermanagement-departmentEnvironmental Management Department.

Maintenance requirements. The property owner shall be responsible for continuing maintenance as
may be needed within an altered or relocated portion of a floodplain on his-the property so that the
flood-carrying or flood storage capacity is ret-diminishedmaintained. The stormwatermanagement
departmentEnvironmental Management Department may direct the property owner (at no cost to the
county) to restore the flood-carrying or flood storage capacity of the floodplain if the owner has not
performed maintenance as required by the approved floodplain management plan on file with the

stormwater-managementdepartmentEnvironmental Management Department.

104-88. - Permit procedures and requirements.

Permit application requirements. No owner or developer shall be approved for or perform any
development activities on a site where an area of special flood hazard or area of future-conditions
flood hazard is located without first meeting the applicable requirements, restrictions, and criteria of
this chapter prior to commencing the proposed activity. Unless specifically excluded by this
chapterarticle, any landowner or developer desiring a permit for a development activity shall submit

to the stermwatermanagement-departmentEnvironmental Management Department documentation
showing compliance with this ehapterarticle.

Floodplain management plan requirements. A floodplain management plan shall be required for all
projects with development activities within, either partially or completely, an area of special flood
hazard_or an area of future-conditions flood hazard. The plan shall include the following items:

(1) Site plan drawn to scale, which includes but is not limited to:

a. Existing and proposed elevations of the area in question and the nature, location and
dimensions of existing and/or proposed structures, earthen fill placement, amount and
location of excavation material, and storage of materials or equipment;

b. For all proposed structures, spot ground elevations at building eemers-corners and 20-foot
or smaller intervals along the foundation footprint, or one-foot contour elevations
throughout the building site;

Proposed locations of water supply, sanitary sewer, and utilities;
Proposed locations of drainage and stormwater management facilities;

Proposed grading plan;

- o o o

Base flood elevations and future-conditions flood elevations;

Boundaries of the base flood floodplain and future-conditions floodplain;

5 @

If applicable, the location of the floodway; and
i.  Certification of the above by a registered-licensed professional engineer or surveyor.
(2) Building and foundation design detail, including but not limited to:

a. Elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent grade) of the lowest floor,
including basement, of all proposed structures;

b. Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any nonresidential structure will be
floodproofed;

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 14






c. Certification that any proposed nonresidential floodproofed structure meets the criteria in
section 104-87(b)(2);_.and

d. For enclosures below the base flood elevation, location and total net area of feundation
flood openings are-as required in section 104-87(a)5:-and.

(3) Description;—based—on—engineering—calculations—or—modeling;—of the extent to which any

watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of the proposed development;

(4) Hard copies and digital files of computer models, if any, copies of work maps, comparison of
pre- and post-development conditions base flood elevations, future-conditions flood elevations,
flood protection elevations-—Special, special flood hazard areas and regulatory floodway
widthsfloodways, flood profiles and all other computations and other information similar to that
presented in the FIS;

(5) Copies of all applicable state and federal permits necessary for proposed development,
including but not limited to permits required by Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334; and,

(6) All appropriate certifications required under this chapter.

The approved floodplain management plan shall contain certification by the applicant that all development
activities will be done according to the plan or previously approved revisions. Any and all development
permits and/or use and occupancy certificates or permits may be revoked at any time if the construction
and development activities are not in strict accordance with approved plans.

()

Construction stage submittals. For all new construction and substantial improvements on sites with a

floodplain management plan, the permit holder shall provide to the stermwater—management
departmentEnvironmental Management Department a certified as-built elevation certificate or

floodproofing certificate for nonresidential construction ineluding—that includes the lowest floor
elevation or floodproofing level immediately after the lowest floor or floodproofing is
completedconstructed. A final elevation certificate shall be provided after completion of construction
including final grading of the site. Any lowest floor certification made relative to mean sea level shall
be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a registered-licensed land surveyor or professional

englneer and certlfled by the same. When—ﬂeedpreeﬂng—%uﬁh%ed#emmnree&denhal—s#ue&mes—e&d

Any work undertaken prlor to approval of these cert|f|cat|ons

eFemieeet—and—eemﬂed—by—me—eame—
shall be at the permit holder's risk. The stermwater—management—departmentEnvironmental

Management Department shall review the above referenced certification data submitted. deficiencies
Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and prior to

further work being-allewed-te-proceedproceeding. Failure to submit certification or failure to make the
corrections required hereby shall be cause to issue a stop work order for the project.

Duties and responsibilities of the administrator. Duties of the stormwater—management
departmentEnvironmental Management Department shall include, but shaltretbeare not limited to:

(1) Review of all development applications and permits to assure that the requirements of this
article have been satisfied and to determine whether proposed building sites will be reasonably
safe from flooding;

(2) Reguire-thatcopies-ofReview proposed development to assure that all necessary permits have
been received from governmental agencies from which approval is required by federal e~and/or
state law, including but not limited to, section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act

Amendments of 1972, No. 33 USC 1334;-be-provided-and-maintained-on-file;

(3) When base flood elevation data or floodway data have not been provided, then the stormwater

management-departmentEnvironmental Management Department shall require the applicant to
obtain, review and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation and floodway data available from

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 15






a federal, state or other seurces-source in order to meet the provisions of sections 104-86 and
104-87;

(4) Review and record the actual elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent grade)
of the lowest floor, including basement, of all new er-and substantially improved structures;

(5) Review and record the actual elevation, in relation to mean sea level to which any substantially
improved structures have been floodproofed;

(6) When floodproofing is utilized for a nonresidential structure, the ewner/developershall-provide
to—the—stormwater—management—departmentEnvironmental Management Department shall

review the design and operation and maintenance plans and obtain certification of-design
eriteria-from a registered-licensed professional engineer or architect;

(7) Notify affected adjacent communities and the state-deparimentof-natural-resourcesGeorgia
Department of Natural Resources (GA DNR) prior to any alteration or relocation of a
watercourse and submit evidence of such notification to thefederal-emergency-management
ageney-(FEMA)FEMA;

(8) Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the areas of special
flood hazard (e.g., where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual
field conditions) the stermwatermanagement-directorEnvironmental Management Director shall
make the necessary interpretation. Any person contesting the location of the boundary shall be
given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided in this chapter. Where
floodplain elevations have been defined, the floodplain shall be determined based on flood
elevations rather than the area graphically delineated on the floodplain maps; and

(9) All records pertaining to the provisions of this chapter shall be maintained by the county and
shall be open for public inspection-;

(10) Coordinate all FIRM revisions with the GA DNR and FEMA:; and

(11) Review variance applications and make recommendations to the Fayette County Planning
Commission.

Engineering study requirements for floodplain encroachments. An engineering study is required, as
appropriate to the proposed development activities on the site, whenever a development proposes to
disturb any land within the future-conditions floodplain, except for a residential single-lot
development on streams without established base flood elevations and/or floodways for which the
provisions of section 104-87(d) apply. This study shall be prepared by a currently registered-licensed
professional engineer in the state and made a part of the application for a permit. This information
shall be submitted to and approved by the stormwater—management-departmentEnvironmental
Management Department prior to the approval of any permit which-would—autherizeauthorizing the
disturbance of land located within the future-conditions floodplain. Such study shall include:

(1) Description of the extent to which any watercourse or floodplain will be altered or relocated as a
result of the proposed development;

(2) Step-backwater analysis, using a FEMA-approved methodology approved by the stormwater
management department. Cross sections and flow information shall be obtained whenever
available and supplemented by the applicant or by the stormwater management department.
Computations will be shown duplicating FIS results and will then be rerun with the proposed
modifications to determine the new base flood profiles, and future-conditions flood profiles;

(3) Floodplain storage calculations based on cross sections (at least one every 100 feet) showing
existing and proposed floodplain conditions to show that base flood floodplain and future-
conditions floodplain storage capacity would not be diminished by the development; and

(4) The study shall include a preliminary plat, grading plan, or site plan, as appropriate, which shall
clearly define all future-conditions floodplain encroachments.

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 16






Sec. 104-89. - Variance procedures.

The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who has been denied a
permit for a development activity or to an owner or developer who has not applied for a permit because it
is clear that the proposed deveIopment act|V|ty would be inconsistent with the prOV|S|ons of th|s chapter A

(1) Requests for variances from the requirements of this chapter shall be submitted to the
| stormwater—management—departmentEnvironmental Management Department. All  such
requests shall be heard and decided in accordance with procedures to be published in writing
| by the stormwater—management—deparimentEnvironmental Management Department. At a
minimum, such procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be

heard.

‘ (2) Any person adversely affected by any decision of the stormwater—management

departmentEnvironmental Management Department shall have the right to appeal such decision
to the county-planning-commissionFayette County Planning Commission as established by the
county in accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the county planning
commission. At a minimum, such procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the
opportunity to be heard.

(3) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the county—planning—commissionFayette County
Planning Commission may appeal such decision to the county state court, as provided in

section 5-4-1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (O.C.G.A. § 5-4-1).

(4) Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon a
determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's
continued designation as an historic structure, and the variance issued shall be the minimum
necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

(5) Variances may be issued for development necessary for the conduct of a functionally
dependent use, provided the criteria of this section are met, no reasonable alternative exists,
and the development is protected by methods that minimize flood damage during the base flood
and create no additional threats to public safety.

(6) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels
during the base flood discharge would result.

(7) In reviewing such requests, the stormwater—management—departmentEnvironmental
Management Department and the county—planning—commissionFayette County Planning

Commission shall consider all technical evaluations, relevant factors, and all standards
specified in this and other sections of this chapter.

(8) Conditions for variances.
a. Avariance shall be issued only when all of the following conditions are met;
1. Afinding of good and sufficient cause;

2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship;
and

3. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood
heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, or the
creation of a nuisance.

b. The provisions of this chapter are minimum standards for flood loss reduction; therefore,
any deviation from the standards must be weighed carefully. Variances shall only be
issued upon determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the

| flood hazard, to afford reliefrand,—in-the-instance—ofa-historic-structure,—a-determination

| PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 17






Sec.

c. Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the
difference between the base flood elevation and the elevation of the proposed lowest floor
and stating that the cost of flood insurance resulting from the lowest floor elevation being
placed below the base flood elevation will be commensurate with the increased risk to life

and property resuhting-from-thereduced-lowestfloorelevation-and such costs may be as

high as $25 or $100 of insurance coverage provided.

d. The stormwater-management-departmentEnvironmental Management Department shall
maintain the records of all appeal-variance actions and report any—variancesthem to the

federalemergency-managementagencyGA DNR upon request.

(9) Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the time the request is
acted upon, submit such information and documentation as stermwater—management
departmentEnvironmental ~ Management  Department and the  county—planning
commissienFayette County Planning Commission shall deem necessary te-thefor consideration
of the request.

(10) Upon consideration of the factors listed in subsection (8) of this section and the purposes of this

chapter, stormwater-management-departmentthe Environmental Management Department and
the county—planning—commissionFayette County Planning Commission may attach such

conditions to the granting of variances as they deem necessary or appropriate, consistent with
the purposes of this chapter.

(11) Variances shall not be issued "after the fact."

104-90. - Violations, enforcement and notice.

Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this chapter or the requirements of an
approved stormwater management plan or permit may be subject to the enforcement actions
outlined in this section. Any such action or inaction which is continuous with respect to time is
deemed to be a public nuisance and may be abated by injunctive or other equitable relief. The
|mposmon of any of the penaltles descrlbed below shall not prevent such equnable relief. Ihe

Notice of violation. If the stermwater—management—departmentEnvironmental Management

Department determines that an applicant or other responsible person has failed to comply with the
terms and conditions of a permit, an approved stormwater management plan or the provisions of this
chapter, it shall issue a written notice of violation to such applicant or other responsible person.
Where a person is engaged in activity covered by this chapter without having first secured a permit
therefor, the notice of violation shall be served on the owner or the responsible person in charge of
the activity being conducted on the site. The notice of violation shall contain:

(1) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person;
2
(3) A statement specifying the nature of the violation;
(4)

The address or other description of the site upon which the violation is occurring;

A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction into
compliance with the permit, the stormwater management plan or this article and the date for the
completion of such remedial action; and

(5) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to whom the
notice of violation is directed;-and.

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 18






Sec. 104-91. - Penalties.

(@)

In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been completed by
the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of actions or
penalties set forth in subsection (c) of this section may be taken or assessed against the person to
whom the notice of violation was directed.

Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the following penalties, the stormwater
management department shall first notify the applicant or other responsible person in writing of its
intended action, and shall provide a reasonable opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except,
that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24
hours' notice shall be sufficient) to cure such violation.

In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to cure such violation after such notice
and cure period, the stormwater management department may take any one or more of the following
actions or impose any one or more of the following penalties:

(1) Stop work order. The stermwater—management—departmentEnvironmental Management

Department may issue a stop work order which shall be served on the applicant or other
responsible person. The stop work order shall remain in effect until the applicant or other
responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has
otherwise cured the violation or violations described therein, provided the stop work order may
be withdrawn or modified to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the
necessary remedial measures to cure such violation or violations.

(2) Withhold certificate of occupancy. The stermwater—management—departmentEnvironmental

Management Department may refuse to issue a certificate of occupancy for the building or other
improvements constructed or being constructed on the site until the applicant or other
responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has
otherwise cured the violations described therein.

(8) Suspension, revocation or modification of permit. The stormwater—management
departmentEnvironmental Management Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit
authorizing the development project. A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be
reinstated after the applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set
forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided
such permit may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the stormwater management
department may deem necessary) to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take
the necessary remedial measures to cure such violations.

(4) Civil penalties. In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to take the remedial
measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations described
therein within ten days, or such greater period as the stormwater—management
departmentEnvironmental Management Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the
event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours'
notice shall be sufficient) after the stormwater—management—department—Environmental
Management Department has taken one or more of the actions described in subsection (c)(1)—
(3) of this section, the stormwater management department may impose a penalty not to
exceed $1,000.00 (depending on the severity of the violation) for each day the violation is not
remediated after receipt of the notice of violation.

(5) Criminal penalties. For intentional violations of this chapter, the stermwater—management
departmentEnvironmental Management Department may issue a citation to the applicant or
other responsible person, requiring such person to appear in the county state court to answer

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 19






charges for such violation. Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to
exceed $1,000.00 or imprisonment for 60 days or both. Each act of violation and each day upon
which any violation shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.

Secs. 104-92—104-110. - Reserved.

PAS Revisions April 9, 2015 Page 20






EXHIBIT A

FINAL FORM VERSION
of

ORDINANCE 2015-07





STATE OF GEORGIA
FAYETTE COUNTY
ORDINANCE
NO. 2015-07

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO
PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY
AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE
COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF
THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT
PERTAINS TO FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT (ARTICLE IV OF CHAPTER 104),

BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. By deleting Article IV, pertaining to “Floodplain Management”, from Chapter
104, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new Article IV in Chapter 104, to
be numbered and read as follows:

ARTICLE 1V. FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT.
Sec. 104-83. Introduction.
It is hereby determined that:

(1) Flood hazard areas of the county are subject to periodic inundation that





2)

3)

“)

may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards,
disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary
public expenditures for flood relief and protection, and impairment of
the tax base, all of which adversely affect public health, safety and
general welfare;

Flood hazard areas serve important stormwater management, water
quality, stream corridor and bank protection, wetland preservation and
ecological purposes when permanently protected as undisturbed or
minimally disturbed areas;

Effective floodplain management and flood hazard protection activities

can:

a. Protect human life and health;

b. Minimize damage to private property;

C. Minimize damage to public facilities and infrastructure such as
water and gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets
and bridges located in floodplains; and

d. Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control

projects associated with flooding and generally undertaken at
the expense of the general public.
Article IX, section II of the constitution of the state and section 36-1-
20(a) of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (O.C.G.A. § 36-1-

20(a)) delegated the responsibility to local governmental units to adopt





regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general
welfare of its citizenry. Therefore, the county does ordain this article
and establishes this set of floodplain management and flood hazard
reduction provisions for the purpose of regulating the use of flood
hazard areas. It is determined that the regulation of flood hazard areas
and the prevention of flood damage is in the public interest and will
minimize threats to public health and safety, as well as to private and

public property.

Sec. 104-84. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have
the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly
indicates a different meaning:

Accessory structure or facility means a structure that is on the same parcel of
property as the principal structure and the use of which is incidental to the use of the
primary structure.

Addition means any walled and roofed expansion to the perimeter or height of
a building.

Adjacent means those areas located within the defined horizontal distance from
the future-conditions floodplain boundary that are at or lower in elevation than either
three feet above the base flood elevation or one foot above the future-conditions flood

elevation, whichever is higher, unless the area is hydraulically independent (meaning





absolutely no connection to the flooding source such as through pipes, sewer laterals,
down drains, foundation drains, ground seepage, overland flow, gated or valved pipes,
excavated and backfilled trenches, etc. with no fill or other manmade barriers creating
the separation).

Appeal means a request for a review of the Environmental Management
Director’s interpretation of any provision of this article.

Area of future-conditions flood hazard means the land area that would be
inundated by the one-percent-annual-chance flood based on future-conditions
hydrology (100-year future-conditions flood).

Area of special flood hazard means the land area subject to a one percent or
greater chance of flooding in any given year. This includes all floodplain and flood
prone areas at or below the base flood elevation (designated as Zones A, A1-30, A-99,
AE, AO, AH, and AR on the community's flood insurance rate map (FIRM)). For
drainage areas less than 100 acres, the area of special flood hazard shall be delineated
at the discretion of the Environmental Management Director.

Base flood means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or
exceeded in any given year, also known as the 100-year flood.

Base flood elevation means the highest water surface elevation anticipated at
any given location during the base flood.

Basement means any area of a building having its floor subgrade (below
ground level) on all sides.

Building means the same as structure.





Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real
estate including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging,
filling, clearing, grubbing, grading, paving, any other installation of impervious cover,
excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials.

Elevated building means a building without a basement that has its lowest floor
raised above the ground level by foundation walls, posts, pilings, columns, piers, or
shear walls.

Environmental Management Department means the department so designated
by the county board of commissioners to interpret and implement this article.

Environmental Management Director means the person so appointed by the
county board of commissioners and his or her employees designated to enforce and
interpret this article.

Existing construction means any structure where the "start-of-construction"
commenced before June 23, 1983 (the effective date of the county's initial floodplain
management regulation).

Existing manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured home
park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on
which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum the
installation of utilities, the construction of street, and either final site grading or the
pouring of concrete pads) was completed before June 23, 1983 (the effective date of
the county's initial floodplain management regulation).

Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision means the





preparation of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on
which the manufactured homes are to be affixed, including the installation of utilities,
the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads.

FEMA means the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

Flood or flooding means a general and temporary condition of partial or
complete inundation of normally dry land areas from the overflow of inland waters or
the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.

Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means an official map of a community,
issued by FEMA, delineating the areas of special flood hazard and/or risk premium
zones applicable to the community.

Flood insurance study (FIS) means the official report by FEMA that provides
an examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards, corresponding flood
profiles and water surface elevations of the base flood.

Floodplain or flood prone area means any land area susceptible to flooding
during the base flood.

Floodproofing means any combination of structural and nonstructural
additions, changes, or adjustments to structures that reduce or eliminate flood damage
to real estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and
their contents.

Floodway or regulatory floodway means the channel of a stream, river or other
watercourse and the adjacent areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base

flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than a





designated height.

Functionally-dependent use means a use which cannot perform its intended
purpose unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term
includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the loading and
unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair facilities. It does
not include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities.

Future-conditions flood means a flood having a one percent chance of being
equaled or exceeded in any given year based on future-conditions hydrology, also
known as the 100-year future-conditions flood.

Future-conditions flood elevation means the highest water surface elevation
anticipated at any given location during the future-conditions flood.

Future-conditions floodplain means any land area susceptible to flooding by
the future-conditions flood.

Future-conditions hydrology means the flood discharges associated with
projected land-use conditions based on a community's zoning maps, comprehensive
land-use plans, and/or watershed study projections, and without consideration of
projected future construction of flood detention structures or projected future
hydraulic modifications within a stream or other waterway, such as bridge or culvert
construction, fill, and excavation.

Highest-adjacent grade means the highest natural elevation of the ground
surface prior to construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.

Historic structure means any structure that is:





(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing
maintained by the U.S. Department of Interior) or preliminarily
determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements
for individual listing on the National Register;

2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as
contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic district
or a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as a
registered historic district;

3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places by states with
historic preservation programs which have been approved by the
Secretary of the Interior; or

4) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places by
communities with historic preservation programs that have been
certified either by:

a. An approved state program as determined by the Secretary of
the Interior; or

b. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without
approved programs.

Lowest floor means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including

basement. An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of
vehicles, building access, or storage, is not considered a building's lowest floor,

provided that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of





other provisions of this article.

Manufactured home means a structure, transportable in one or more sections,
built on a permanent chassis, and designed to be used with or without a permanent
foundation when attached to the required utilities. The term includes any structure
commonly referred to as a "mobile home" regardless of the date of manufacture. The
term also includes parked trailers, travel trailers and similar transportable structures
placed on a site for 180 consecutive days or longer and intended to be improved
property. The term does not include a recreational vehicle.

Mean sea level means the datum to which base flood elevations shown on a
community’s FIRM are referenced. For purposes of this article the term is
synonymous with National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 and/or the
North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988.

New construction means any structure (see definition) for which the "start of
construction" commenced on or after June 23, 1983, and includes any subsequent
improvements to the structure.

New manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured home park
or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which
the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of
utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of
concrete pads) is completed on or after June 23, 1983.

Owner means the legal or beneficial owner of a site, including, but not limited

to, a mortgagee or vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other





person, firm or corporation in control of the site.

Permit means a building permit, land disturbance permit, certificate of zoning
compliance, subdivision plat or parcel reconfiguration issued and/or approved by the
county to the applicant which is required prior to undertaking any development
activity.

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle which is:

(D Built on a single chassis;

2) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal

projection;

3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by light-duty

truck; and

4) Designed primarily for use us temporary living quarters for recreational

camping, travel, or seasonal use and not for use as a permanent
dwelling.

Repetitive loss means flood-related damage sustained by a structure on two
separate occasions during a 10-year period where the cost of repairs at the time of each
such flood event, on the average, equaled or exceeded 25 percent of the market value
of the structure before the damage occurred.

Site means the parcel of land being developed, or the portion thereof on which
the development project is located.

Start of construction means the date the permit was issued, provided the actual

start of construction, repair, reconstruction, substantial improvement or other

10





improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start means either the
first placement of permanent construction of the structure on a site, such as the
pouring of slabs or footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, any work
beyond the stage of excavation, or the placement of a manufactured home on a
foundation. A minimum of one inspection approval must be obtained as evidence that
work, was commenced or that work has continued. Permanent construction does not
include initial land preparation such as clearing, grading and filling, the installation of
streets and/or walkways, excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations ,
erection of temporary forms, or installation on the property of accessory structures,
such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or part of the main structure.
For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first
alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or
not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.

Structure means a walled and roofed building including a gas or liquid storage
tank that is principally above groundor a manufactured home.

Subdivision means a division of a tract of land into a minimum of two (2) or
more lots.

Substantial damage means the damage of any origin sustained by a structure
whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before-damaged-condition would
equal or exceed 50 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage
occurred.

Substantial improvement means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or

"





other improvement to a structure, taking place during a ten-year period, where the
cumulative cost equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value or the structure prior
to the improvement. The market value of the structure means:

() The appraised value of the structure as determined by the county tax

assessor prior to the start of the initial repair or improvement; or

2) In the case of damage, the value of the structure prior to the damage

occurring.
This term includes structures which have incurred “substantial damage”, regardless of
the actual repair work performed. The term does not however, include those
improvements of a building required to comply with existing health, sanitary, or safety
code specifications which are solely necessary to ensure safe living conditions, that
have been pre-identified by the code enforcement official, and are not solely triggered
by an improvement or repair project.

Substantially improved existing manufactured home park or subdivision means
the repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of the streets, utilities and
pads equals or exceeds 50 percent of the value of the streets, utilities and pads before
the repair, reconstruction or improvement commenced.

Variance means a grant of relief from the requirements of this article.

Violation means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully
compliant with the requirements of this article. A structure or other development
without the elevation certificate, other certificates, or other evidence of compliance

required in this article is presumed to be in violation until such time as documentation

12





is provided.

Sec. 104-85. General provisions.

(a) Purpose and intent. The purpose of this article is to protect, maintain and
enhance the public health, safety, environment and general welfare and to minimize
public and private losses due to flood conditions in flood hazard areas, as well as to
protect the beneficial uses of floodplain areas for water quality protection, stream bank
and stream corridor protection, wetlands preservation and ecological and
environmental protection. This article seeks to meet this purpose through the
following provisions:

(1) Require that uses vulnerable in floods, including facilities that serve
such uses, are protected against flood damage at the time of initial
construction;

2) Restrict or prohibit uses dangerous to health, safety and property due to
flooding or erosion hazards, or that increase flood heights, velocities, or
erosion;

3) Control filling, grading, dredging and other development that may
increase flood damage or erosion,;

4) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that unnaturally
divert floodwaters or may increase flood hazards to other lands;

5 Limit the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural

protective barriers that accommodate floodwaters; and

13





(6) Protect the functions of stormwater management; water quality, stream
banks and corridors, wetlands, ecological functions of natural
floodplain areas, and dams or impoundments.

(b) Applicability. This article shall be applicable to all areas of special flood
hazard and all areas "adjacent" to an area of special flood hazard, within the county, as
defined herein. A property shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this article
whenever a permit or approval is required by the county or when other development is
proposed.

(©) Administration of article. The Environmental Management Director is hereby
appointed to administer and implement the provisions of this article.

(d) Compatibility with other regulations. This article is not intended to modify or
repeal any other ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, casement, covenant, deed
restriction or other provision of law. The requirements of this article are in addition to
the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, regulation or order provision of law and
where any provision of this article imposes restrictions different from those imposed
by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, whichever provision
is more restrictive or imposes higher protective standards for human health or the
environment shall control.

(e) Basis for establishing areas of special flood hazard, areas of future-conditions
flood hazard and associated floodplain characteristics - flood area maps and studies.
For the purposes of defining and determining areas of special flood hazard, areas of

future-conditions flood hazard, base flood elevations, floodplains, floodways, future-

14





conditions flood elevations, future-conditions floodplain, potential flood hazard or risk

categories as shown on FIRM maps, and other terms used in this article, the following

documents and sources may be used for such purposes and are adopted by reference:

&)

2)

3)

“)

The September 26, 2008, flood insurance study (FIS) on file with the
Environmental Management Department, with accompanying maps and
other supporting data and any revision thereto.

The Fayette County 2013 Limited Detailed Future Conditions Flood

Study on file with the Environmental Management Department, with

accompanying maps and other supporting data.

Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the

base flood elevation or delineation of the base or one-percent (100-

year) floodplain and flood prone areas including:

a. Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United Suites
Army Corps of Engineers, the United States Geological Survey
or any other local, state or federal agency applicable to the
county; and

b. Any base flood study conducted by a licensed professional
engineer that which has been prepared utilizing FEMA-
approved methodology and approved by the Environmental
Management Department.

Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the

future-conditions flood elevation or delineation of the future-conditions

15





floodplain and flood prone areas include:

a. Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States
Army Corps of Engineers, the United States Geological Survey,
or any other local, state or federal agency applicable to the
county; and

b. Any future-conditions flood study that is conducted by a
licensed professional engineer in the state that has been
prepared utilitizing FEMA-approved methodology and
approved by the Environmental Management Department.
Fayette County will only accept independent studies indicating
a 100 year elevation different from the Fayette County 2013
Limited Detailed Future Conditions Flood Study if a HEC-RAS
qualified independent engineer can demonstrate to Fayette
County that results are accurate. This demonstration will
include incorporating agreed upon independent parameters into
the Fayette County 2013 Limited Detailed Future Conditions
Flood Study HEC-RAS model in such a manner that there are
no hydraulic jumps. The altered HEC-RAS model must be
submitted to Environmental Management Department in the
electronic HEC-RAS file format.

5) The repository for public inspection of the FIS, accompanying maps

and other supporting data is located at the county Environmental

16





Management Department.
) Warning and disclaimer of liability. The degree of flood protection required by
this article is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific
and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur, flood heights may
be increased by manmade or natural causes. This article does not imply that land
outside the areas of special flood hazard or uses permitted within such areas will be
free from flooding or flood damages. This article shall not create liability on the part
of the county or any officer or employee thereof for any flood damages that result

from reliance on this article or any administrative decision lawfully made thereunder.

Sec. 104-86. Standards for development.
(a) Determination of floodplain boundaries.
(D Studied "A" zones, as identified in the FIS shall be used to establish
base flood elevations whenever available.
2) For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the future-
conditions flood elevations shall be provided by the Environmental
Management Department. If future-conditions elevation data is not
available from the Environmental Management Department, then it
shall he determined by a licensed professional engineer using a method
approved by FEMA and the Environmental Management Department.
3) For streams or other drainage basins with drainage areas less than 100

acres, areas of special flood hazard shall be determined by a licensed

17





professional engineer using a method approved by the Environmental
Management Department, as required by the Environmental
Management Director.

€)) The area of special flood hazard shall be delineated for all manmade
flood hazards (e.g., yard drains, stormwater management structures,
inlets to storm sewer systems, dams or impoundments, etc.) by a
licensed professional engineer.

(b) Determination of floodway boundaries. The width of a floodway shall be
determined from the FIS, the Fayette County 2013 Future-conditions Flood Study or
other FEMA-approved flood study. For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres
or greater, the regulatory floodway shall be provided by the Environmental
Management Department. If floodway data is not available from the Environmental
Management Department, then it shall be determined by a licensed professional
engineer using a method approved by FEMA and the Environmental Management
Department.

(©) General standards.

(1) No development shall be allowed within an area of special flood hazard
or an area of future-conditions flood hazard that could result in any of
the following:

a. Raising the base flood elevation or future-conditions flood
elevation equal to or more than one 0.01 foot;

b. Reducing the base-flood or future-conditions flood storage

18





2)

capacity;

C. Changing the flow characteristics as to the depth and velocity of
the waters of the base flood or future-conditions flood as they
pass both the upstream and the downstream boundaries of the
development area; or

d. Creating hazardous or erosion-producing velocities, or resulting
in excessive sedimentation.

Any development within an area of special flood hazard or an area of

future-conditions flood hazard allowed under subsection (c)(1) of this

section shall also meet the following conditions:

a. Acceptable means of providing required compensation include
lowering of natural ground elevations within the floodplain, or
lowering of adjoining land areas to create additional floodplain
storage. In no case shall any required compensation be provided
via bottom storage or by excavating below the elevation of the
natural (pre-development) stream channel unless such
excavation results from the widening or relocation of the stream
channel;

b. Cut areas shall be stabilized and graded to a slope of no less
than two percent;

C. Effective transitions shall be provided such that flow velocities

occurring on both upstream and downstream properties are not

19





increased or decreased;

Verification of no-rise conditions, [0.01 foot or less], flood
storage volumes, and flow characteristics shall he provided via
a step-backwater analysis meeting the requirements of section
104-88(e);

Public utilities and facilities, such as water, sanitary sewer, gas,
and electrical systems, shall be located and constructed to
minimize or eliminate infiltration or contamination from
floodwaters; and

Any significant physical changes to the base flood floodplain
shall he submitted as a conditional letter of map revision
(CLOMR) or conditional letter of map amendment (CLOMA),
whichever is applicable The CLOMR submittal shall be subject
to approval by the Environmental Management Department
using the community concurrence forms before forwarding the
submittal package to FEMA for final approval The
responsibility for forwarding the CLOMR to FEMA and for
obtaining the CLOMR approval shall be the responsibility of
the applicant. Within six months of the completion of
development, the applicant shall submit as-built surveys and

plans for a final letter of map revision (LOMR).

20





Sec. 104-87. Provisions for flood damage reduction.

In all areas of special flood hazard and all areas of future-conditions flood

hazard, the following provisions apply:

(a) General standards.

&)

2)

3)

“)

®)

New construction and substantial improvement of structures
(residential or nonresidential), including manufactured homes, shall not
be allowed within the limits of the future-conditions floodplain, unless
all requirements of subsection (g) of this section and sections 104-86(a)
and 104-88(e) have been met;

New construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to
prevent flotation, collapse and lateral movement of the structure;

New construction and substantial improvements shall he constructed
with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage;

New construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed by
methods and practices that minimize flood damage;

Elevated buildings. All new construction and substantial improvements
that include any fully enclosed area located below the lowest floor
formed by foundation and other exterior walls shall be designed as an
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure. The enclosure shall be designed
to equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for
the automatic entry and exit of floodwater.

a. Designs for complying with this requirement must either be

21





(6)

certified by a licensed professional engineer or architect to meet

or exceed the following minimum criteria:

1. Provide a minimum of two openings having a total net
area of not less than one square inch for every square
foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;

2. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one
foot above grade; and

3. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves
or other coverings or devices provided they permit the
automatic flow of floodwater in both directions.

So as not to violate the "lowest floor" criteria of this article, the

unfinished and flood resistant enclosure shall solely be used for

parking of vehicles, limited storage of maintenance equipment
used in connection with the premises, or entry to the elevated
area; and

The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be

partitioned or finished into separate rooms.

All heating and air conditioning equipment and components (including
ductwork), all electrical, ventilation, plumbing, and other service
facilities shall be designed and/or located three feet above the base
flood elevation or one foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,

whichever is higher, so as to prevent water from entering or

22





accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding;

@) Manufactured homes shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse,
and lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but are not
limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors. This
standard shall be in addition to and consistent with applicable state
requirements for resisting wind forces;

(8) New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to
minimize to eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system:;

) New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to
minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and
discharges from the systems into floodwaters;

(10)  On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to
avoid impairment to or contamination from such systems during
flooding;

(11)  Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvement to a structure that
is not compliant with the provisions of this article, shall be undertaken
only if the nonconformity is not furthered, extended or replaced;

(12)  If the proposed development is located in multiple flood zones or
multiple base flood elevations cross the proposed site, the higher or
more restrictive base flood elevation or future condition elevation and
development standards shall take precedence;

(13)  All proposed development shall include adequate drainage and

23





stormwater management facilities per the requirements of Article XIV,
Fayette County Development Regulation to reduce exposure to flood
hazards;

(14)  Public utilities, such as gas and electric systems, shall be located and
constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage or public safety
hazards; and

(15)  When only a portion of a proposed structure is located within a flood
zone or the future-conditions floodplain, the entire structure shall meet
the requirements of this article.

(b) Building standards for structures and buildings within the future-conditions
floodplain. The following provisions, in addition to those in subsection (a) of this
section, shall apply:

(D Residential and nonresidential building structures.

a. New construction of any structure shall not be allowed within
the limits of the future-conditions floodplain unless all
requirements of subsection (g) of this section and sections 104-
86(c) and 104-88(e) have been met. If all of the requirements of
subsection (g) of this section, and sections 104-86(c) and 104-
88(e) have been met, all new construction shall have the lowest
floor, including basement, elevated no lower than three feet
above the base flood elevation or one foot above the future-

conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher. Should solid

24





foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate the structure,
openings sufficient to automatically equalize the hydrostatic
flood forces on exterior walls shall be provided in accordance
with standards of subsection (a)(5) of this section. A licensed
professional engineer or architect shall certify that the design
and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted
standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and shall
provide such certification to the Environmental Management
Department.

Substantial improvement of any structure shall have the lowest
floor, including basement, elevated no lower than three feet
above the base flood elevation or one foot above the future-
conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher. Should solid
foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure,
openings sufficient to automatically equalize the hydrostatic
flood forces on exterior walls shall be provided in accordance
with standards of subsection (a)(5) of this section. A licensed
professional engineer or architect shall certify that the design
and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted
standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and shall
provide such certification to the Environmental Management

Department.

25





c. Accessory structures and facilities. Accessory structures and
facilities (i.e., barns, sheds, gazebos, detached garages,
recreational facilities and other similar nonhabitable structures
and facilities) which meet the requirements of Sections 104-
86(c), 104-88(e) and 104-87(g) and are permitted to be located
within the limits of the future-conditions floodplain shall be
constructed of flood-resistant materials and designed to provide
adequate flood openings in accordance with subsection (a)(5)(a)
of this section and be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and
lateral movement of the structure.

3) Standards for recreational vehicles. All recreational vehicles placed on
sites must either:

a. Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully
licensed and ready for highway use, (a recreational vehicle is
ready for highway use if it is licensed, on its wheels or jacking
system, attached to the site only by quick disconnect type
utilities and security devices, and has no permanently attached
structures or additions); or

b. Meet all the requirements in subsection (b)(1) of this section,
including the anchoring and elevation requirements.

4) Standards for manufactured homes.

a. New manufactured homes shall not be allowed to be placed

26





within the limits of the future-conditions floodplain unless all

requirements of subsection (g) of this section and sections 104-

86(e) and 104-88(e) have been met. If all the requirements of

these sections have been met, all new construction and

substantial improvement shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated no lower than three feet above the base
flood elevation or one foot above the future-conditions flood
elevation, whichever is higher. Should solid foundation
perimeter walls be used to elevate the structure, openings
sufficient to automatically equalize the hydrostatic flood forces
on exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with Section
104-87(5)a.

Manufactured homes placed and/or substantially improved in an

existing manufactured home park or subdivision shall be

elevated so that either:

1. The lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated
no lower than three feet above the level of the base flood
elevation, or one foot above the future-conditions flood
elevation, whichever is higher; or

2. The manufactured home chassis is elevated and
supported by reinforced piers (or other foundation

elements of at least an equivalent strength) of no less

27





than 36 inches in height above grade.

C. All manufactured homes must be securely anchored to an
adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation,
collapse and lateral movement in accordance with standards of
subsection (a)(7) of this section.

(©) Building standards for structures and buildings authorized adjacent to the
future-conditions floodplain. For purposes of this article, the term "adjacent to the
future-conditions floodplain" includes: all buildings and structures on a property that
contains (partially or entirely) an area of special flood hazard; or all buildings and
structures on a property that shares a common property line with another parcel that
contains an area of special flood hazard. Residential and nonresidential buildings and
structures adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain shall meet the following:

(D For new and substantial improvement construction, the elevation of the
lowest floor, including basement and access to the building, shall be at
least three feet above the base flood elevation or one foot above the
future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher. Compliance
with the above requirement shall be submittal of an as-built elevation
certificate and submitted immediately upon completion of
floodproofing or survey work. The elevation certificate shall be
prepared by or under the direct supervision of a registered land
surveyor or professional engineer and certified by the same.

a. Buildings and structures authorized adjacent to the future-

28





conditions floodplain may be exempt from the requirements of

this section if the following conditions apply:

1. The building or structure is not within the same sub-
basin as the area of special flood hazard and the
drainage divide between the area of special flood hazard
and the building or structure of concern is at least three
feet above the base flood elevation or one foot above the
future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher;
or

2. The area of special flood hazard is a manmade hazard
associated with a storm sewer system (e.g., a yard drain)
and the grading within the sub-basin provides
unconstrained, positive drainage away from the building
or structure at a minimum slope of two percent.

The Environmental Management Department shall determine if

either of these conditions is applicable to a structure.

Alternatively, the owner/developer may provide a letter

justifying applicability of the exemptions. The letter shall be

prepared by a licensed professional engineer and shall be
reviewed and approved by the Environmental Management

Department in order for the exemption to be valid. In either

case, the owner/applicant shall be solely responsible for

29





providing any as-built elevation data necessary to determine
applicability of the exemptions. The elevation data shall be
prepared by or under the direct supervision of a licensed land
surveyor or professional engineer and certified by the same.
(d) Building standards for residential single-lot developments on streams without
an established base flood elevations and floodway (A-zones). For a residential single-
lot development not part of a subdivision that contains an area of special flood hazard,
where streams exist but no base flood data have been provided (A-zones), the
Environmental Management Department shall review and reasonably utilize any
available scientific or historic flood elevation data, base flood elevation and floodway
data, or future-conditions flood elevation data available from a federal, state, local or
other source, in order to administer the provisions and standards of this article. If data
are not available from any of these sources, the following provisions shall apply:

(D No encroachments, including structures or fill material, shall be located
within an area equal to twice the width of the stream or 50 feet from the
top of the bank of the stream, whichever is greater.

2) In special flood hazard areas without base flood or future-conditions
flood elevation data, new construction and substantial improvements
shall have the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including
basement) elevated no less than three feet above the ground
immediately around the building and positive drainage must be

provided at a minimum two percent slope away from the building.

30





Flood openings sufficient to facilitate automatic equalization of
hydrostatic flood forces shall be provided for flood prone enclosures in
accordance with subsection (a)(5) of this section.

(e) Standards for subdivisions.

(1) All subdivision proposals shall identify the areas of special flood
hazards and provide base flood elevation data and future-conditions
flood elevation data;

2) All residential lots in a subdivision proposal shall have sufficient
buildable area outside of the future-conditions floodplain such that
encroachments into the future-conditions floodplain for residential
structures will not be required; and

3) All subdivision plans will provide the elevations of proposed structures
in accordance with section 104-88(b).

) Floodway encroachments. Located within areas of special flood hazard are
areas designated as floodway. A floodway may be an extremely hazardous area due to
the velocity of floodwaters, and debris or erosion potential. Floodways must remain
free of encroachment in order to allow for the discharge of the base flood without
increased flood heights. Therefore, the following provisions shall apply:

(D Encroachments are prohibited, including earthen fill, new construction,
substantial improvements or other development within the regulatory
floodway, except for activities specifically allowed in subsection (g)(2)

of this section;

31





2)

3)

Encroachments for bridges, culverts, roadways and utilities within the
regulatory floodway may be permitted provided it is demonstrated
through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance
with standard engineering practices that the encroachment shall not
result in any increase to the pre-project base flood elevations, floodway
elevations, or floodway widths during the base flood discharge. A
licensed professional engineer must provide supporting technical data
and certification thereof; and

If the applicant proposes to revise the floodway boundaries, no permit
authorizing the encroachment into or an alteration of the floodway shall
be issued by the Environmental Management Department until an
affirmative conditional letter of map revision (CLOMR) is issued by
FEMA or a no-rise certification is approved by the Environmental

Management Department.

Maintenance requirements. The property owner shall be responsible for

Department.

continuing maintenance as may be needed within an altered or relocated portion of a
floodplain on the property so that the flood-carrying or flood storage capacity is
maintained. The Environmental Management Department may direct the property
owner (at no cost to the county) to restore the flood-carrying or flood storage capacity
of the floodplain if the owner has not performed maintenance as required by the

approved floodplain management plan on file with the Environmental Management

32





Sec. 104-88. Permit procedures and requirements.
(a) Permit application requirements. No owner or developer shall be approved for
or perform any development activities on a site where an area of special flood hazard
or area of future-conditions flood hazard is located without first meeting the applicable
requirements, restrictions, and criteria of this chapter prior to commencing the
proposed activity. Unless specifically excluded by this article, any landowner or
developer desiring a permit for a development activity shall submit to the
Environmental Management Department documentation showing compliance with this
article.
(b) Floodplain management plan requirements. A floodplain management plan
shall be required for all projects with development activities within, either partially or
completely, an area of special flood hazard or an area of future-conditions flood
hazard. The plan shall include the following items:

(D Site plan drawn to scale, which includes but is not limited to:

a. Existing and proposed elevations of the area in question and the
nature, location and dimensions of existing and/or proposed
structures, earthen fill placement, amount and location of
excavation material, and storage of materials or equipment;

b. For all proposed structures, spot ground elevations at building
corners and 20-foot or smaller intervals along the foundation

footprint, or one-foot contour elevations throughout the building

33





2)

3)

site;

Proposed locations of water supply, sanitary sewer, and utilities;
Proposed locations of drainage and stormwater management
facilities;

Proposed grading plan;

Base flood elevations and future-conditions flood elevations;
Boundaries of the base flood floodplain and future-conditions
floodplain;

If applicable, the location of the floodway; and

Certification of the above by a licensed professional engineer or

surveyor.

Building and foundation design detail, including but not limited to:

a.

Elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent
grade) of the lowest floor, including basement, of all proposed
structures;

Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any
nonresidential structure will be floodproofed;

Certification that any proposed nonresidential floodproofed
structure meets the criteria in section 104-87(b)(2); and

For enclosures below the base flood elevation, location and total

net area of flood openings as required in section 104-87(a)5.

Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or

34





relocated as a result of the proposed development;

4) Hard copies and digital files of computer models, if any, copies of work
maps, comparison of pre- and post-development conditions base flood
elevations, future-conditions flood elevations, flood protection
elevations, special flood hazard areas and regulatory floodways, flood
profiles and all other computations and other information similar to that
presented in the FIS;

5) Copies of all applicable state and federal permits necessary for
proposed development, including but not limited to permits required by
Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments
of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334; and,

(6) All appropriate certifications required under this chapter.

The approved floodplain management plan shall contain certification by the applicant
that all development activities will be done according to the plan or previously
approved revisions. Any and all development permits and/or use and occupancy
certificates or permits may be revoked at any time if the construction and development
activities are not in strict accordance with approved plans.

(©) Construction stage submittals. For all new construction and substantial
improvements on sites with a floodplain management plan, the permit holder shall
provide to the Environmental Management Department a certified as-built elevation
certificate or floodproofing certificate for nonresidential construction that includes the

lowest floor elevation or floodproofing level immediately after the lowest floor or

35





floodproofing is constructed. A final elevation certificate shall be provided after
completion of construction including final grading of the site. Any lowest floor
certification made relative to mean sea level shall be prepared by or under the direct
supervision of a licensed land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by the
same. Any work undertaken prior to approval of these certifications shall be at the
permit holder's risk. The Environmental Management Department shall review the
above referenced certification data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review
shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and prior to further work
proceeding. Failure to submit certification or failure to make the corrections required
hereby shall be cause to issue a stop work order for the project.

(d) Duties and responsibilities of the administrator. Duties of the Environmental
Management Department shall include, but are not limited to:

(1) Review of all development applications and permits to assure that the
requirements of this article have been satisfied and to determine
whether proposed building sites will be reasonably safe from flooding;

2) Review proposed development to assure that all necessary permits have
been received from governmental agencies from which approval is
required by federal and/or state law, including but not limited to,
section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of
1972, No. 33 USC 1334;

3) When base flood elevation data or floodway data have not been

provided, then the Environmental Management Department shall

36





“)

(&)

(6)

(7

®)

require the applicant to obtain, review and reasonably utilize any base
flood elevation and floodway data available from a federal, state or
other source in order to meet the provisions of sections 104-86 and
104-87,;

Review and record the actual elevation in relation to mean sea level (or
highest adjacent grade) of the lowest floor, including basement, of all
new and substantially improved structures;

Review and record the actual elevation, in relation to mean sea level to
which any substantially improved structures have been floodproofed;
When floodproofing is utilized for a nonresidential structure, the
Environmental Management Department shall review the design and
operation and maintenance plans and obtain certification from a
licensed professional engineer or architect;

Notify affected adjacent communities and the Georgia Department of
Natural Resources (GA DNR) prior to any alteration or relocation of a
watercourse and submit evidence of such notification to FEMA;
Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of
the areas of special flood hazard (e.g., where there appears to be a
conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions) the
Environmental Management Director shall make the necessary
interpretation. Any person contesting the location of the boundary shall

be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as

37





provided in this chapter. Where floodplain elevations have been
defined, the floodplain shall be determined based on flood elevations
rather than the area graphically delineated on the floodplain maps;
&) All records pertaining to the provisions of this chapter shall be
maintained by the county and shall be open for public inspection;
(10)  Coordinate all FIRM revisions with the GA DNR and FEMA; and
(11)  Review variance applications and make recommendations to the
Fayette County Planning Commission.
(e) Engineering study requirements for floodplain encroachments. An engineering
study is required, as appropriate to the proposed development activities on the site,
whenever a development proposes to disturb any land within the future-conditions
floodplain, except for a residential single-lot development on streams without
established base flood elevations and/or floodways for which the provisions of section
104-87(d) apply. This study shall be prepared by a currently licensed professional
engineer in the state and made a part of the application for a permit. This information
shall be submitted to and approved by the Environmental Management Department
prior to the approval of any permit authorizing the disturbance of land located within
the future-conditions floodplain. Such study shall include:
(1) Description of the extent to which any watercourse or floodplain will
be altered or relocated as a result of the proposed development;
2) Step-backwater analysis, using a FEMA-approved methodology

approved by the stormwater management department. Cross sections

38





3)

“)

and flow information shall be obtained whenever available and
supplemented by the applicant or by the stormwater management
department. Computations will be shown duplicating FIS results and
will then be rerun with the proposed modifications to determine the
new base flood profiles, and future-conditions flood profiles;
Floodplain storage calculations based on cross sections (at least one
every 100 feet) showing existing and proposed floodplain conditions to
show that base flood floodplain and future-conditions floodplain
storage capacity would not be diminished by the development; and
The study shall include a preliminary plat, grading plan, or site plan, as
appropriate, which shall clearly define all future-conditions floodplain

encroachments.

Sec. 104-89. Variance procedures.

The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who

has been denied a permit for a development activity or to an owner or developer who

has not applied for a permit because it is clear that the proposed development activity

would be inconsistent with the provisions of this chapter.

ey

Requests for variances from the requirements of this chapter shall be
submitted to the Environmental Management Department. All such
requests shall be heard and decided in accordance with procedures to be

published in writing by the Environmental Management Department.

39





2)

3)

“)

&)

At a minimum, such procedures shall include notice to all affected
parties and the opportunity to be heard.

Any person adversely affected by any decision of the Environmental
Management Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to
the Fayette County Planning Commission as established by the county
in accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the county
planning commission. At a minimum, such procedures shall include
notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard.

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Fayette County Planning
Commission may appeal such decision to the county state court, as
provided in section 5-4-1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated
(O.C.G.A. § 5-4-1).

Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic
structures upon a determination that the proposed repair or
rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as
an historic structure, and the variance issued shall be the minimum
necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.
Variances may be issued for development necessary for the conduct of
a functionally dependent use, provided the criteria of this section are
met, no reasonable alternative exists, and the development is protected
by methods that minimize flood damage during the base flood and

create no additional threats to public safety.

40





(6) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any
increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.
7 In reviewing such requests, the Environmental Management

Department and the Fayette County Planning Commission shall

consider all technical evaluations, relevant factors, and all standards

specified in this and other sections of this chapter.
(8) Conditions for variances.

a. A variance shall be issued only when all of the following

conditions are met;

1. A finding of good and sufficient cause;

2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would
result in exceptional hardship; and

3. A determination that the granting of a variance will not
result in increased flood heights, additional threats to
public safety, extraordinary public expense, or the
creation of a nuisance.

b. The provisions of this chapter are minimum standards for flood
loss reduction; therefore, any deviation from the standards must
be weighed carefully. Variances shall only be issued upon
determination that the variance is the minimum necessary,
considering the flood hazard, to afford relief

C. Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written

41





€))

(10)

(1)

notice specifying the difference between the base flood
elevation and the elevation of the proposed lowest floor and
stating that the cost of flood insurance resulting from the lowest
floor elevation being placed below the base flood elevation will
be commensurate with the increased risk to life and property
and such costs may be as high as $25 or $100 of insurance
coverage provided.

d. The Environmental Management Department shall maintain the
records of all variance actions and report them to the GA DNR
upon request.

Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request

until the time the request is acted upon, submit such information and

documentation as Environmental Management Department and the

Fayette County Planning Commission shall deem necessary for

consideration of the request.

Upon consideration of the factors listed in subsection (8) of this section

and the purposes of this chapter, the Environmental Management

Department and the Fayette County Planning Commission may attach

such conditions to the granting of variances as they deem necessary or

appropriate, consistent with the purposes of this chapter.

Variances shall not be issued "after the fact."

42





Sec. 104-90. Violations, enforcement and notice.
(a) Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this chapter or the
requirements of an approved stormwater management plan or permit may be subject to
the enforcement actions outlined in this section. Any such action or inaction which is
continuous with respect to time is deemed to be a public nuisance and may be abated
by injunctive or other equitable relief. The imposition of any of the penalties described
below shall not prevent such equitable relief.
(b) Notice of violation. If the Environmental Management Department determines
that an applicant or other responsible person has failed to comply with the terms and
conditions of a permit, an approved stormwater management plan or the provisions of
this chapter, it shall issue a written notice of violation to such applicant or other
responsible person. Where a person is engaged in activity covered by this chapter
without having first secured a permit therefor, the notice of violation shall be served
on the owner or the responsible person in charge of the activity being conducted on the
site. The notice of violation shall contain:

(1) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible

person;
2) The address or other description of the site upon which the violation is
occurring;
3) A statement specifying the nature of the violation;
4) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or

inaction into compliance with the permit, the stormwater management

43





plan or this article and the date for the completion of such remedial
action; and
5) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the

person to whom the notice of violation is directed.

Sec. 104-91. Penalties.

(a) In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not
been completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any
one or more of actions or penalties set forth in subsection (c) of this section may be
taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice of violation was directed.
(b) Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the following
penalties, the stormwater management department shall first notify the applicant or
other responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall provide a
reasonable opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in the event the
violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours'
notice shall be sufficient) to cure such violation.

(©) In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to cure such
violation after such notice and cure period, the stormwater management department
may take any one or more of the following actions or impose any one or more of the
following penalties:

(1) Stop work order. The Environmental Management Department may

issue a stop work order which shall be served on the applicant or other

44





2)

3)

responsible person. The stop work order shall remain in effect until the
applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures
set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violation
or violations described therein, provided the stop work order may be
withdrawn or modified to enable the applicant or other responsible
person to take the necessary remedial measures to cure such violation
or violations.

Withhold certificate of occupancy. The Environmental Management
Department may refuse to issue a certificate of occupancy for the
building or other improvements constructed or being constructed on the
site until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the
remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise
cured the violations described therein.

Suspension, revocation or modification of permit. The Environmental
Management Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit
authorizing the development project. A suspended, revoked or modified
permit may be reinstated after the applicant or other responsible person
has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or
has otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided such
permit may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the stormwater
management department may deem necessary) to enable the applicant

or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to

45





“)

(&)

cure such violations.

Civil penalties. In the event the applicant or other responsible person
fails to take the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or
otherwise fails to cure the violations described therein within ten days,
or such greater period as the Environmental Management Department
shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event the violation
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24
hours' notice shall be sufficient) after the Environmental Management
Department has taken one or more of the actions described in
subsection (c)(1)—(3) of this section, the stormwater management
department may impose a penalty not to exceed $1,000.00 (depending
on the severity of the violation) for each day the violation is not
remediated after receipt of the notice of violation.

Criminal penalties. For intentional violations of this chapter, the
Environmental Management Department may issue a citation to the
applicant or other responsible person, requiring such person to appear
in the county state court to answer charges for such violation. Upon
conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed
$1,000.00 or imprisonment for 60 days or both. Each act of violation
and each day upon which any violation shall occur shall constitute a

separate offense.

46





Secs. 104-92 through 104-110. Reserved.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the

Board of Commissioners for Fayette County.

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are

hereby repealed.

In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such
adjudication shall in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences,
clauses or phrases of this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect
as if the section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged
invalid or unconstitutional were not a part thereof. The Board of
Commissioners hereby declares that it would have passed the remaining parts
of this Ordinance if it had known that such part or parts hereof would be

declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional.

SO ENACTED this day of , 2015.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
FAYETTE COUNTY

By:

47





(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Floyd Jones, County Clerk

Approved as to form:

County Attorney

Charles W. Oddo, Chairman

48





		Environmental Management- Ord...15-07 Agenda Request File

		Environmental Management- Ordinance 2015-07 Backup

		Red-Line Marker

		2015-07- Red-Line

		Final Form Marker

		2015-07-Final Form










Proclamation/Recognition #3

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Fire and Emergency Services Presenter(s): David J. Scarbrough, Fire Chief
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request:  |Proclamation/Recognition
Wording for the Agenda:

Background/History/Details:

Presentation of award to Firefighter/EMT Joshua Frasier for "Firefighter of the Year."

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Fire and Emergency Services annually selects a Firefighter of the year. For 2015, Joshua Frasier has been selected.

Josh was nominated by his peers on “C” shift. He sets the bar on the shift for his willingness to assist his coworkers and for using his
experience and knowledge to help with the positive outcomes of the patients he contacts. He thoroughly understands all aspects of the
position of Firefighter/EMT and brings a great deal of motivation to the shift and station. Josh excels in the team oriented environment
and strives for maximum team performance and he is a very valuable asset to the Fayette County team. He willingly accepts all
assignments with no hesitation and can be counted on by all personnel, coworkers, and supervisors.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Recognition by the Board of Commissioners in a presentation of a department plaque.

Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Yes

No

If so, when?  |Annually

Backup Provided with Request?

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance
Approved by Purchasing

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Reviewed by Legal

County Clerk's Approval Yes




fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #3










Consent Agenda #6

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Juvenile Court Presenter(s): Katie Cunningham
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:

Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for authorization for file a grant application with the Criminal Justice
Coordination Council, on behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, in the amount of $76,432.00, and authorization for the
Chairman to execute said application.

Background/History/Details:
The Criminal Justice Coordination Council has released a request for a proposal for the Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant. The basis for
the RPF is to continue evidence-based services for youth who are considered to be medium-to-high risk.

The Fayette County Juvenile Court is seeking to apply for continuation of its funding in order to maintain the Functional Family Therapy
program another year.

This program will help divert juveniles from either entering the juvenile justice system or from further involvement in the system. By
focusing on diversion / early intervention measures, these programs will help promote a positive relationship between youth, their
families, and their community.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for authorization for file a grant application with the Criminal Justice
Coordination Council, on behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, in the amount of $76,432.00, and authorization for the
Chairman to execute said application.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |Yes If so, when?  [Thursday, April 24, 2014

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request?

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #6





JACCLUELIRE AL MM
B AT S DRE TOR,

MATIIAR DEAL
TSR e R

At the direction of the Juvenile .Justice Incentive Grant Funding Committee, the Criminal Justice
Coordinating Gouncil {CJCC) is pleased to announce that it is seoking spplicaiions for
competitive funding for qualified counties in the State of Georgia. '

2015 Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Program
Request for Proposals (RFP)

Eligibility
Anplicants are [imited to lneal county commissionsfboards of commissioners to apply on behalf
of juvenite courts witnin Georgia. High pricrity will be given to the cighteen (18} counties who
comimit the highest numbers of juveniles to the Depaftment of Juventle Justice (see Append:x
). The gvailability of funds is dependent on appropriations from the 1.5, Department of Justice
arwl 1he Georgia State Legislature. The Dffice reserves the right to reduce the amount of funds
avzilable based ar. govarnment budgetary actions. The U5, Department of lustice, Office of
Juvenilg lustica and Delinquency Prevention, (CFOA 15.523 & 16.540) sdministers a portion of
these funds at the national level.

Award Period
July 1, 2015 — June 30, 20148

Deadline
Al applizations are due at 5:00 pan. on May 4, 2015

Award Amount
Up to $750,000

Contact Information
Far assistance with the reqliremenis of this solicitation, contact:

Program: Matthew Pitts, =lanner, at 404-657-2014 or Matthew.Pitis@cjcc.ca. gov
Finance: Reqginald Boyd, Grants Specialist, at 404-657-2(173 or Reginald Boyd@cjce.ga.qov

Relzase Date: April 2, 2015





2015 Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Program
Request for Proposals (RFP)

Deadline: Applications are due at 5:00 p.m. on May 4, 2015

Criminal Justice Coordinating Council

The Criminal Justice Coordingting Council (CJCE)Y |5 designated by the Governor of Geaorgia as
the State Adminisiaring Agency for criminal just'ce and victims™ assistance programs. Created
by the General Assembly {0.C.G.A. § 35-8A-2), the Courall is comprised of twenty-four
meambers representing variots éomponents of the criminal justice system, CJGE is charged with
fiscal owersight of the Juvenile Justice Incentive Graint Program.

Uverview

In 2011, the Special Council on Criminal Justice Reform was formed to siudy Georgia's criminal
jL.stice system and was charged by Governor Mathan Deal with recommending policy changes.
Cnh December 18, 2012, the Council released their final report to the Sovemaor:
hitp:figov.gaorgia. govipress-releases/2012-12-1 8fcriminal-justice-reform-repart-releasad

*We know there's room for dramatic improvement in the resuits we see fn the juvenife Justice
system.” — Governor Naifian Deal

tn keoping with Governor Deal's goal of increasing public safety through a mare effective
juvenile system, CICC and the Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Funding Commitkse offers this
request for proposals se=king lecal juvenile justice projects that aim to redues the nuember of
youth served out of home. This goal can be realized by using available grant funds ta develop
programs that address the needs of youtk who are typically committed ic the Department of
Juvenile Justice,

For Fiseal Year 2016, applicants are required to include evidence-hased program madels that
have demenstrated a raduction ‘n juvenile recidivism,

Anplicants are encouraged o revizw the Office of Justice Frogram's Crime Solutiens website (o
ensu-¢ that tneir juvenile intervention proposal has a methodical and measurable approach to
reducing juvenile recldivism. This can be accessed at http:ifwaw criniesalutions gov. Specific
required evidence-basad intervensions are isted on pages 13 and 14 of this application.

A summary of the year one program acsomplishments can be found at this link:
Ptte ffeics ceormia noviaitesisjeo georgia qoHiles,Juvenile s 2k ustice % 2 DEvaluation® 20 Repart
WFOFY 214 {opolf.

Eligibility

Applicants are limited to local county commissions/boards of commissioners to appty on behalf
of juyenile courts within Georgia.





High Priority will be given to applications that specifically formulate strategies to reduce
the applicant county’s annual felony ¢ommitment rate to the Department of Juvenile
Justice and reduce the applicant county’s annual number of Short Term Pregram
admissions, High priority will be given to the aighteen {1 8) counties who commit the
highest numbetrs of juveniles to the Department of Juvenile Justice [see Apperidix A}

An eligible applicant must meet aff of the following criteria:
* Be a public government entity;
» Serve as the fiscal agent for the grant and the point of contact to CJCC,
» Be responsible, lizble, and oversee financial, program and post-award reporling
raquirements.

Applications to support juvenile court projec:s must be madsa by county commisslons/boards o
commissionsrs on bahalf of the juvenile court. Moreover, all local units of government are
required to be in compliance with the Geergia Servise Delivery Strategy Act in order o be
eligible for state-administered financial assistance.

For more information on Sznvice Delivery Strategy visit the link below:
bdp: v dea ga aovidevelnpment/Planning QualityGrowth/PagesiRegionallSDS.asp

Grant Award Agreement

Grant Award Amount: Applicants are applying for one year of funding through thiz RFP. New
Anplicanis are sligible ta apply for a maximum of $350,000 for this grant year. Gontinuation
applicants are allowed to apply up to $750,000 and are allowad to expand or enhance services
under this solicitation,

Grant Award Period: The grant sward period is from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2016, All
new or enhanced services must ke fully impiemented within sixty (603 days of the grant award
agreement baginnng date. All continuation services must be fully implemented within thirty {30}
days of the grant award agresmenl beginhing date.

Cantinuation Funding: A continuation propesal is required annually. Ar initiaf award does nof
guaratios continded funding. The annual submission allows grantses 1o improve or modify
phjectives or activities. as well as assess the performance of the previous year, Cantinuation
grants are awarded to asplicants that demonstratc the following:

1. Professionaf management of grant funds and compliznce with administrative
reguirsments,

2. Accurate and prompt submission of reguired program and financial date and repoarts:

3. Positive performarce history with achievement of program goals 2nd objectives; and

4. Cohesive continuation plan for their prograe.

Please note that continLation funding is contingent on several factors including achievement of
goals, proanizational capacity, performance history, contractuel compliance, and availability of
funds.





Modification of Funds

The Juvenile Justice Incentiveé Grant Funding Committea reserves the right to make changes 1o
the application hudget at the time of the grant award and will enmmunicate any changes to the
applicant. CJCC may negatiate all or part of any prepased budget efter execution of the grant
award agreement due to funding or program requirements provisions. If,. during the term of the
grant award period, the funds appropriated are reduced or eliminated by the Georgia State
Legislature, the Juvenile Justice Incentiveé Fund'ng Commitlee may immediately reduce or
terminate the grant award by written notice to the grantee.

Reporting Reguirements

CJCEG requires that grantees comply with and fully participate in the financial, pregram. and
evaluation reporting for this grant program.

Finance

Tnig is a reimbursement based grant. CJCC may award first-lime recipients an initial advance
for the first three months of the. grant cycle, However, subseguent to the flirsl thiee months, the
grant will continue on a reimbursement only basis. Grantees receiving cortinuation funds, are
not entitled to receive an advance payment.

if awsrded funds, each county will be required to establisn proof of payment for aff praject
axpenses by submitting e appropriate documentation to CJSCC for review: Le., checkipurchase
requisifions, iravel expenses forms, coplas of check pavments, Invoices and /for receipts, efe.”

Subgrant Expenditure Report {(SER): Monifily expenditure reports are die on or before
the 15% of aach month. Quartetly expenditure reporis are diuea 15 days after the end of
cach guarter, Grantees are also required to maintain supperting documentation on file such
as timeshests, aquipment purchases, travel logs, supply purchases, inveniury records, and
consdltant contracts. This dosumentation may be requested at any fime.

{3rantees must attend any scheduled grant maragement workshop (if required) prior ta the
release of grant funds.

Program

Cranfees must submit programmatic reports on a monthly andfor quarterly basis as requested.
Failure to submit programmatis reports in a timely fashiot could result in the suspension or
termination of grant funding.

Planning Pericd {New Applicants Only): In order to allow for the suscessful integration of
evidence-hased services inte court operations, CHCC will allow a 2-morth planning pericd as an
aption for new lecal projects. This will alow time for staff ta be hired, trainad, and confracts with
service providers to be sstablished. The planning pariod ia aptional and all news projects must be
operational no later than September 1, 2015, '





Final Repart: A Final Repor: is dus at the end of the grart award period. This report rrust be
recaived and approved prior to the release of the final paymant, The final repert is due no later
than July 30, 20116,

Evaluation: CJCC will canduct a study of each awarced program to determine effectiveness.
Grantees will be held accountable for the following as it relates to program evaluation:

Collaet, anter, 2nd maintain participant-level imglementation and outecome data monthly.
Data collection training and use of the Grants Management System (GMS).

Submit youth enraliment, activity attendance, and necesgary reports to evaluator.
Grantee must participate as a focus site for evatuation.

il

Program Design

Puipose

In crder to demonstrate potential cost-savings to taxpayers by incentivizing evidence-based
aptians, the overarching goal of this offering is the reduction of felony commitments 1o the
Department of Juvenile Justice and Short-Term Program sentences,

The purpose of this grant opportunity is Yo provide funding for local programs designed to serve
yauth in the commurity who would otherwise be committed to Georgia’s Departmenl of Juvenile
Justice (0J3). Applicants are encouraged to examine their local data from the previoJs fiscal
yoar in order to understand the profies of youth who were committed to DJJ before, and whao,
with appropriate comrrunity-based services, could be sarved al home,

Consigarable evidence has been found to show that assessing each youth's risk of re-armest can
halp with classifying youth for ooth apprapriate levelsitypes Of programming, as well as, the
nacessary intensivenass of services. Therefore, applicant counties will have the benefit of
utilizing & standardized risk assessments to aid in deciston-making. The instrements include, ot
a mirimum, the Department of Juvenile Justice's Fre-Dispesition Risk Assessment (PORA),
Eetention Assessment Instrument (DA}, and/or Juvenile Needs Assessment (INA}.

Bolataring a continuum of zommunity support sendees and supervision has baar shown 1o
reduce recidivism, while pramoting a positive relationship betwaen youth, their families, and the
community. SUpport services may include family and commueily reintegration and prevention
services, hasic life skills, job sxills & employment training, job plagemant, educational support,
as well as providing mentaring and apprenticeship appodunities.

Commurities gpalying for these funds will be expected to bring together system stakeholders,
community leaders and residents to identify and access existing 'ocal resources for the
deve'opment of a multifaceted response to prevent further penetration in the systern. ~his
community-focused planning approach will zllow for the maximum usage of avaiable
cornmiunily resources and ensure broad community suppori.

CJCC and the Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Funding Committee ask that applicants fully
describe how their projest will reduce risk facturs of participants through the use ¢ an evidence
mode! that addresses family engagement, reduces negative peer association, increases pro-
ancial activities. and is tailored to the individual cognitive and maturational levels of their
participants.





Program Requirements

Religian
Grantee programs may niot promote, discuss, of teach religion. Program activities and services
are rer.Jired 1o be accessible o any interested participant, regardless of religious affiliation.

Federal Criminal Background Checks

All Grantees must conduct federal criminal background checks on all personnet who will have
direct contact with youth served by the grant project. These background checks must take place
pricr *0 the provision of services by program personnel and the grantee must maintain a copy of
these records for CJCC auditing purposas.

Internet Security Policy

CJCL requires alf grantecs to cstablish and enfarce an Intemel Security Policy when minor
participants andfor staff have access (supervised or Unsupervised) to the Internet. This includas
any techniglogy pravided by CUCC funding and technology utilized by participants during a
CJCC funded program component.

QOther

Applicants must comply with all forms, assurances, and certifications attached to this RFP.
Projects may not provide incentives {&.q., trophies/plagues, rewards for individual
accomplishments, gift cards, gift cettificates, gas cards, ete.}. Items such as motivational tools,
training aids, and educational materials may be purchased. Thess tems must be provided to all
participants. Projects are allowed to provide food/snacks to all participants as patofa
“substantial wark" activity,

Program Period
The inilial grant award petiod is July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2016
Target Population

All youth receiving services from this grant award MUST score 2 medium 1o high on the Pre-
Dispositton Kisk Assessment (FODRA).

Goals and Cbjectives

Each applicant must utilize the foliowing goals and ubjectives [m ils project. Applicants may
add additional goals or objeetives specific to their program.





Goals

1. Reduss felony commitments to Depariment of Juvenils Justice and Short Tarm Program
{&T =) admiesions in the targst county.

Increase the use of evidence-based practices in Georgia's juvenilg Justice system by
intiating éommunity-baged juvenile justice programs.

Reduce the recidivism rate of youth involved with Georgia's juvenile justica system.
Reduce annual sacure datention rate of target county.

Reduce annual sscure corfinement rate of target county.

Demcnstrate a cost-savings to ctizens of Gedrgia through provision of research-informod
services to youth in juvenile justice system.

M

Gk

Performance Objectives
&ll Projects

1. The DAT and PDRA will be used on all youth ¢ens'dered for grant funding with all scores
reparted in JTS or the Juvenile Data Repository when available. Additionally, graniees
are eheouraged 1o use the Juvenile Needs Assessment (JMNA) on all youth considered
for grant funding.

2. 100% of project paricipants will score a medium to high on the Pra Disposition Risk
Assesament.

3. At least 75% of project participants will complste program requirements.

4. At least B5% of youth completing services will nof re-offend as calculated using
recidivism, definition.
As defined by: A new charge (within 3 years of the initfal pest-adjudication commanity
placaments which resufts in a juverite couirt dolinquenay adindication OR adult cHminal
Gt cormvichicn,

5. Project will repor: cost-savings per youth by caloulating average cost in previde targeted
intervention subtracted from average cost to detain youth.

(Selectad projects will be provided a marginal cost rate in order to perform this caleulation.

MNote: Performance targets will be used as a means to determine future award allocations
andfor continuations.

PROPOSAL SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS

The application must be submitted electronically using the link on the Councl's website at
hitpg:dcjec. geantia. govwiundimg -opportunities. The application should be submittec via an adobe
form. Application should include: application narrative, application budget request in Excei
format, and application attachments will all signature pages. Al of the aforementioned proposal
docurnents are also required fo be suamitted electronically by scanning and uploading the
documents to the online application, The application must follow the outline as described on
page 20 of this RFP, beginring with the applicalion lace sheet (Attachment A~1}. The proposal
package must he complated and submitted in accordance with RFP guidelines for submission.






Submission Date

Applications must be submitted by 5:00pm on May 4, 2015. Only complete applizations
received by Lhe desdling will be reviewed. Applications submitted after that date will be
classified as late and may not be considered. When an application is received by the
Council, there is no commitment on tha part of CJCC or the Juvenite Justice Incentive
Grant Funding Committee to fund an apglicaiion or to fund it at the amount requestec. All
areas of the budget are subject to review and approval. Decisions related to these budget areas
are based on beth eligibility and reasonableness. The Juwenile Justice Incentive Grant Funding
Commitee has full discretion to determine the reasonableness of budget items based on both
objective and subjective decision-making taols. See "Res’rictions on Use of Funds' subsection
Below ta determine whether budget items requested are allowable prior to submitting your
budget. Applications far funding will undzrge several reviews. At any point during these reviews,
a decision not 1o fund & project or any part thereof may be made. These decisions are within the
complete discretion of CJCC and the Juvenile Justice Incartive Grant Funding Committee,

Disyualification Factors

Any application efectronlcally time-stamped after 5:00pm on lhe May 4, 2016 deadline wili be
regarded as late, excluding extenuating circumstances, and may not be considered for funding.
It is the responsibility of the applicant to enaure the proposal is received by the specified
deadling,

Additionally, CJCC may not censider funding any applicant that fails to comply with 2|l
aoplication reqJiements. Disqualification fastors may include any of the following:
+ Failure to includc application narrative, application budget, and application attachments;
s+ Faluie to pravide appropriate number of copies and format requested;
« Apblicant is not a publiz government entity,
+  Submission fails t¢ include an original signature of the applicant’s authorized official on
the applicaticn face sheetf; or
» Application facks ariginal signatures where appropriate.

Questions _

CJCC asks that applicants direct all guestions to Matthew Fitts, Planner, Applicants may reach
Mr. Pitts by email Fiatthe . Pitts@cjce.ga.gov. of by phane at (404) 657-2014, Although
questicns will be permitted until the date of the RFP submission, they will be answered subject
to staff availabillty. As such, applicants are strengly ensouraged to pose all questions as early
ag pogsible in the RFF process.





Performance Deliverables (New Projects)

o

T T L —— o piet T T Bl BT

t ) - : E,_ ._1-." : m Pl B

“DUE ON R ..

REPORTING |« . _ .
CPERKDD | L PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS BEEUHLE (HE
ke . e _ FOLLOWING
R ~ DATES
Initia! THE2015-9i1/2015;
Allotment » Fully executed grant award agreement and attachments /152015
201510142015
FIRST » Quartery Progress Repott-including performanse 10M5/2015
FERIQD objectives
s Attendance at CICC Grant Management Workshop
1142015-11/7016 Reporting Period:
SCCOMD = Quarteriy Progress Repont-ingluding pedormance 11152016
PeRIOD obiectives
1/1{2016-4/1/2016 Reporting Period;
THIRD « Quarterly Progress Report-including performance
PERIQD objevlives 4/15/20:18
A51420° 5 630/20118 Reporing Pavind.
FINAL
PERICD = Quarterly Progress Report- including performances 71152015

ohjectives :
100% of program participants scored a medium to
high on the PDRA

*For any deliveratfe nof met and reported by the dus dafe, a penaffy may be imposed at the discreticn of
the Juvenils Jusfice Incentive Funding Commitfee

*Plaase be aware that Graduated Sanction Viofations under DullSs Probalion Managenient Frogram

{PMP) are included i overall STEFelony Comef rurmbors. I said Violation resufled in an adrmssion ta
BYOC # was included in the hasating tarmes nurmbor in 2012 dafs and will bo counted i this grant yoars
famet number. Juvenife Cowts & Department of Juvenile Jusfice staff ure strongly encowragod (o share
tiis fforrraticn witty orre anoifer i arder fo measure polerial fapact






Performance Deliverables (Continuation Projects)

i i

“BUE ONGR

100% of program participants scored a medium to
high on the PDRA

- REPORTING T .
FERIOD PERFORMANEE REGLIREMENTS BEFORE THE
; : : | FOLLOWING
. ' DATES.,
Grant 7i2015-8/1/2015: - BM52015
Agreement |« Fully executed grant award agrecmant and attachments
7M12015-10/1F2015:
FIRST « Quarlerly Progress Report-including pedformance
PERIOD ohjectives 10M18/2015
» Attendance at CJCC Grant Management Workshop
10£1/2015-1/1/2016 Reporting Period:
SECOND » Duarterly Progress Report-including performance 11152018
FERIZD objactives
141/2016-4/1/2018 Reporting Parlad:
THIRE = Quarterly Prggress Report-including performance
FERIQD ohjactives 4 52016
411120 6-8130/2015
FINAL « Quarterly Progress Report- including performance
FERIOD abjactives FTHE2015

"For any deliverable not maet and reported by the dus date, a penalty may be impesed at Lhe discreticn of
the Juvenila Justice Incentive Funding Cammittea.

“Plegse he aware {hal Sracdvated Sanciicn Viefatians woder OJY's Prohation (fanagament Prograrn

fPMF) are inciuded in overall B T HACelony Commit nuntbers. §f said Viotation rasyliad in an admission to
BYOC it was includad in tho basofing target number in 2072 data and wilt be countad in fhis granf years
farmgal number, Juvonic Cotirts & Department af Juvenie Justice stalf are stronply encoursged fo share
this inforrnation with ane ancthcr in ordar fo reeasurs potentia impact.

10






PROPOSAL NARRATIVE

The following information provides a description of necessary components to be contained in
the narrative portion of your proposal. Limit the narrative to elaven (11} pages and use the
outine format descrined in this gection. The narrative iz a detaled staternent of the work to be
undertaken and answers who, what, when, whers, why, and how statements about the grant
proposal. CICC requires that applicants restate and number each Narrative Section
followed by fhe response.

1. Statement of Need!Summary [ page)

Pravide a clear and goncise statement of need, including the fallowing.
a. Statement of the community problem

following metrics as justification of need for programming far fiscal year 2015:

+  At-Risk Fopulation

» New Instances of Secure Detention (RYDC)

»  (ases Resulting in Commitment to UJJ

« New Instanccs of Confinoment ir Secure Juvenile Comectional Facilitios
b H

This infonmation for each county can be found at.
e M an d dage - gev/DataRenors aspx?re :0r=RR Decat-niryliesort
' *Flease use 2013 or the latest data available
. A description of how the prablem relates to the mission of lhe implementing agenay.
c. Owerview cf the Target Fopulation to be s=rved,
d. Descriptior of the chosen cvidence based interverdion for proposal and why it was
safactad.
e. Frief desgription of the activities requesting CJCC funds.

2. Administration (Y2 page)

a. MName the implementing agency. Pravide a brief description of the implementing agency.
Wames the applicant and fisgal agents, if these agencies are diffgrant from the
impfementing ageacy. The figcai agent must be a county commission/board of
commissioners.

b. List the agency's qualifications and exparignce with managing grants,

¢ List the Communily Partners ard their deseription and contribution, if any, to the
proposed program.

d.  After the initial allotment, this grant will transitien to a reimbursement-on y grant. Ooas
the fisca! agent have the ability to maintain a positive cash-flow once reimbursements
are provided on a quarterly basis?

11





3. Target Population (% page)

Frevide a de:ailed description of the clearly defined target pooulation to be served in the grant
period, Incuding the following:

a.

a+~pao T

Target grouplages rangs: ab middle schopl B high schoal; or ¢) both migddle and high
schools; .
How and Why Target Fopulatior was selected?
Mumbes of projectad youth 1o be sanved,
Gender: ay male only, b} female anly; or ¢) male and female;
County o~ courties to be served:;
Other demographics. including at-risk popuilation{s); and
List assessment instruments to be used for selected target populatiocn and how they will
Ba used to screen youth.
(More fally described in Seclion 4.d. regarding Imiake).

4. Methods and Procedures (6 pages)

Service Delivery
a. Describe the overall format and design of the program, addressing the fallowing:

= Frogram type {i.e., Youth Reoorting Center, community-basad, school-based.
a7 other);

* Program time (i.e., during school hours, after school, weekends, summaer,
andfor year-round):

» Program freguency {ie., the number of iimes the program is implemaated or,
in other words, the number of program cycles);

» Program duratior {i.e., the length of the program. in days, weeks, andfor
manthsl;

s+ Program hours {i.e., the minimum number of program hours per youth).

b, Cemplete the Program 1imsiine (Attechment A-2). Provide a detalled imeling from July

1, 2015 ~June 30, 2016 cf planned grant activities including, but not limited to, program
start and end dates for each site, apecial events, and planning, and planning period
activities.

List the specific site(s) where prograrming will occur {.e., the site name and the slreel
address). Please dascribe how the proposed program site is a saie and conveniently
acscssible location for youth and parcrds to receive services, Atach any
Memorandum(s) of Understanding for sites not under the jurisdiction of the applying
implementing agency {Attachment A-3).

d. Fully describe the intake process. List the criteria to determine which individuals will be

offerad program services. Applicanis must provide a defailed description of how the DJJ
Detention Assessmenl Instrurnent (DAL, Pre-Dispasition Risk Assessmert (PORA}, and
Juvenile Needs Assessment (JNA) will be utilized to ensure consistency and uniformity
in decision-making.

12





Applicants must provide a detaifed description of how the Pre-Dispasition Fisk Assessment
(FORA) wilf ba ubiized ia ensure consisiency and uniformity n decision-making. More
information can be found at the folfowing:

hittp: e dif state.0a.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter? 0/0,J20 11 Detentisn Decisicn, pdf

g. Describe how parental consent is oblained for youth to paricipate in the program.
Explain if additignal information (e.q., intake form, paricipant application, andfor needs
assessment) is obtained for 2 youth to be enrolled in the program.

f.  Dezcribe the services and supports provided to all individuals in the target population
using CJCC grant funds and which agencies will provide these senvices.

Continuation applications should continue to report on the evidence-based interventions
implementad in Year Two. i applicant plans to maks a change to a different intervention in
Year Three, please detall this change and why it is being made. Applicants switching
interventions MUST select an intervention from the table below. Applicants who are
starting a new CB service will be allowed a 2 month implementation period for that service,
if needed, Continuation applications are allowsad o continue cument interventions in Year
Three if they g0 chpage,

s Slale lhe proposed primary swriculurn or evidance-based inlervendions el will e

enpl during inj n ri Describe how this will imaolemanted.

New applicants must select an evidence-baszad intervention that has been shown to be
effective, from the list below:

Evidence Based Interventions:

Seven Challenges [ 7C) The seven challenges program is designed specifically for
adolescents with drug preblems, 1o motivate a degisions and
commitmert o change- and to support success in implementing
desired change. The pfogram simcltaneously helps young people
address their drug proklems as well as their co-pecurring life skill
defichts, situational problerts, and pavgholegical problems.

The challzrges provide a framework for halping youth think
thrpugh their own dec sionz abaut their ives and their use of
alcokol a1d other drugs. Counselors uzing The Seven Challenges
Program teach youth to identify and work on the issaes nost
relevant to hem. In seesions, as youth dizcuss he issues that
metter mest, counselors seamessly intagrate the Challenges as

: parnt of the conversation.

i .
Aggression Replacemeni | Aggression Replascement Training® concertrates on
Training [ART) development of individual campetencies to addiess various
emotional and social aspects that contribute to aggressive
hehavior in youhs, Prograrm techniques are designed te teach
yeruths how to cantral their angry impulses and take perspectives
off-er than their awr,. Tha main goal iz to reduce aggression 2ind
viclgnoce ameng youths by providing them with epgortunities to
fearn pre-social skills in place of aggressive behavior.

13






' Brief Strategic Family
' Therapy {B5FT)

Brief Stralegic Family Therapy [BSFT) iz a family-based
intervertion designed to prevent and treat child and adolescen|
behavicr problems. The goal of BSFT is to improve a youth's
belavicr by improving family interactions that are presumed 1o be
directly related to the chid's symptoms, thus reducing rish factors
anc strengthening protective factors (or adolescen| drug abuse
ang ather conduct problems. BSFT targets children and
srjolescents whe are displaying—ar are a® risk for developing—
behavicr probicms, including substaonce abuse.

Functionat Family
Tharapy [FFT)

ol sk [or institetionalizalion and their families. FFT is designed to
© imiprove within-family attrbutions, family communi¢ation and

. complianes, and the completa range of behavior change

Functinal Family Tharapy isa short--2rm {3 ppmximatélr‘}‘ﬂa_ﬁ
hourg), family-based thergpeutic intervention for delinguent youth

suppottivensss while cecreasing intenss negativity and
dysfunctional pattarns of bahavier. Sarenting skills, youth

{cognitive, emational, and behavioral) domains are individualized
and targeted for change based on the specific fisk and proective
facter prefile of each family,

! Multi-Systemic
Therapy {(M5T)

" natural settings - home, school; and neighborhoog  in ways that

Mulli-systemic Therapy® is zn intensive family- ard community-
hased treatmen: that addresses the multiple causes of sarous
antisocial behavior in juvenile offenders. The MST program seesks
to improve the real-warld functioning of youth by changing theair

promets pro-sacial behavior while decreasing antiscoizl behaviar,
Therap'sts wark with youth and their families to address the
known aduses of defnquancy on an individoalized, yeat
comprahensive basis, By using the strengths in each system
(famiy, peers, school, and neighborkoed) to facilitate change.
MST addreszes the muliiple tactors known to be relatisd to
deflinguercy acioss the key systems within which yauth are
embedded,

Thinking 4 {hange {T4C)

| and the developmant of proklem- sohving skills.

Thinking ‘or a change is a cegniiive-behavioral curriculum
geveloped by the Mational Institute of Comactions that
concenitrates or changing the Cornprehensive toinking of
offenders. TAC is a cognitive-behavicral therapy {CB T} program
that inrdudes cognitive restructaning, social skills develaprrent,

— -

» State and describe any other devclopmental activities program paricipants will
receive in addition io the curriculum or irterventlon listed above. Explain haw
each of these developmental activities will be implemented.

« Insert a chart that indicates the activity, the type of activity, and the number of
hours per activity pet youth that will be supported, in whole or par, by these

grant funds.

14





v An example chart follows:

Aetvity . m]

Primary Evidance-Based

¥ outh

- Juvenile Justice Multi-Systemic Therapy i

| Intervention :
Developmental Connections 3
Levelopmental Enrichment Activities 1
Devalopmental Tuoring i

"Total Program Hours Per ' 12

*Approximate
* Secondary activites {{.e. electronic monitoring) and infervenlions will be considered
part tha applican:s 30% administrative cost

g. Describe the CJCT grant-funded services providad to youth in the tergel group who

h. Describe the parent involverment and/or community awarsness activities provided using
CICC grant funds, I applicable.

Etaffing

Describe the primary roles and resporsibilities for each grant-funded position.  Attach
a job descrpticn for each postion discussed {Aftachrment A4},

Explain the plan for orientatior. and training of grant-funded staff.

may or may not be receiving intensive services, if apolicable

5. Goals, Dbjectives, and Evaluation {2 pages)

.

List the required program goals as outlined in the RFP. Lisl any additiondl program
gozls in a clearly defined and measurahle mannar.

List the required program chjectives as outtined in the RFP. List any additional

pragram objectives in a clearly defined and maasurabla manner.

Explzir fully how all atatec goals 2nd abjectives will be reachad and evaluated.

Explain how they currenlly collecl data on youth served and how they plan to expand
this collection to include saurce of referral information.

13






6.Sustainability (1 page-Continuation Applications Only)

a. Describe the specific aclivities that will take place during this uptoming grant penad to
ensurc sustainability,

b, List the current funding sources and amount of funding for your organization.
¢. ldentify potential state, federal, and orfprivate funding stredams for program support.

d. ldeniify any stafl or volunteers that have assigned, dedicated elfoils lowards
sustainability.

e. ldentify potentiai ways to increase current evidence-based service capagity for target
populstion,

f.  Describe any lecal actions taken to specifically support evidence-based services
7. Pravlous Accomplishments (4 page)

Provide a detailed descrpiicn of any previous successful interventions or grant fund'ng receivec
tor similar programs. Include & detailed summary of activities, number/percent of youth served
to-date, and supporting data to demonstrate whether or not the project abjectives and goals
were met.

t problems were encountered in praviaus grants or objectives were not fully achieved, please
pravide a full description detailing issues and correclive aclion(s) taken to address.
This infermation is an essential component of all applications.

FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY & PROPOSAL BUDGET WORKSHEET

The applicanl ageney must provide an adequate accounting system (see Accourting
System/fInternal Control Questionnaire) described in Forms, Assurarces, and Certifications, and
should meet the following criteria as outlined below.

1. Abeounling records provide information needed o identify 2ach grant awarded (State, Federal,
Local Gaverniment, and Private) 1o applicant by identifying the receipt of funds for edch grant
and the expenditure of funds far vach grant award,

Mo

Entiies in agcounting recards reter to subsidiary records andfor documentation which support
the entry and can be readily losated,

W8]

. The sccounting system prowvides accurate and curment financial reporting information; and

4. The accounting system integrates with an adequate system of internal controls to safaguard
tha funds and assets covered. check the accuracy and reliability of accounting data, promot2
operational sfficiency, and encourage adherence to prescribed managament palicies.

Proposal SBudget Worksheet: Complete the Budget workbook {Attachment A-B}. The Excel

workbook contains a budget surmmary for the applicant. The budget summary must provide
computation of requested funds and justification of costs in relation to activites. A detailed

18





budget narrative should be submitted for clarity of expenses requested in the different budget
categories. Applicants must provide details on each cost item in the budget. For example, if an
applicant inciudes a cost item for “Speaker Contracts,” the applicant mus? describe what the
puraase is, wha the speaker is, what event is hapuening, and a justifization of including this cost
and value-add ta the grant,

Grantees are regpansible for obtaining and execuling necessdary dyreemesnls with partners or
contractors providing services under this agreement. Documertation and copies of agreements
can be requested by CJCC at any timé during the contract period. A rmaximurm limit of 30% on
indirect costs will be permitted. The following is a brief list of common indirect costs and costs
that will nead to be justified as direct costs:

Indirect Casts:
+ Grants Marager
» Finance DirectorfAccountantBockesper
= Trainer
Bookkeeping costs
Financial andfor programmatic audit costs
Rerd andicor mortyage on administrative offices
Utilities on adminisirative offices
Office supplies for staff
o Pens, paper, eto.
Insurance
Emplayee travel to grant2e trainings
Printing
Meeling Expenses
Copler
= [Postege
Wehicle Maintenance
»  Background vestigations

» % ¥ & a

Costs fhat wifl reqguire justification o f_}g considered direct servicea:

=  Trainngs
»  Conferences
e TFravel

o Outside of direct service travel

s  Eguipment
+ Administrative Staff and Supervisoers

o VWho also provides direct senvice

o Supervision of any staff is not direct service, only hands-on work with community
v Volunteers
« Copier

o Use of the cepicr for direct service

Cell phones for direct service employees requinng ravel
» Meeting expenses for cutreach and awareness activities
s Any direct services inletvenlions that are not listed on the chart on pages 13 and 4.

17





Allowable and Unallowable Costs: A lizt of allowahle and unallowahlz costs is provided at the
krack of the budget workbeok. Examples of allowzhle expenseas are defined under the budget
catecories.

Supplanfing
Funds must be used to supplemeant existing funds for program activites and cannot replace or
supplant funds that have teen appropriated for the same purpose.

APPLICATION ATTACHMENTS: APPLICATION FORMS,
ASSURANCES, CERTIFICATIONS, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The applicant is requirad to comply with the following as described in the RFP attachments. The
grantee will be responsible for ensuring that any service delivery partners eomply with the
following forms applicable ta the partner.

A-2  Program Timelire: A detailed timeline of grant activities.

A3 Memorandumis) of Understanding: Signed agreament{s} between the applying
agency and program site{s) not under the jurisdiction of the applying agency, if
applicable.

A4 Job Descriptions; Job description for each grant—fu'nded position.

A5 Forms, Assurances, and Certifications; To certify intent to comply with all of the
tallowing, the chief executive officer of the applying agency must review, comp'ete, sian,
and submit all of the following forms:;

Cluestionnaire Accounting and Financial Capability Information

Marn-Supplanting Certificat on

Service De'ivery Strategy Act Campliance Certification

Immigration and Security Form

Child Abuse Feporting, Background Invéstigation, Internet Security Policy

Roquircments

S

A8 Bodget Waorksheet: Submit budget datail worksheet electronically.

Application Review

The Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Funding Committes will review all eligible applicstions. The
Juvenile Justice tncentive Grant Funding Committes will not review incompléte applications and
CJCC will not permit applicants to add information to their application after submission, unless
earification or additionat information iz reguested.

POST-AWARD REQUIRED ACTIVITIES

Applizants are strongly encouraged to inciude costs that mght be assaciated with the reguired
and non-required activifies fe.q.. tavel, lodging foed, ete ) within their proposed badgats.

CJCC Grant Managemeant Workshop

If an applicant is awarded a grant, grantee may be required ta attend a8 CJCC grant
managament warkshop,

18





Site Visils

CJCC staff may conduct a fiscal andfor crograrmmatic site visit to each grantee dunng the grant
period. Additional visits may be conducted, buf each grantee will have at least ane visit ‘rom
CJCC staff durng the grant year. Site visits will be scheduled with the grantee in advance. Sile
visits will be conducted to maonitar the program for pregress, implementation, adharence o
putcoimes, and to view program and financial documeants,

Additional Training, Technical Assistance, and Events

CJCC wil offer a number ¢f non-mandatory post-avrard training and technical assistance
ooaportunties and special events.

Crancees will be informed of events via a-mail, and the events wilk be posted on tha CICC

wabsite. CJCC staff also will give ongoing, individual technical assistance and other suppott
aclivilies lu granlees as needed or requasted throughout the year.

Application Submission Instru¢tions

Disqualification Factors:
+  Applicant is not a public government entity
«  Bubmission fails to be electronically time-stampad by the deadline date
= Submiszion fails to include the original signature of the executive officer of the applicant
on the application face sheet
»  Application lacks eriginal signatures where appropriate

Format:
— Mumber of every page submitted as part of your applization
— LUse type tha® is 12-point fant size and ong inch margins
— The application narrative should be typed on white paper that is 8 14 x 11 inches
— Include a footer identifving the applying agency
-— Adhere to page limits
- Application documents should ba inword, PDF, or excel format with the exceptian of the
Memorandum of Understanding (MO}

— Applisants must restate and number each proposal narrative queston followen by the
response

9





Application;
Use the fable below to ensue that all requested information is included and your documents are
sppropriately named and saved as a word or excel document,

Maximurn Applicant

Raguired icati ' . ; ist
Required Application Document Page Limit Ghecklist
_ ) _ {Y/N}
A Proposal Narrative: * g
A. Statement of Need/Summary ¥
B. Administration 14
C. Target Population ta
D. Methods and Procedures &
E. Goalg, Objectives, and Evaludtipn P
F  Sustainahility il
G. Previous Accomiplishimenls
H
Application attachments:
A-2 Program Timeling
A-3 Memorandum(s) of Understanding (Word or PDF Format)
A~ Job Descriptions ' A
A-5 Fomms and Assurances
A-G Rudget Worksheet
A-7 Budget Narrative

20





		Juvenile Court- Grant Agenda Request File

		Juvenile Court- Grant Backup








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: |Consent
Wording for the Agenda:

Approval of Resolution 2015-05 adopting the "Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2014), including
Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2015-FY2019"),
and authorization to transmit the resolution to the Atlanta Regional Commission.

Background/History/Details:

As required by the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards, Fayette County in, collaboration with the
Towns of Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey, has prepared the "Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2014),
including Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2015-
FY2019.)"

Public hearings were held by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on January 22, 2015, and by the three (3) towns in the
following weeks. Each entity approved the report for transmittal to ARC for coordination of state and regional review.

Fayette County and the towns have received notifications of compliance from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs and the
Atlanta Regional Commission for the 2014 Fire Services Impact Fee Report including amendment to the Capital Improvements Element
and Short Term Work Program of the Comprehensive Plan. The next step is for each local government to adopt this report and for the
adopting Resolutions to be transmitted to ARC. The deadline for this adoption and transmittal of the adopting Resolutions to ARC is June
30, 2015. These actions are required for each government to re retain its Qualified Local Government status.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of Resolution 2015-05 to adopt the "Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2014), including
Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2015-FY2019"),
and authorization to transmit the resolution to the Atlanta Regional Commission.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |Yes If so, when?  |January 22, 2015

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:






COUNTY OF FAYETTE
STATE OF GEORGIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-05

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FAYETTE COUNTY 2014 ANNUAL
REPORT ON FIRE SERVICES IMPACT FEES (FY14), INCLUDING
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS FOR UPDATES TO THE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT AND SHORT-TERM WORK
PROGRAM (FY2015- FY2019)

WHEREAS, Fayette County has in collaboration with the towns of Tyrone, Brooks, and
Woolsey prepared the “Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees
(FY2014), Including, Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital
Improvements Element and the Short-Term Work Program (FY2015-FY2019),” and

WHEREAS, the annual update was prepared in accordance with requirements of the
Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures for
Local Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia Planning Act of 1989; and

WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of January 2015, the Fayette County Board of

Commissioners conducted a public hearing on the 2014 Fire Services Impact Fee Report and
proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments; approved that report and authorized transmittal to
the Atlanta Regional Commission for coordination of regional and state review; and

WHEREAS, the Regional and State reviews have been completed and a notification of
compliance has been received from ARC.

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Fayette County Board of

Commissioners, does hereby adopt the “Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services
Impact Fees (FY2014) Including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital
Improvements Element and the Short-Term Work Program (FY2015-FY2019).”

ADOPTED by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners this 23rd day of April, 2015.

FAYETTE COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Charles W. Oddo, Chairman
Board of Commissioners
ATTEST:

Clerk/Deputy Clerk





&1 Courilard Sorecl, MC
SHlanks, Grorgig 0503
atlanla ey ual.ooem

Match 18, 2015

Chairman Charles Oddo

Favattc County Board of Commissioners
140 Stonewall Avenuc West, Suite 100
Fayciteville, Georgia 30214

RE: Capital Improvemenis Element Annupal Update

1ear Chairman Oddo,

ARC has compleled the regional review of the 2015 Capital Improvements Element (CLE)
Annual Update and FY 2014 Firc Services Impact Fees Annual Report for Fayette Counly and
the Towns ol Brooks, I'vrone and Woelsey. W are pleased to inform you that the Georgia
Diepartment of Conmmunity Alfairs (13CA) has determined that the update is in compliance with
the Development Impact liee Compliance Requirements and Lthe Minimum Siundards and
Procedures for T.ocal Comprehensive Planning.

Renewal of Qualified Loeal Government (Q1.03) status is contingent upon official adopiion of the
update as an amendment to each community’s Comprehensive Plan. The updaic may be adopted
a1 any time. Once adopted, please send ARC digilal copics of all four adoption resolulions and
the final, adopted update document, so that we may forward those malerials to DCA. Upon
receiving notice that the updatc has been adopied in cach jurisdiction, DCA will renew each
community’s QLG status.

T commend Fayette County and the Towns of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey for their commitment

to the comprehensive planning process. Please contact Andrew Smith at (404) 463-5581 or
asmithidatlantaregional.com il you have any questions or il we can provide further assistance.

Sincerely,

Rob LeBeau
Section Manager, Comnumity Development Division

Enclosure
{c: Pete Lirisina, Dircclor of Community Services, l'ayette County

regianal impact + local relevance





Andrew Smith

—
From: Brian lohnson <BrianJehnson@dca.ga.govs
Sent: Thursday, March 45, 2015 2:33 PM
Tos Dan Reuter; Jared Lombard; Andrew Smith; Jonathan Tuley
Ce; PEMD QPQG Adminislralion
Subject: Faystte County w Towns of Broalks Tyrone and Weoaolsey CIE Annual Update Approval

Dan, lared, &ndrew and lon:

Our staff has reviewed the Annual Capital Improveinent Element {CIE) Update for Fayette County and Towns of Brooks,
Tyrone and Waolsey, and finds that it adequately addrasses applicable requirements. The next step Is for the local
government to adopt the CIE Update. As soon as your office provides written notice that the CIE Update has been
adoptad and provides DCA with a digital capy of the final adopted version af this document, we will notify the local
government that its Qualified Local Government status has been extended. If you have any fquestions, please contact us
at 404-679-5279,

Thanks,

HT = ) Lé
3 ’, i
YNNG /}b AL AV

Brian lohnsan, Director

OHfflce of Flanning and Covironmental Management
Georgla Department of Community Affairs
A04-679-3105

brian.johnson@dea.ga.gow






Fayette County and Towns of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey Summary Impact Fee Financial Report

FY 2014

Fire Services

Total Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00
Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 By Jurisdiction

Fayette County $107,665.86

Brooks $4,203.99

Tyrone $15,014.25

Woolsey $0.00

Total $126,884.10

Accrued Interest $167.15

(Administrative/Other Costs) ($3,695.18)

(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00

(Impact Fee Expenditures) ($123,356.07)

Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00

Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00






Fayette County Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2014

Public Facility Fire Services

Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00
Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 $107,665.86
Accrued Interest $141.83
(Administrative/Other Costs) ($3,135.50)
(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00

( Impact Fee Expenditures) ($104,672.19)
Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00
Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00






Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Capital Improvement Element - Project Update FY 2015 - FY 2019

Public Facility: Fire Services

Percent FY2014 Impact Remaining

Project Project Estimated or Funding by Other Impact Fees Amount to be

Start End Actual Cost | From Impact | Impact | Funding Fees Applied in Paid from Status/
Project Description Date Date of Project Fees Fees Sources | Applied | Prior Years | Impact Fees Remarks
Construct FS1, SR279 Fire Tax

FY02 FY02 $872,836 $471,331 | 54% ‘n.a $471,331 $0.00 Comp, FY02
Construct FS10: Seay Rd FY 02 FYO02 $838,295 $687,402 | 82% Fire Tax ‘n.a $687,402 $0.00 | Comp, FY02
Construct FS5: S.R. 85 S.

FY02 FY03 $1,191,565 $369,385 | 31% Fire Tax ‘n.a $369,385 $0.00 | Comp, FY03
Construct FS7: Hampton Road FYo3 | Fyos $1,066472 |  $586550 | 55% |FireTax| ‘na $586,559 $0.00 | Comp, FY03
Purchase Acreage for Future Fire
Station: McElroy Road FY04 FY04 $25,000 $25,000 | 100% None ‘n.a $25,000 $0.00 | Comp, FY04
Purchase Two (2) Quints FY06 FYO07 $675,000 $675,000 | 100% None | $123,356 $169,396 $382,248 | Purchased FY07
Emergency Operations Center *

FY12 FY15 $150,000 $124500 | 83% Fire Tax ‘n.a $0.00 $124,500 | In Process
Construct Fire Training Center
(Burn Building) ** FY13 FY15 $65,000 $14,950 | 23% Fire Tax ‘n.a. $0.00 $14,950 | Approved FY13
Totals $4,884,168 | $2,954,127 $123,356 | $2,309,073 $521,698

* There was a change in scope for this project. Also a grant of $950,000 as additional funding was acquired. The $150,000 noted above is County funding/ costs above the

$950,000 grant award amount.

** There was a change in scope within this project. Latest estimates for project costs are $65,000.






Brooks Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2014

Public Facility Fire Services

Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00
Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 $4,203.99
Accrued Interest $5.54
(Administrative/Other Costs) ($122.43)
(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00

( Impact Fee Expenditures) (%$4,087.10)
Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00
Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00






Tyrone Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2014

Public Facility Fire Services
Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00
Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 $15,014.25
Accrued Interest $19.78
(Administrative/Other Costs) ($437.25)
(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00
(Impact Fee Expenditures) ($14,596.78)
Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00
Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00
Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00
Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00






Woolsey Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2014

Public Facility Fire Services

Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00
Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 $0.00
Accrued Interest $0.00
(Administrative/Other Costs) $0.00
(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00
(Impact Fee Expenditures) $0.00
Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00

Impact Fees Encumbered

$0.00






FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015- FY2019

This section presents an updated five-year work program for FY 2015 through FY 2019 to implement the vision and goals of the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan. In addition to the scheduling of projects for the county, the Short Term Work Program indicates potential sources of funding.





FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 - PUBLIC SAFETY

Goal: Maintain and Improve the Level of Service for Public Safety Plan Element: Community Facilities
Initiation Year Completion Total
Project Description Year Estimated Costs Funding Sources Responsibility

Fire and Emergency Services

Severe Weather Warning System FY 2015 FY 2016 $133,000 General Fund Fayette County
Emergency
Services

Fire Station Renovations FY 2015 FY 2016 100,000 Fire Fund Fayette County
Emergency
Services

SCBA - Breathing Equipment FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 Fire Fund Fayette County
Emergency
Services

Replace Fire Station 2 FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 Fire Fund Fayette County
Emergency
Services

Addition/Renovation of Fire Station 11 FUTURE FUTURE $300,000 Fire Fund Fayette County
Emergency
Services

Sheriff’s Office

Old Jail Renovation FY 2015 FY 2016 $1,861,500 General Fund Sheriff’s Office






FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 - GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES

Goal: Provide Support for Effective and Efficient Delivery of Governmental Services Plan Element: Community Facilities
Initiation Year Completion Total
Project Description Year Estimated Costs Funding Sources Responsibility
Information Systems
Aerial Photography FY2015 FY2019 $235,000 | General Fund Information
Systems
FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2014-FY2018 RECREATION
Goal: Upgrade Recreation Services Plan Element: Community Facilities
Initiation Completion Total
Project Description Year Year Estimated Costs | Funding Sources Responsibility
Kenwood Park Enhancements FY 2015 FY 2017 $500,000 General Fund Fayette County
Recreation Dept.
Kiwanis Park Enhancements FY 2015 FY 2019 $450,000 General Fund Fayette County
Recreation Dept.
McCurry Park Enhancements FY 2014 FY 2019 $1,375,000 General Fund Fayette County
Recreation Dept.






FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 RECREATION

Goal: Upgrade Recreation Services

Plan Element: Community Facilities

Multi-Purpose Trails FUTURE FUTURE $100,000 | General Fund Fayette County
Recreation Dept.
Land Acquisition FUTURE FUTURE $500,000 | General Fund Fayette County

Recreation Dept.

FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 - WATER SYSTEM

Goal: Upgrade County Water System

Plan Element: Community Facilities

Initiation Completion Total

Project Description Year Year Estimated Costs [ Funding Sources Responsibility

Water Tank Construction at FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 G.E.F.A. Loan Fayette County
Horseman’s Run Site Water System
Water Tank Construction at Porter Road Site FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 G.E.F.A. Loan Fayette County
Water System

Porter Rd. Line Extension FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 | G.E.F.A. Loan Fayette County

Water System
Hwy 74 Pressure Improvements FY2018 FY2019 $1,250,000 | G.E.F.A. Loan Fayette County

Water System






FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY?2015-FY2019 - PUBLIC WORKS

Goal: Maintain and Improve County Road System Plan Element: Community Facilities
Initiation Year Completion Total
Project Description Year Estimated Funding Responsibility
Costs Sources
Quail Hollow Subdivision Full Depth FY2015 FY2015 297,800 | General Fund | Fayette County Public
Recycling Works
set?]wme Road & Starrs Mill Multi-Use FY2014 FY2016 $959,000 | General Fund & \Ij\:;\yelite County Public
a Federal Grant orks






FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 — PLANNING AND ZONING

Goal: Growth and development should be consistent with the county comprehensive plan. Plan Element: Land Use Plan

Initiation | Completion Total
Project Description Year Year Estimated | Funding Responsibility
Costs Sources
Major Update of Fayette County Comprehensive EY 2015 EY 2017 Staff General | Fayette County
Plan Time Fund Planning and
Zoning
Department
This is a specific activity addressing an Area Requiring .
Special Attention - SR 54 Nonresidential Corridor and an FY 2015 FY 2017 | Staff Time | General Fayette_ County
. : . X Fund Planning and
Assessment of Consistency with Quality Community Zoning
Objectives- Regional Identity, Appropriate Businesses, D
X ' NSl epartment
Employment Options, and Educational Opportunities: )
Continue the joint study of the SR 54 Nonresidential and Fayetteville
Corridor with the City of Fayetteville. Issue will be Planning and
addressed in the major update of the Comprehensive Plan. Zoning






FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT
SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 PLANNING AND ZONING

Goal: Growth and development should be consistent with the county comprehensive plan.

Plan Element: Land Use Plan

Initiation | Completion Total
Project Description Year Year Estimated | Funding Responsibility
Costs Sources

This is a specific activity addressing an FY 2015 FY 2017 Staff Time | General | Fayette County Planning and
Assessment of Consistency with Quality Fund Zoning Department, Fayette
Community Objectives- Alternative County Public Works,
Transportation: Conduct multi-use path study Fayette County Department
for Redwine Road. Issue will be addressed in the of Recreation, and Sheriff’s
major update of the Comprehensive Plan. Office

This is a specific activity addressing an FY 2015 FY 2017 Staff Time | General | Fayette County Planning and
Assessment of Consistency with Quality Fund Zoning Department, Fayette

Community Objectives- Alternative
Transportation: Conduct multi-use path study
for SR 54 to connect Fayetteville and Peachtree
City to Hospital Area. Issue will be addressed in
the major update of the Comprehensive Plan.

County Public Works,
Fayette County Department

of Recreation, and Sheriff’s
Office






		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fee Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fee Backup

		BOC IF adoption resolution FY14

		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fee Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: |Public Hearing
Wording for the Agenda:

Public Hearing of Petition No. 1243-15, Fland Land, LLC, Owner, Donna Black, Agent, request to rezone 132.14 acres from R-70 to C-S
to develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision, with said property being located in Land Lots 49, 79 & 80 of the 7th
District, and fronting on Lees Lake Road and Coastline Road, with one (1) recommended condition.

Background/History/Details:
Applicant proposes to develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision on 132.14 acres.

Staff recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1243-15 with one (1) Condition.
The Planning Commission recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1243-15 with one (1) Condition.

The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim deed for 40 feet of right-of-way as measured from the
centerline of Coastline Road prior to the approval of the Final Plat and said dedication area shall be shown on the Final Plat.

Al Gilbert made a motion to recommend approval of Petition 1243-15 with one (1) condition. Bob Simmons seconded the motion. The
motion passed 4-0.

This recommendation was reaffirmed on April 16, 2015 as the petition was sent back to the Planning Commission for reconsideration due
to a material error with the Yield Plan resulting in the number of lots being reduced from 46 to 43. Al Gilbert made a motion to reaffirm
the recommendation to approve the petition with one (1) condition. Bob Simmons seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of Petition No. 1243-15, Fland Land, LLC, Owner, Donna Black, Agent, request to rezone 132.14 acres from R-70 to C-S to
develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision, with said property being located in Land Lots 49, 79 & 80 of the 7th
District, and fronting on Lees Lake Road and Coastline Road, with one (1) recommended condition.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Yes Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:










































































































APPLICATION TO AMEND
TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF FAYETTE COUNTY, GA

PROPERTY OWNERS: Flaip lanaao  (LC

MAILING ADDRESS: 21D 1\\19»3&\ Jedt Davis Dr , Fowoteyi \Wy . GA "‘_‘:EEZL#-

pove: [ 10270 3

AGENT FOR OWNERS;:

MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE: FAX:

evai:_ [ o1 w‘*gg
18]

o1
o1
PROPERTY LOCATION: LAND LOT 49,719,880  vanppisTrRICT M F.am:ELQT@
LAND LOT LAND DISTRICT PARCEL + | wore-fB1

TOTAL NUMBER OF ACRES REQUESTED TO BE REZONED: 1?)2 14 [ Vadt

EXISTING ZONING DISTRICT: - T0O PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT: (%S

ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTIES: F\ =0

PRESENT USE OF SUBJECT PROPERTY:  Re=rdentiol

PROPOSED USE OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: __ Residentiol = yla diviecn,

LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATION: R uwn) Pesdoudio( Sl u‘T}f;l 1o D A evee)
NAME AND TYPE OF ACCESS ROAD: __L¢ss la¥e RO\

T
LOCATION OF NEAREST WATER LINE: |2 'S Lake 'QJ

(THIS AREA TO BE COMPLETED BY STAFF): PETITION NUMBER: __ ZA — | 243 ~ IS

| | Application Insufficient due to lack ol

by Staff: Date:

| ;,|4p|ﬂi|:':'|tim1 and all required supporting documentation is Sufficient and Complete

> ] . A / L
by Staff: &1, __pb=——""—_ Date: | /]I f'r -
DATE OF PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING: Marclhh 5 ] 2015
DATE OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEARING: Ha,v'df\ 9 ; 20! B "
3 (‘9 o50.00)
Received from 'BY‘UT* HDHMQ‘S P (—-‘- L‘ a cheek in the amount ol % AF0 . o for
application filing fee, and 40 .pb = for deposit on frame for public hearing sign(s).
Date Paid: -’_ l':#l/f = Receipt Number:

REZONING APPLICATION, FAYETTE COUNTY, GA















LAN
DISTRICT UNE

APPROX
T .I.I'..':"-‘.

DENSITY TABULATICiS ..

R

RIGHT OF WAY AREA

. 354,803 S.F. {815 AC.

.OT AREA 1,991,181 L.F.

45,71 AC, .

DETENTION /WATER QUALITY| . 392,000 57 -1..£9.00 AC.

OPEN SPACE PROVIDER

QOPEN SPACE REQUIRED

TOTAL BOUNDARY AREA

NET UNITS PER ACRE = 0,940
GROSS UNITS PER ACRE = 0.325

NET = LOT AREA, GROSS = TOTAL AREA 5 w2«

44,284 B8P

E - '\.I - L
S

102" AC.

— — — — —— | — ——

.......

.....

......

S BISTRICT -~/ TR g

|
!
|
!
'|
I\

-

. A ....
4 s -
N ; / -
l‘u. .... - -~ j .

. ' AND LOT LINE &

206

\

" ~ ) x__:l'\____

|
'__\Il.\_:'._ _—

.
LU e T

LY
L
v
i
it e,
o -

. SOILS LEGEND

" "
2 CeC;
\: : . E__n.

" PaE', Facl.

w

)
-"'t'.-" rs

PACOLET

CeB, CfC2 -~ CECIL

' ALET SF

.7 1.09 AC.

—r —r T— e —— — —

1

N

1

. 100 AC. .
s 19

CURVE TABLE

CURVE NO.

DELTA

RADIUS

LENGTH

CHORD DIST.

BEARING

Cli

47°04' 25"

762.24°

626,28

G08.81

S03'08115"F

c2

2'580%"

3216.26"

166,57

166.56

S38'42'09"W

C3

_1FEBE

—

2993 59°

675,14

873. 1

N3343'31"E |

A

2200457

1708.01°

59.92°

69.91

NZ26°05 30°E

Ch

11°30°3%"

2914.33"

585,41

584.42

N139°C9°527E

. GG

194°D8"

3947.74'

73,61

73.60

MN12'62'33"E

i
(Rl TR - /‘l
- 45560 5F...—7f

— T ——

.,

17

Rab il ety

&

C

o
-

.

P

eB

-~

.......

— .'hglr

2

" 43,560 SF.

Y100 AC.

L .
WSEW ~ 191,75

¢

”

ol

R 3
- BT
R 7
. T o, ;
. T, <

3,017,980 SF. | 69.28 AC.
2,302,582 SF, | 5286 AC. _
a 1, o

T

VICINITY MAP

(.t.5.)

. ; ,/"M‘“\
-' i i e UPEﬂ — .o
<"/ SPACE -t

/ 43580 SF. 1 .
/100 AC,

2 b B i N.. i - e ERla N
- . .- .- N H :
. H
V- N ..
. - d . )
.

L -DAVID BUNOLIN . SN
v e veaome 432 U NN N
.~ ZONED: R=70 : S —

. B :

“ . kS

AT
o1
-~

x."\&

\.\ II\. l‘ ‘%,_:‘\N\?F--«. ] .l‘ l‘\
ANDREW, W. MAVIS-. |

‘0B 1842/PC 33,
o ZONEDE, R=70 /2., ;

R S

1,
B

wopa W

1.

ii.
14

- H
. "
" \\\

‘Qj RECLIVED

AR 2T

TEANMREG &
FOW NG PT.

GENERAL SITE DATA:

TOTAL AREA OF SITE: 132.14 ACRES.

eI

-'PROPERTY IS CURRENTLY ZONED: R-70

PROPOSED ZONING IS: CS (CONSERVATION SUDDIVISION)
MIN. FRONT SETBACK: 50’

MIN. SIDE SETBACK: 20°

MIN. REAR SETEACK: 30’

MIN. LOT WIDTH: 125° & B/L

MIN. LOT FRONTAGE: 100' EXCEPT 50' ON CUL-DE-SAC

ALL STRUCTURES ON THIS SITE ARE TO BE REMOVED,
THERE ARK NO EASEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROPERTY.

THIS PROJECT IS T0 BE SERVED BY FAYETTE COQUNTY WATEE
DEPARTMENT.

"ACCORDING TQ FEMA FLGOR INSURANCE RATE MAP
COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 13113C0018E, THIS FROPERTY DOES &
FITHIN A 100 YR, FLCOD ZCONE,

EJUNDARY INFORMATION WAS TAKEN FROM PIAT PREPARED
BY WATTS AND BROWNING FNGINEERS INC.. DATE NOVEMBER
&%, 2013.

TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION WAS PROVIDED BY FAYETTE
COUNTY G.IS. DEPARTHENT.

STATE WATERS ARE FIELD LGCATED BY APPLIED
ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCES.,

-
™

THE MAJORITY OF THIS SITE WILL BE DETAINED FOR IN THE
EXISTING POND LOCATED ON SITE. WATER QUALITY WILL BE
AODDRESSED IN SBEPARATE BASINS. MICRO--PCQOL TYPE BASING
Wil BE USED. CHANNEL PROTECTION STORAGE VOLUME WILL
ALSD BE PROVIDED FOR IN THE EXISTING ONSITE POND.

THE OVERALL FRE--DEVELOFED Cn FOR THIS SHE IS 57

¥ETLANDS ARE PRESENT ON THIS SITE AND ARE CONTAINED
¥ITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE FLOOD PLAIN,

[T

-

FOR

- ..
et

o

L ox

REV.| DATE

YAND PLANNING
HYDROLOGY

130 HOWARD LANE, SUITE B -~
FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA 30214
PHONE: 770-460—2200 :

Il

CIVIL ENGINEERING ;.

"o
i

FLAND LAND, LLC
270 NORTH JEFF DAVIS DRIVE
FAYETTEVILLE, GA. 30214
CONTACT: DONNA BLACK
PH. §#770-461-0478

N

ELYSIAN F

“" GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 100’

.77, DATE: MARCH 30, 2015

' DEVELOPMENT PLAN

200°

OWNER,/DEVELOPER e
& 24 HR. CONTACT.

K2

FRREy

[

£
e
':'_."'r_:
o
(L

'LOCATED IN: 49, 79 & 80 ~
7th DISTRICT ~ FAYETTE CO.,
> GEORGIA

.-
-
o
“
-
i
-
'

»
¥, O
B3
] -
.

-
Vo
Rl





win .+ LAND PLANNING

PREPARED BY: .

P

.::?

HOVEY & ASSOC., INC.

130 HOWARD LANE, SUITE B
FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA 30214
PHONE: _770—460—2200

n

'
e

LNy 4dode sp AR . 47,657 SF.
PSTRN2 AG ol ~30 f f )
H Y o IN'. ) .. - .

1.08 AC.

- K" : -

o
- -

- ° - Y . 2.,
N N L .

OWNER/DEVELOFER
& 24 HBE CONTACT

oo

. LAKE SHOWN APPROXIMATELY
. FROM AERIAL ‘PHOTOGRAPH

P

Pow

FLAND LAND, LLC
270 NORTH JEFF DAVIS DRIVE
FAYETTEVILLE, GA. 30214
CONTACT: DONNA BLACK
PH. #770—461-0478

:.. . . - .' P I . ".'F'_ :.- ‘.'."_ - . . y - ;_- . R v - . - _- -x . . -"- . ., Lo . ._‘. .- .

156 AC., o <

59*3?5 \LSIF: f_.-- /Xi/ ‘H.-»..___ I R e f .:_, -:‘:.
| PR
<

Ry
™,
SR

TR—70."

"

_ROBERT L. TORBUSH "
PB BAFG 45

. L ." -/ - ._.- : e J— ot ) \ . .
33 ! : . " . :__ et ‘ ) '\:

. " 45580 SF. o . SN N
T ye0 e /oL . . AN N ~ ' SV Y

H T
+ .
A -

ZONED
:

T
T
i
k-]

08 12565 106,

n

[

_____ - - - / n . % 5: N/F ;,- . L S " r / R
— - b7\ MIRIAM N. ANDERSON /= = S0

: ~ DA ZHJ'PG 488 . . . A . .
B - . PB aﬂﬂﬂ 2? T é? . e £ .:5' _.‘ Egn
Y w  ZONED. R=70 A “ - ST

-

%

L T758.39

"

o

L g M R \% P &
;. T I:IiEl_ ARG 1B % N e ‘%{ ~ DOUGLAS P. MeCELAHAN e N T

- H . : ;

ey

S N T B 110 5 P A

D X T TR R
| ZONEDr R=70 1Y

.
A —
I

_____ S /

oy T T e T e
N

S . ZONED: R-TP___ T oo L ,

LOCATED 'IN: 49," 79 & 80 ~
7th DISTRICT ~ FAYETTE CO.,
" GEORGIA

; e T T T
e . e

. . -

S NFF T
WALLIAM FARCLOTH- 7/

DB 464/FG 214 %

o

. . GRAPHIC SCALE:'1" = 100'

.. B 10/PG 85 L
_ZOMED: R-F0 Lol ; : '
e 100 L 200

R :
H B
:
\
E . B -
v . L
Iz . o
1
: I
E o, .
1 .

LAND LOT JINE s

- T

e R

be/F

JAMES R. MUSE 0
DB (118/PC 726

ZONED: R-70 :

Z0HT I LHEHWOT











New Business #14

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Public Works Presenter(s): Phil Mallon
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of staff's request to award Preliminary Engineering Services for the Redwine Road Multi-Use Path (RFP # 930-P) to Heath
& Lineback Engineers, Inc., with a maximum allowable cost of $113,980.48, and authorization for the Chairman to sign all relevant
documents associated with this request.

Background/History/Details:

This is a federal-aid, design-build project (GDOT PI1 0012624 and ARC Project No. FA-352) that will expand the multi-use path system
along Redwine Road. The project includes two specific sections: 1) 4,300 feet between Birkdale Drive and Newhaven Drive; and 2)
3,600 feet between Preserve Place and Foreston Place; and at-grade crossings at locations to be determined. The Memorandum of
Understanding between Fayette County and the Georgia Department of Transportation was approved by the Board on October 23, 2014.

This scope of work includes tasks for public involvement, concept development, database preparation, environmental documentation,
and preliminary plans. GDOT will let the project for design-build upon completion and approval of these tasks.

Phase FY Federal Local Total

PE 2015 $91,200 $22,800 $114,000
ROW 2016 $100,000 $25,000 $125,000
UTL 2017 $60,800 $15,200 $76,000
CST 2017 $606,400 $151,600 $758,000
Total $858,400 $214,600 $1,073,000

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of staff's request to award Preliminary Engineering Services for the Redwine Road Multi-Use Path (RFP # 930-P) to Heath &
Lineback Engineers, Inc., with a maximum allowable cost of $113,980.48, and authorization for the Chairman to sign all relevant
documents associated with this request.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

The project has federal aid per the dollar amounts shown above (typical 80/20 split). Any costs beyond these amounts will be the
responsibility of Fayette County. The project is funded through CIP 5220B.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  |Yes County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #14





,‘ /; = | |
ctlyclie | |
Q' A FWHERE CJLIALITY

T CSUNTY IZE A LIFEETYLE"

PURCHASIME DEPARTMEMT
140 STONEWALL AYENwE WEST. S1e 2094
FAYETTEVILLE, GECRGEIA BOZ14
PHONE: 770-505-54 040
D \\'\\'\\'l.l_\'l'l'll'.I'III '.'!'.. i B
To: Steve Rapson
From: Ted L. Burgess
Date: April 23, 2015
Subject: Award of RFP 930-P: Preliminary Engineering for Redwine Road Multi-Use Path

The Redwine Road multi-use path is a federal / state / county partnership. The federal government is
providing 80% of the funds for the project. The Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) will issue
a design-build solicitation for the construction phase. The county will provide 20% matching funds.

The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid #930-P to solicit bids. Notices of the opportunity
were e-mailed to 19 firms. An additional 1,036 companies were contacted through the web-based
Georgia Procurement Registry. In addition, invitations were extended via the Fayette News, the county
website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23. Ten firms
submitted proposals.

Since federal funds will pay part of the cost of this project, the county must secure Preliminary
Engineering services in compliance with the federal Brooks Act (40 U.S.C. 1101 et seq.). This requires
evaluation of proposals based on a two-step process:

e  First, an Evaluation Committee must evaluate and score proposals on technical merit only.

e After evaluation scores are completed based on technical merit, the next step is to open the
price proposal (kept in separate sealed envelopes) of the top-scoring firm, and negotiate a fair,
mutually agreeable price. If a reasonable price cannot be negotiated with the top-scoring firm,
the county must then open the price envelope of the second-best scoring firm, and enter
negotiations with them.

The Evaluation Team scored Heath & Lineback as the top-ranking company (Attachment 1). Staff
opened their price proposal envelope, which stated their proposed price of $140,680.33. After meeting
to negotiate details of proposed work and prices, Heath & Lineback submitted a revised price of
$113,980.48 (Attachment 2). Costs will be shared with the federal government as follows:

Federal Funds $91,184.38
County Funds 22,796.10
Total $113,980.48

Budgeted funds of $114,000 are available for Preliminary Engineering in Account Number 37540220-
521211, Project 52208B.

Public Works recommends contracting with Heath & Lineback to provide Preliminary Engineering for the
Redwine Road Multi-Use Path project. | support their recommendation.





Request for Proposals #930-P
Limited Preliminary Engineering (PE) Services
Redwine Road Multi-Use Path
Technical Merit Score Summary

Attachment 1

Summary:
Max Falcon Griffin & | Heath & Kimley Moreland Prime Rochester | Stevenson
Criteria Points [ AECOM Design Davis Lineback ISE Horn Altobelli Eng. & Assoc. & Palmer

Project Understanding 40 29 26.5 21 37.5 33 35 20.5 21.5 19 24
Project Team Experience 20 16 11 7 15 15.5 17 11.5 9 10 9
Schedule 15 8.5 7.5 9.5 10 10 10 9.5 9 9.5 10
Quality of Written Proposal 15 11.5 10.5 8.5 12.5 12.5 14 9 8.5 8 8.5
Quality Control / Quality Assurance 10 6 4.5 5.5 9 7.5 6 8 8.5 7.5 7.5

Total Technical Merit Score 100 71 60 51.5 84 78.5 82 58.5 56.5 54 59






Cobb County DOT
COST PROPOSAL

Proj, No.: Project: Redwine Road Multi-Use Path
Pl No.: County: Fayette Attachment 2
Prime: Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc. Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price
Date: 3-Apr-15 Fixed Fee %: 10%
Heath & Lineback Engineers
Discipline] Concept Development & Preliminary Plans Hours & Cost Estimate
Total Other Total Labor Direct Labor Indirect Costs
Total Hours Total Cost Direct Costs Fixed Fee @ Cost Cost (Overhead) @ FCCM @
Phase Description 10% 160.00%
TOTALS ==> 702 $ 113,980.48 | $ 43,575.00 | $ 6,400.50 | $ 64,004.98 | $ 24,617.30 | $ 39,387.68 | $ -
0 Public Involvement 26| $ 3,019.10 | $ 55.00 | $ 269.46 | $ 2,694.64 | $ 1,036.40 | $ 1,658.24 | $ -
1 Concept Development 277 $ 26,556.71 | $ 110.00 | $ 2,404.25 | $ 24,042.46 | $ 9,247.10 | $ 14,795.36 | $ -
2 Database Preparation Incl. Survey 19| $ 13,343.00 | $ 11,055.00 | $ 208.00 | $ 2,080.00 | $ 800.00 | $ 1,280.00 | $ -
3 Envirommental Document Incl. CE 22 $ 34,912.41 | $ 32,355.00 | $ 23249 [ $ 2,324.92 | $ 894.20 [ $ 1,430.72 | $ -
4 Preliminary Plans Incl. Utilities 338| $ 33,824.08 | $ - $ 3,074.92 | $ 30,749.16 | $ 11,826.60 | $ 18,922.56 | $ -
5 Right of Way Plans 20 $ 2,325.18 | $ - $ 211.38 [ $ 2,113.80 | $ 813.00 | $ 1,300.80 | $ -
6 Final Plans $ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ - $ -
7 Construction Services $ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ - $ -
8 Additional Services $ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ - $ -
Project Level Summary - Labor
Staff Type / Project Hourly Rates / Hours Project Hourly Rates Include Escalation Over Current Rates of:
Total Principal Project Manager| Sr. Engineer Engineer Staff Engineer | Sr. Technician | Clerical Admin
$81.00 $50.00 $48.00 $32.50 $26.80 $34.00 $24.50 $10.30
TOTAL HOURS ==> 702 16 88 61 281 256
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST==>| $ 24,617 | $ 1,296 | $ 4,400 | $ 2,928 | $ 9,133 | $ 6,861 | $ - $ - $ -
Project Level Summary - Other Direct Costs
Other Direct Costs
Columbia
G T Hill Planners{ Seiler & Assoc. Engineering- Util
Total Other Travel Reproduction Delivery Environmental Survey NOVA - Geotech Coord.
Direct Costs
TOTALS ==>| $ 43575 | $ 275 | $ - $ $ - $ 32,300 | $ 11,000 | $ - $ -
4/8/2015 5:39 PM
930 Final Price Proposal - Heath & Lineback.xls Rd1 Page 1 of 4





Cobb County DOT
COST PROPOSAL

Proj, No.: Project: Redwine Road Multi-Use Path
Pl No.: County: Fayette Attachment 2
Prime: Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc. Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price
Date: 3-Apr-15 Fixed Fee %: 10%
Heath & Lineback Engineers
Discipline] Concept Development & Preliminary Plans Hours & Cost Estimate
Staff Type / Project Hourly Rates / Hours Includes Escalation of:
Total Hours Principal Project Manager| Sr. Engineer Engineer Staff Engineer | Sr. Technician | Clerical Admin

Phase Description $81.00 $50.00 $48.00 $32.50 $26.80 $34.00 $24.50 $10.30

TOTALS ==> 702 16 88 61 281 256
0 Public Involvement 26 2 8 8 8
1 Concept Development 277 4 32 12 107 122
2 Database Preparation Incl. Survey 19 2 4 1 12
3 Envirommental Document Incl. CE 22 2 6 10 4
4 Preliminary Plans Incl. Utilities 338 4 36 46 130 122
5 Right of Way Plans 20| 2 2 2 14
6 Final Plans
7 Construction Services
8 Additional Services

Other Direct Costs
Columbia
G T Hill Planners{ Seiler & Assoc. Engineering- Util
Total Other Travel Reproduction Delivery Environmental Survey NOVA - Geotech Coord.

Phase Description Direct Costs

TOTALS ==>[ § 43,575 | $ 2751 $ - $ - $ - $ 32,300 | $ 11,000 | $ - $ -
0 Public Involvement $ 55| $ 55| % - $ -
1 Concept Development $ 110 | $ 110 | $ - $ °
2 Database Preparation Incl. Survey $ 11,055 | $ 55| % = $ = $ 11,000
3 Envirommental Document Incl. CE $ 32,355 | $ 551$% - $ - $ 32,300
4 Preliminary Plans Incl. Utilities $ - $ = $ = $ -
5 Right of Way Plans $ - $ - $ - $ -
6 Final Plans $ - $ - $ > $ =
7 Construction Services $ - $ a $ 5 $ -
8 Additional Services $ - $ - $ ° $ =

4/8/2015 5:39 PM
930 Final Price Proposal - Heath & Lineback.xls Rd1 Page 2 of 4





Cobb County DOT
COST PROPOSAL

Proj, No.: Project: Redwine Road Multi-Use Path
Pl No.: County: Fayette Attachment 2
Prime: Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc. Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price
Date: 3-Apr-15 Fixed Fee %: 10%
Heath & Lineback Engineers
Discipline] Concept Development & Preliminary Plans Hours & Cost Estimate
Total Hours Principal Project Manager | Sr. Engineer Engineer Staff Engineer | Sr. Technician | Clerical Admin
0 Public Involvement 26 2 8 8 8
Project Management & Coordination 4 4
Prepare for, Attend Neighborhood/Stakeholder Meeting (2 Mtgs) 10 2 4 4
Prepare Layouts and Graphics (GIS & Concept Layout) 12 4 8
Total Hours Principal Project Manager | Sr. Engineer Engineer Staff Engineer | Sr. Technician | Clerical Admin
1 Concept Development 277 4 32 12 107 122
Project Management & Coordination 18 2 16
Prepare Project Management Plan 4 1 3
Prepare Quality Control Plan 4 1 3
Internal Quality Control Reviews 8 2 6
Prepare Concept Property Database 4 4
Compile/Enhance Concept Database 4 4
Prepare Concept Layouts 58 2 16 40
Prepare Concept Profiles 17 1 12 4
Prepare Concept Cross Sections 41 1 24 16
Prepare Concept Construction Cost Estimate 33 1 16 16
Prepare Concept Utility, Environmental, Right of Way Cost Estimate 15 1 8 6
Prepare Concept Report 43 4 19 20
Prepare Design Data Book 4 4
Prepare for, Attend, Document Concept Team Meeting 24 4 8 12
Total Hours Principal Project Manager | Sr. Engineer Engineer Staff Engineer | Sr. Technician | Clerical Admin
2 Database Preparation Incl. Survey 19 2 4 1 12
Project Management & Coordination 10 2 4 4
QC of Survey Database 5 1 4
Enhance Topographic Database for Design 4 4
Total Hours Principal Project Manager | Sr. Engineer Engineer Staff Engineer | Sr. Technician | Clerical Admin
3 Envirommental Document Incl. CE 22 2 6 10 4
Project Management & Coordination 18 2 6 10
Integrate Environmental Data into database 4 4

4/8/2015 5:39 PM
930 Final Price Proposal - Heath & Lineback.xls Rd1






Cobb County DOT
COST PROPOSAL

Proj, No.: Project: Redwine Road Multi-Use Path
Pl No.: County: Fayette Attachment 2
Prime: Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc. Contract Type: Firm Fixed Price
Date: 3-Apr-15 Fixed Fee %: 10%
Heath & Lineback Engineers
Discipline] Concept Development & Preliminary Plans Hours & Cost Estimate
Total Hours Principal Project Manager | Sr. Engineer Engineer Staff Engineer | Sr. Technician | Clerical Admin
4 Preliminary Plans Incl. Utilities 338 4 36 46 130 122
Project Management & Coordination 28 4 24
Coordinate with Utility Companies 8 4 4
Prepare Typical Sections 12 4 8
Prepare Plans, Profiles, etc. (16 sheets, 20 scale) 28 4 16 8
Prepare Cross-Sections/Grading Plan 30 2 20 8
Prepare Preliminary Driveway Profiles 12 4 8
Prepare Preliminary Drainage Design, Layout & Profiles 22 2 12 8
- F= g' g : g
Prepare Existing Utility Plans from Utility Co. Markups 16 4 12
Prepare Retaining Wall Locations and Envelopes 14 2 4 8
Prepare Draft Special Provisions 4 4
Prepare Detailed Construction Cost Estimate 20 4 8 8
Update R/W Cost Estimate 2 2
Prepare for, Participate in Plan Review 18 4 8 6
Address Preliminary Plan Review Comments 38 2 4 16 16
Internal Quality Control Reviews 14 2 12
DB Costing Plans and Specifications 42 2 8 16 16
Respond to RFIs during DB Bid Process 30 2 4 12 12
Total Hours Principal Project Manager | Sr. Engineer Engineer Staff Engineer Sr. Technician Clerical Admin
5 Right of Way Plans 20 2 2 2 14
Project Management & Coordination 3 1 2
Prepare Right-of-Way Plans 9 1 8
R/W Plans Review/Revisions 4 4
Internal Quality Control Reviews 2 2
Preparing Staking Data 2 2

4/8/2015 5:39 PM
930 Final Price Proposal - Heath & Lineback.xls Rd1

Page 4 of 4





		Public Works- Redwine Road Agenda Request File

		Public Works- Redwine Road Backup

		RFP 930-P Redwine Multi Use Path - Purchasing Backup 1

		RFP 930-P Redwine Multi Use Path - Purchasing Backup 2

		RFP 930-P Redwine Multi Use Path - Purchasing Backup 3










Consent Agenda #9

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Street Lights Presenter(s): Deborah Sims
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval of staff's recommendation to add the Rocky Fork subdivision to Fayette County's Street Light Program.

Background/History/Details:

The property owners in the subdivision known as Rocky Fork are petitioning the Board of Commissioners to add Rocky Fork into the
Fayette Street Light Program.

The Board of Commissioners created Fayette County Street Light Districts in September 1983. The street light ordinance was amended
in November 2014 to require a $100 application fee and prepayment of two years worth of street light bills to cover the expenses incurred
by Fayette County until the charges could be recouped with the tax bills. Rocky Fork has paid Fayette County the required amounts and
presented a petition representing 85.5% of the homeowners in Rocky Fork.

There are sixteen, one hundred watt high pressure sodium street lights located inside Rocky Fork. The estimated monthly charge is
$196.00. Rocky Fork has paid the $100 application fee and paid Fayette County $4,704.00 as the first two (2) years prepayment for
street lights.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Approval of staff's recommendation to add the Rocky Fork subdivision to Fayette County's Street Light Program.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

These additional lights will cost $196.00 per month per EMC. Rocky Fork has prepaid the amounts required to become a street light
district until the cost may be added onto the property tax bill and the county reimbursed.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #9
















































































		Street Lights- Rocky Fork Agenda Request File

		Street Lights- Rocky Fork Backup

		SKMBT_C25315040714260

		SKMBT_C25315040714261










Consent Agenda #8

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Street Lights Presenter(s): Deborah Sims
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval of staff's recommendation to add Stillbrook Estates Phase Il to Fayette County's Street Light Program.

Background/History/Details:

Stillbrook Estates HOA, Inc. is the property owner in the subdivision known as Stillbrook Estates Phase Il. The HOA is petitioning the
Board of Commissioners to add Stillbrook Estates Phase Il to the existing Stillorook Estates Street Light District in the Fayette County
Street Light Program.

The Board of Commissioners created Fayette County Street Light Districts in September 1983. The street light ordinance was amended
in November 2014 to require a $100 application fee and prepayment of two years worth of street light bills to cover the expenses incurred
by Fayette County until the charges could be recouped with the tax bills. Stillbrook Estates has paid Fayette County the required
amounts and presented a petition representing 100% of the homeowners in Stillbrook Estates Phase |I.

There are thirteen, one hundred fifty watt street lights located inside Phase Il. The estimated monthly charge is $218.01. Stillbrook
Estates Phase Il has paid the $100 application fee and paid Fayette County $5,232.24 as the first 2 years prepayment for street lights.
The street lights will be incorporated into the existing Stillbrook Estates street light district and added onto the 2016 property tax bill.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Approval of staff's recommendation to add Stillbrook Estates Phase Il to Fayette County's Street Light Program.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

These additional lights will cost $218.01 per month per Georgia Power. Stillorook Estates Il has prepaid the amounts required to become
a street light district until the cost may be added onto the property tax bill and the county reimbursed.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #8

























		Street Lights- Stillbrook Estates Agenda Request File

		Street Lights- Stillbrook Estates Backup








Proclamation/Recognition #2

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Fayette County Water System Presenter(s): Water System Director Lee Pope
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 23, 2015 Type of Request:  |Proclamation/Recognition
Wording for the Agenda:

Background/History/Details:

Proclamation of May 4, 2015 as "Water Professionals Appreciation Day."

Georgia”.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Senate Bill 119 establishes in State law that the first Monday in May of each year will be “Water Professionals Appreciation Day in

It is fitting and proper that these individuals and their efforts be appropriately recognized. During its recently completed session, the
Georgia General Assembly amended Chapter 4 of Title 1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to holidays and
observances, so as to designate the first Monday in May of each year as "Water Professionals Appreciation Day" in Georgia.

Water professionals provide critical services that are most often taken for granted, but that are essential to virtually everything we do.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Proclamation of May 4, 2015 as "Water Professionals Appreciation Day."

Not Applicable

Has this request been considered within the past two years?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

No

No

If so, when?

Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance
Approved by Purchasing

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Reviewed by Legal

County Clerk's Approval Yes




fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #2





Water Professionals Appreciation Day, Monday, May 4, 2015.

BACKGROUND:

The Georgia Water Quality Control Act was passed by the Georgia General Assembly and
signed into law in 1964 by Governor Carl Sanders. At that time, there were 25 communities in
Georgia which had no public sewage systems, 40 communities with a sewer system but no
treatment facilities, 60 communities with a sewer system but only primary treatment facilities, 50
communities with a sewer system and secondary treatment facilities which were in need of
improvement, and 395 industries which had documented untreated or inadequately treated
discharges to Georgia's surface waters. At the time of passage of the Act, many of Georgia's
surface waters were extremely polluted, and serious water quality problems existed all over the
State of Georgia. The State established the Georgia Water Quality Control Board (later
reconstituted as the Georgia Environmental Protection Division as a result of the 1972
Reorganization of State Government under Governor Jimmy Carter), and Governor Sanders
appointed R.S. "Rock" Howard to be the board's executive secretary. By the time the Federal
Water Quality Control Act was passed in 1972, most of Georgia's industries had been brought
into compliance with the initial requirements of the Federal Act. Over the ensuing four decades,
billions of Federal, State, and local dollars have been invested in planning, designing, and
constructing modern publicly owned wastewater treatment facilities throughout this State.
Georgia's water professionals are committed to operating these facilities to maintain consistent
compliance with extremely stringent standards. Both publicly- and privately-owned facilities
have performed so well that they are no longer the most significant threat to Georgia's waters.
The quality of Georgia's waters has improved dramatically throughout this great state over the 50
years since the original passage of the Georgia Water Quality Control Act

Likewise, huge strides have been made over the past several decades in providing safe and
reliable water at the tap throughout the State. According to the World Health Organization, four
children die every minute somewhere in the world due to waterborne disease (that’s over two
million children per year), and over half of the hospital beds in the world are occupied by people
with waterborne diseases. Rarely do we hear of any such occurrences in the United States,
thanks the dedication and commitment of water professionals, coupled with the mandate from
leaders at all levels of government and from the public at large. Georgia’s last-known outbreak
of water-borne disease was in 1989, over 25 years ago.

It is imperative that these improvements be sustained while continuing our efforts to educate
Georgians of their growing responsibility in the reduction of non-point sources of pollution to
Georgia's waters, and their responsibility for stewardship of Georgia’s precious water resources.
The success that we have experienced thus far and the success that we will have in the future is
made possible by the tremendous dedication and efforts of Georgia's water professionals.





It is fitting and proper that these individuals and their efforts be appropriately recognized.
During its recently completed session, the Georgia General Assembly amended Chapter 4 of
Title 1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to holidays and observances, so as to
designate the first Monday in May of each year as "Water Professionals Appreciation Day" in
Georgia. Water professionals provide critical services that are most often taken for granted, but
that are essential to virtually everything we do.





		Water System- Water Professionals Day Agenda Request File

		Water System- Water Professionals Day Backup







